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This decision is in response to the memorandum opinion and order of the United States
District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia in Civil Action No. 01:10-cv-81, The
Medicines Company v. David Kappos, et al., issued on March 16, 2010. The district court

“vacated the USPTO’s denial of the application for extension of the patent term of U.S. Patent -
No. 5,196,404 (the *404 patent) under 35 U.S.C. § 156, filed in the United States Patent and
Trademark Office (USPTO) on February 14, 2001, and remanded the case to the USPTO for
reconsideration. The USPTO has carefully reconsidered the issues raised in the district court’s
opinion as well as the arguments present in the Medicines Company’s (“MDCO” or “Applicant”)
request for reconsideration. Because the USPTO again concludes that MDCO’s application for
patent term extension (PTE application) for the 404 patent was not timely filed as required by
35 U.S.C. § 156(d)(1), its request for a patent term extension of the *404 patent is DENIED.'

A. Factual Background
1. On March 23, 1993, the USPTO granted the *404 patent.

2 On December 15, 2000, the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) transmitted a letter via
facsimile to Appllcant explaining that Applicant’s New Drug Application No. 20-873,
seeking approval for Angiomax, had been approved. That letter stated: “[TJhe apphcatlon 1s
approved effective on the date of this letter.” The letter was dated December 15, 2000, in
three places: (1) to the right of the address block by what appears to be a date stamp; (2)
adjacent the signature on final page in handwriting; and (3) at the top of each of the three
pages by what appears to be a facsimile machine imprint that also indicates the time of
transmission as “18:17,” i.e., 6:17 p.m. Applicant does not deny either that the FDA

! This decision incorporates the IjSPTO’s decision dated January 8, 2010, regarding the
grant of MDCO’s petition under 37 C.F.R. § 1.183 to suspend 37 C.F.R. §§ 1.750 and 1.181(%).



Decision re: PTE application for U.S. Patent No. 5,196,404 Page 2

transmltted or that it recelved that letter on December 15, 2000, at approximately 6:17 p.m.
by facsimile.?

3. OnFebruary 13; 2001, Applicant, in their Annual Report for 2000, explicitly stated: “On
December 15, 2000, the Company received FDA approval for Angiomax.” The Medicines
Company, Annual Report 2000 at 25-26 (1ssued Feb. 13, 2001) (Annual Report)
(Attachment 1).

4. On February 14, 2001, Applicant filed its PTE application to extend the term of the 404
patent with the USPTO. In its application, Applicant stated in paragraphs (3), (10), and (11)
that the approval date of Angiomax was December 15, 2000.

5. In paragraph (3), Applicant stated: “The date on which the approved product received
permission for commercial marketing was 15 December 2000.” In paragraph (10), Applicant
stated: “The date on which the NDA was approved was 15 December 2000.” And, in
paragraph (11), Applicant identified significant activities undertaken as part of the regulatory
review in a table. Applicant listed a communication from Julie DuBeau to Sonja Loar on
December 15, 2000, with the description, “Approval of Angiomax.” Additionally,
Applicant’s counsel struck through paragraph (5), which set forth the last day for filing the
PTE application, and initialed and dated the change. Specifically, Applicant’s counsel struck
through the following text: “This application is being submitted within the 60 day period.
permitted for submission pursuant to 37 C.F.R. § 1.720(f). The last date upon which this
application could be submitted is 15 February 2001.”

6. On March 2, 2001, after receiving Applicant’s PTE application, the USPTO wrote a letter to
the FDA, indicating that the USPTO believed the PTE application to be untimely and
requested the FDA’s assistance in confirming that (1) Angiomax was subject to regulatory
review within the meaning of section 156(g) before its first permitted commercial marketing
or use and (2) the PTE application was not filed within sixty days after the product received
FDA approval as required by section 156(g)(1).

7. On March 9, 2001, Applicant filed a supplement to its PTE application, explaining that it
struck through paragraph (5) because of its “uncertainty as to what the approval date really
was.” Applicant then explained that it researched the approval date on the FDA web site and
identified a document listing the approval date as December 19, 2000. Based upon that later
approval date discovered months after their actual approval and weeks after the February 14,
2001 PTE application filing, Applicant restated paragraph (5) as follows: “This application
is being submitted within the 60 day period permitted for submission pursuant to 37 C.F.R.
1.720(f). The last date upon which this application could be submitted is 17 February 2001.”

2 Notably, Applicant claims that it received the FDA approval letter on December 15,
2000, by facsimile but that the letter did not include an electronic signature page. Applicant
claims that it received a second copy of the FDA approval by regular mail the following week.
According to Applicant, that second copy did not contain a date stamp, but instead included an
electronic signature page with a 5:18 p.m. time stamp and a December 15, 2000, date stamp.
Taking Applicant’s claims as true, the bottom line is that the both copies of the approval letter
contained a December 15, 2000, date stamp.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

On May 21, 2001, Applicant filed a registration statement with the Security and Exchange
Commission wherein it stated: “On December 15, 2000, the Company received FDA
approval for Angiomax and any Angiomax bulk drug product to which the Company took
title after that date is recorded as inventory.” The Medicines Company, Form S-1
Registration Statement Under The Securities Act of 1933 at 84 (filed with Security Exchange
Commission May 2001) (SEC Statement) (Attachment 2).

On September 6, 2001, the FDA confirmed by letter to the USPTO that Angiomax was
subject to a regulatory review period before its first commercial marketing or use and that
Angiomax had been approved on December 15, 2000, making Applicant’s PTE application
untimely within the meaning of section 156(d)(1).

On March 4, 2002, the USPTO mailed a notice of final determination to Applicant stating
that its PTE application was not timely filed and that the application consequently was
dismissed. :

On October 7, 2002, Applicant requested reconsideration of the dismissal, arguing that the
date of approval for Angiomax should be effective on December 18, 2000.

On March 23, 2003, the USPTO forwarded the request for reconsideration to the FDA,
requesting the F DA’s assistance in verifying the approval date of Angiomax as December 15,
2000.

On September 14, 2006, Applicant’s Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Clive
Meanwell, testified before Congress about specific legislation it was lobbying Congress to
pass, which would provide a legislative remedy for its untimely PTE application filing: Dr.
Meanwell testified as follows:

The FDA approved Angiomax for the narrow initial use in coronary angioplasty
on December 15, 2000 . . . . But then human error intervened. The current filing
provision of Hatch- Waxman requires an application to be filed within 60 days of
FDA’s approval of the drug in question. Unfortunately, the 60-day requirement
was evidently mistaken for a two-month requirement, and our patent restoration
application was filed on February 14, 2001, within a two-month window, but one
day late for the actual 60-day deadline. Unlike other filing provisions of the
patent laws, this provision of Hatch-Waxman does not allow for any discretion to
accept late applications, no matter the reason and no matter how close to the
actual deadline. So, the Patent and Trademark Office denied the petition as
untimely. We filed a motion for reconsideration which is still pending, but the .

- USPTO lacks the authority to grant it.

A Bill to Amend Title 35, U.S. Code, To Conform Certain Filing Provisions Within the Patent
and Trademark Office: Hearing on H.R. 5120 Before the Subcomm. on Courts, the Internet, and
Intellectual Property of the H. Comm. On the Judiciary, 109th Cong. 11 (2006) (statement of
Clive Meanwell, Chairman and CEO of the Medicines Company) (2006 Legislation)
(Attachment 3). This was not Applicant’s first or only attempt to secure a legislative fix for its
untimely PTE application filing. Since September of 2005, Applicant’s attempt to secure a
legislative fix for its untimely PTE application filing resulted in at least four other bills, each of
which provided relief to Applicant by providing a mechanism for the USPTO Director to accept
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unintentionally delayed PTE application ﬁllngs See, e.g., S. 1785, 109" Cong.; HR. 1178, 110"
Cong.; S. 1145, 110™ Cong.; H.R. 6344, 110" Cong.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

-19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

On November 2, 2006, the FDA replied to the USPTO March 2003 letter of inquiry
regarding the approval date of Angiomax, again indicating that Angiomax was approved by
the FDA on December 15, 2000, and not December 18, 2000.

On January 26, 2007, Applicant filed a petition under 37 C.F.R. §§ 1.182 and 1.183,

requesting a stay of final action on its PTE application due to its pending legislation which,
as explained earlier, would have provided an exception for Appllcant s PTE to be considered -
timely.

On February 12, 2007, the USPTO granted-in-part and denied-in-part the petition under 37
CF.R.§§1.182 and 1.183. The USPTO granted a limited stay of 30 days to permit
Applicant to amend and supplement its request for reconsideration and PTE application.

On March 13, 2007, Applicant filed an amended request for reconsideration and-an amended
PTE application.

On April 26, 2007, the USPTO denied Apphcant s application for patent term extension in
final agency action. ‘

On December 4, 2009, two years and eight months after Applicant could have brought suit to
challenge the USPTO’s final denial of its patent term extension application, Applicant filed a
petition under 37 C.F.R. § 1.183 asking the USPTO to waive the requirements of 37 C.F.R.

'§ 1.183, which limits an applicant to a single request for reconsideration within a specified

time.

On December 4, 2009, Applicant also filed another request for reconsideration of the
USPTO’s denial of Applicant’s application for patent term extension (Reconsideration
Request).

On January 8, 2010, USPTO again denied Appllcant s application for patent term extension
in final agency action.

On January 27, 2010, Applicant filed suit against the USPTO, FDA, and Department of
Health and Human Services in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of
Virginia, Alexandria, Division under the Administrative Procedures Act, challenging the
USPTO’s denial of its PTE application.

On March 16, 2010, the district court issued a memorandum opinion and order vacating the
denial of the PTE application and remanding the case to the agency for reconsideration “as to
the date of approval under § 156.” The Medicines Co. v. Kappos, Civ. Act. No. 01:10-cv-81,
slip op. at 18 (“District Court Decision”). The district court explained that the USPTO
erroneously believed that its construction of the term “date” in section 156(d)(1) to mean
“calendar day” was compelled by the statute and that it lacked any discretion to adopt
Applicant’s proffered “business day” construction. Jd. at 10. The district court also
identified four argument that Applicant made to support its “business day” construction,
including: “§ 156(d)(1)’s focus on the date approval was received, the purpose of

§ 156(d)(1), the need to ensure that all applicants received the 60 days to file extension
applications that Congress required[,] and the ways in which its interpretation of date in
combination with its new counting rule is inconsistent with that requirement.” Id. at 11. The
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district court faulted the USPTO for not expressly considering these arguments, id. at 11, as
well as for failing to provide an analysis of its plain meaning definition of “date” as “calendar
day,” id. at 14. Finally, the district court directed the USPTO “to take such actions as
necessary to ensure that [Applicant’s] patent does not expire pending further resolution of
these proceedings.” Id. at 18.

B. Decision

L The USPTO Independently Determined that Applicant’s PTE was Untimely Flled
based on Information Supplied by the FDA

Applicant argues that section 156 expressly assigns the USPTO Director — not the
FDA — responsibility for determining whether a PTE application has been timely filed as
required by section 156(d)(1). Reconsideration Request at 6. Applicant also argues that just
because the FDA has the approval date within their records, the USPTO must not defer to FDA’s
determination of compliance with section 156(d)(1). Id. at 7. Finally, Applicant argues that the
Memorandum of Understanding between the USPTO and the FDA assi igned certain duties to
each agency, and USPTO is not authorized to delegate determination of compliance with the’
timeliness requirement of section 156(d)(1). /d. at 8. The USPTO agrees; it did not delegate a
timeliness determination to the FDA here.

The USPTO wrote to the FDA on two occasions asking for the FDA to confirm that
Applicant correctly represented the date of FDA approval of Angiomax in its PTE application.
The USPTO sought this information from the FDA because the USPTO is not privy to such
records; they are solely within the purview of the FDA. Because of this, the USPTO often
requests the FDA’s assistance with PTE applications, particularly since an applicant for a PTE
application is not required to submit a copy of the FDA’s approval letter to the USPTO. The
USPTO’s own regulation provides for the USPTO to make inquiries about the underlying facts
. when deciding a PTE application. See 37 C.F.R. § 1.750 (“The Director or other appropriate
officials may . . . make independent inquiries as desired before a final determination is‘made on
whether a patent is eligible for extension.”). But the FDA’s assistance is limited exclusively to
providing information to the USPTO; it does not mean that the USPTO defers to the FDA on any
decisions about timeliness or any other eligibility requirement. With information about the date
that the FDA approved Angiomax as provided by the FDA in hand, the USPTO independently
decided whether Applicant’s PTE application satisfied the timeliness requirement of section
156(d)(1).

The USPTO’s past practice indicates that it does not defer to the FDA for a determination
of timeliness. For example, in considering a PTE application filed for U.S. Patent No.
4,911,920, the USPTO sent an inquiry to the FDA asking for confirmation of the drug approval
date (Attachment 4). In response to the USPTO’s inquiry, the FDA indicated that the approval
date was February 23, 2000, and that the submission of the PTE application on April 26, 2000,
was not timely filed under section 156(d)(1) (Attachment 5). In the USPTO’s very next
communication, the USPTO disagreed with the FDA’s timeliness finding and stated: “The
application was filed on April 19, 2000 under 35 U.S.C. § 156. The application was received by

_the undersigned on April 26, 2000, but was mailed by Express Mail on April 19, 2000, and is

“entitled to a filing date of April 19, 2000. As a result, the application was timely filed.”
(Attachment 6). Clearly, just as the USPTO did not defer to the FDA’s timeliness determination
in the PTE application for U.S. Patent No. 4,911,920, the agency did not defer to FDA here.
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II. Construihg the Term “Date” in Section 156(d)(1) to Mean “Calendar Day” is the
Best Interpretation of the Text, Structure, and Purpose of the Statute

In its decision, the district court explained that section 156(d)(1) is not “so inflexible” as
to admit of only one meaning, namely “calendar day,” and implicitly found that the term “date”
could have the “business day” definition that Applicant subscribes to it. District Court Decision
at 13. In other words, the district court appears to find that the term “date” in section 156(d)(1)
1s open to more than one interpretation, freeing the USPTO to exercise its discretion in
interpreting it. The USPTO finds that the best definition of “date” in section 156(d)(1) is
“calendar day” based upon the text, structure, and purpose of the statute. In making this
determination, the USPTO notes that section 156(d) squarely deals with the procedural
requirements for obtaining a patent term extension. The USPTO’s interpretation here is thus
undertaken in the course of governing the conduct of its proceedings.

Beginning with the text and structure of the statute, section 156(d)(1) states:

[t]o obtain an extension of the term of a patent under this section, the owner of
record of the patent or its agent shall submit an application to the Director. Except
as provided in paragraph (5), such an application may only be submitted within
the sixty-day period beginning on the date the product received permission under
the provision of law under which the regulatory review period occurred for
commercial marketing or use.

35U.8.C. § 156(d)(1) (emphases added). To determine what the term “date” means, the

USPTO looks to the words surrounding that term, namely the phrase “the product received
permission . . . for commercial marketing or use.” A drug product “receive[s] permission . . . for .
commercial marketing or use” when the FDA approves the drug. Section 355(a) of Title 21
makes this clear. It provides: “No person shall introduce or deliver for introduction into
interstate commerce any new drug, unless an approval of an application filed pursuant to
subsection (b) or (j) is effective with respect to such drug.” 21 U.S.C. § 355(a). The

requirement that all “new drugs” obtain approval from FDA before they may be distributed in
interstate commerce is the linchpin of drug regulation under the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act. See21 U.S.C. §§ 331(d).

The FDA approves a drug on the date stamped on the FDA approval letter. Various FDA
- regulations establish this. See 21 C.F.R. § 60.22(f) (explaining that “[a] marketing application . .
. 1s approved on the date FDA sends the applicant a letter informing it of the approval”); 21
C.F.R. § 314.105(a) (stating that “[a]n approval becomes effective on the date of the issuance of
the approval letter”); 21 C.F.R. § 314.108(a) (noting that “[d]ate of approval means the date on
the letter”). It is likewise the FDA’s long-standing practice — both before and after enactment
of the Hatch-Waxman Act — to treat a drug as approved on the date of the approval letter.

See Mead Johnson Pharm. Group v. Bowen, 838 F.2d 1332, 1336 (D.C. Cir. 1988) (“[21 C.F.R.
§ 314.105(a)] thus reflects a well-considered, long-standing policy.”). To this end, FDA
approval letters explicitly state that the “application is approved effective on the date of th[e]
letter.” See, e.g., FDA Approval Letter to Applicant at 1 (Attachment 7). Additionally, three
appellate courts have recognized the same. See Mead Johnson, 838 F.2d at 1336 (determining
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that FDA’s regulations which note that an approval is the date on the approval letter reflect a
“well-considered, long-standing policy”); Norwich Eaton Pharms, Inc. v. Bowen, 808 F.2d 486,
491 (6™ Cir. 1987) (noting that FDA approval was effective on the date of the approval letter, not

the date the drug company received the approval letter), cert. denied, 108 S. Ct. 68 (1987);
Unimed, Inc. v. Quigg, 888 F.2d 826, 829 (Fed. Cir. 1989) (concluding that the sixty day period
mandated by 35 U.S.C. § 156(d) began on the date of the FDA approval letter). Accordingly, the
date of approval is the date of the FDA approval letter. '

The date stamped on the FDA approval letter covers a calendar day. Under Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, there are no limits on what days (weekdays, weekends, or
holidays) or at what times (business and non-business hours) that the FDA may approve a drug.
See 21 U.S.C. §§ 355(a)-(d). Accordingly, Congress has implicitly authorized the FDA to
approve drugs at any time of day. Said differently, Congress has not restricted the FDA to
approve drugs before a certain time of day such as 4:30 p.m., the cut-off time that Applicant
advocates here. Applicant’s position that approval must occur on a business day, prior to 4:30
p.m. east coast time, in order to be deemed effective on that day is consequently not supported by
statute. Nor does it make sense for the FDA to limit its approval window to a few hours in a day.
Because Applicant essentially argues that FDA must stop official business at 4:30 p.m. east coast
time, including halting the review of applications, Applicant’s position could also prolong the
approval process — to the detriment of industry and the public.

MDCO isolates the word “received” from section 156(d)(1) and contends that it shows

. that Congress intended for the patentee to have constructive receipt of the FDA approval before
trlggermg the 60-day filing window. See Reconsideration Request at 16-17. In Applicant’s
view, “an after-hours communication should be deemed to have been received on the next
business day.” Id. at 17. The presence of the word “received” in section 156(d)(1), however,
must be read in context. The statute speaks in terms of the “product receiv[ing] . . . permission
for commercial marketing or use.” The statute says nothing about the patentee actually or
constructively receiving notice of the FDA approval. Hence, Applicant’s argument is not fully
consistent with the statutory language of section 156(d)(1). In fact, as explained more fully
below, one reason why the term “received” in section 156(d)(1) cannot refer to the actual, or
even constructive, receipt of an approval letter is because some permissions within the scope of
section 156(d)(1) do not come in the form of approval letters at all. See, e.g., 35 U.S.C.

§ 156(g)(2)(B)(ii) (specifying that the regulatory review period for a food or color additive ends
on the effective date of a regulation).

Moreover, MDCO’s argument that the date a human drug “receive[s] permission . . . for
commercial marketing or use” is not the same day as the date that the new drug “application [i]s
approved” because the language of section 156(d)(1) is distinct from the language of section
156(g)(1)(B)(ii) is unpersuasive. See Reconsideration Request at 9-10. Section 156(d) is simply
using broader language to refer to the specific permission events that are also referred to in
section 156(g). A review of the structure of section 156 reveals that the “receives permission . . .
” language used in section 156(d)(1) covers various specific terms used in section 156(g). There
are several different categories of products referenced in section 156(g): new drugs, food or color
additives, medical devices, new animal drugs, and veterinary biological products. Section
156(d)(1) also explains that the “permission” that the various particular products “receive[]”
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occurs pursuant to “the applicable regulatory review period” for that given product. Those
applicable regulatory review periods are set forth in section 156(g). The nature of the
“permission” that the FDA gives for the commercial marketing or use of a product depends upon
what category the product falls under. Some are based on the date an “application was
approved,” while others are based on some other act by the FDA.

In reviewing the specific provisions of section 156(g), it becomes clear that section
156(d)(1) uses the broader language “permission ...” to encompass the various different acts of
permission referred to by section 156(g). Thus, the date a new drug application is “approved”’
[156(g)(1)(B)(ii)], the date a regulation “became effective” for use of a food or color additive

v [156(g)(2)(B)(i1)], the date the protocol “was declared completed” for a medical device

[156(g)(3)(B)(i1)], the date a new animal drug is “approved” [156(g)(4)(B)(ii)], and the date a
license “was issued” for a veterinary biological product [156(g)(5)(B)(ii)], are all types of
“permission” for commercial marketing and use contemplated in section 156(d)(1). Because of
that, section 156(d)(1) does not use the same “date such application was approved” language that
appears in section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii), and instead uses the broader, more generic “product received
permission” language. Section 156(d)(1) necessarily uses language broader — and hence
different — to encompass. the specific approval or permission language particular to the various

* products referred to in section 156(g).

MDCO’s argument that section 156(d)(1) and section (g)(1)(B)(ii) serve distinct
purposes, and therefore must be construed to mean different things, is equally unpersuasive
See Reconsideration Request at 10-12. The USPTO agrees with MDCO’s premise that the two
provisions serve distinct purposes. Specifically, section 156(d)(1) serves to inform all patent
term extension applicants of the trigger date which starts the sixty-day period for submission of a
- PTE application for his product, which could a human drug, food or color additive, medical
device etc., whereas section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii) informs drug sponsors when a human drug product
is approved, i.e., the regulatory review period ends, and commercial marketing may begin.
Although these two provisions have different purposes, it does not follow that the specific
temporal triggers that they include must be different. Title 21 of the Federal Food, Drug, and
Cosmetic Act establish that the words “the date the product received permission . . . for
commercial marketing or use” in section 156(d)(1) is synonymous with the language “the date
[the drug] application was approved” in section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii). See 21 U.S.C. § 355(a).
Moreover, as the Federal Circuit has made clear, it could “find no implication that the approval
date that commences the 60- day application period under [section 156(d)(1)] should be different
from the approval date that marks the end of the regulatory review period under [section
156(g)(1)(B)(i1)].” Unimed, 888 F.2d at 829.

Finally, it is critical that the “date” of section 156(d)(1) be certain because the
consequence of missing the filing window is drastic. Indeed, the date of FDA approval is “of
great concern to the FDA, the NDA applicant, and competing drug manufacturers, even before
the Hatch-Waxman Amendments.” Mead Johnson, 838 F.2d at 1336. Certainty is achieved
under the calendar day definition only, which does not take time of day into account. Under a
“business day” definition, by contrast, applicants for a patent term extension, the USPTO, the
FDA, and the public must track down the precise time of day that the FDA approval-is granted.
But of the foregoing entities, only the FDA has access to that information. In many
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circumstances, it is even possible that applicants for a patent term extension — the entities most
in need of the information — do not have it since the FDA transmits the approval letter to the
NDA sponsor, who may not be the patentee who will file the patent term extension application.
See, e.g., U.S. Patent No. 4,486,425 (decision denying PTE application where patent owner
unaware of approval because patent owner and drug sponsor were distinct entities)

(Attachment 8). Consequently, adopting a business day definition strains the purpose of section
156(d)(1).

IIIl.  The USPTO’s Construction of the Term “Date” in Section 156(d)(1) to Mean
“Calendar Day” is Consistent with Federal Circuit Precedent

, Precedent establishes that the “date” in section 156(d)(1) means the date stamped on the
FDA approval letter. In Unimed, the Federal Circuit considered whether the sixty-day period to
file a patent term extension application for a patent claiming a drug product, which required
DEA rescheduling, begins on the date the FDA sent the approval letter or on the date that the
DEA rescheduled the drug product, which occurred nearly one year after FDA approval.

888 F.2d at 828. In answering this question, the Federal Circuit analyzed the statutory language
of section 156(d)(1) and found that section 156(d)(1) is triggered by the date of the approval
letter: ’

According to section 156(d)(1), the sixty-day period begins “on the date
the product received permission under the provision of law under which the
applicable regulatory review period occurred for commercial marketing or use.”
Read in light of the definition of the “regulatory review period” in section
'156(g)(1)(B), this language is crystal clear. In this case, “the provision of law
under which the applicable regulatory review period occurred” is section 505 of
the FFDCA, which governs the approval of new drugs by the FDA. There is no
mention of DEA rescheduling or of 21 U.S.C. § 811(a), the statute under which
rescheduling takes place. Therefore, section 156(d)(1) admits of no other meaning
than that the sixty-day period begins on the FDA approval date.

According to the FDA, the date of marketing approval for all new drugs is
the date appearing on its approval letters. Two circuit courts of appeals have
confirmed this. ' '

Id. (emphases added).

MDCO attempts to avoid Unimed by narrowly characterizing the case on its specific
facts. Particularly, MDCO casts Unimed as concerning whether the 60-day filing window of
section 156(d)(1) started from the date that the DEA rescheduled the drug as opposed to the date
the product received permission for commercial marketing or use from the FDA and not whether
transmission of the FDA approval letter by courtesy facsimile after 4:30 p.m. triggers the date of
section 156(d)(1) — the issue here. See Reconsideration Request at 13-15. While Unimed did
not involve the precise facts here, Unimed construed the word “date” in section 156(d)(1). The
construction of the word “date” in section 156(d)(1) is central to deciding the issue here, and
Unimed, thus is applicable precedent. Moreover, even if Unimed is factually distinguishable, the
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USPTO’s independent construction of the term “date,” which the agency made exercising its
discretion as ordered by the district court to do, is consistent with Unimed.

IV.  The USPTO’s Construction of “Date” as “Calendar Day” is Consistent with the
USPTO’s Historic Practice

Although the USPTO has not previously addressed a dispute over whether the term date
means “calendar day” or “business day,” the USPTO has'in practice, since the enactment of the
Hatch-Waxman Act, applied a “calendar day” definition for all PTE applications where the FDA
issued what MDCO would characterize as an “after business hours” drug approval. See Smiley v.
Citibank (South Dakota), NA., 517 U.S. 735, 740 (1996) (“To be sure, agency mterpretatlons
that are of long standing come before us with a certain credential of reasonableness, since it is
rare that error would long persist.”’). For example, when the FDA provided a courtesy facsimile

-of the drug approval letter for the drug Betaxon on February 23, 2000, at 4:44 p.m., the USPTO
treated February 23, 2000, as the approval date for purposes of determining whether the PTE
application was timely under section 156(d)(1). See U.S. Patent No. 4,911,920 (February 23,
2000 Approval Letter) (Attachment 9). The USPTO has done the same in connection with other
PTE applications with similar facts. See also, e.g., U.S. Patent No. 5,951,974 (January 19, 2001
Approval Letter) and U.S. Patent No. 5,565,447 (May 7, 2001 Approval Letter) (Attachments 10
and 11, respectively).

The patent law includes various time periods (other than the one at issue) that are
measured from events or actions that do not take place in the USPTO, for example, the
publication of a description of the invention, the public use of an invention, the placement of an
invention on sale, the filing of an-application in a foreign country. In all instances, the USPTO
uses the calendar date for all trigger dates. Regarding the actions that the USPTO itself takes,
the agency, like the FDA, is not limited to “business hours.” For example, the USPTO grants
patents on holidays. See Kenneth W. Dobyns, The Patent Office Pony 123 (1997) (“. .
.beginning in early 1848 and continuing to date, patents have issued at noon every Tuesday, and
only on Tuesday, come fire, flood, war, riot or national holiday”) (Attachment 12). The trigger
date for periods measured from the grant of a patent (e.g., the due dates in 35 U.S.C. § 41(b) for
payment of maintenance fees, and the two-year period in 35 U.S.C. § 251 for filing a broadening
reissue) is measured from the calendar date on which the patent is granted, and does not carry
over to the next business day when a patent is granted on a federal holiday. The only instance
when the USPTO considers business versus non-business days is when a time period for taking
action before the USPTO ends on a non-business day. See 35 U.S.C. § 21(b).

Furthermore, it is the USPTO’s practice to accept filings until midnight on the date a
filing is due — thus a PTE application submitted to USPTO after “business hours” on the sixtieth
day after FDA approval would be deemed timely. See, e.g., Official Gazette Notice (Feb. 1,
2005) (Attachment 13); 37 C.F.R. § 1.10; 37 C.F.R. § 1.8;37 C.F.R. § 1.6 (permits timely ﬁlmg
by facsimile so long as actual receipt by USPTO is by midnight EST); USPTO Legal Framework
for EFS-Web 12, XXIII (Sept. 2008) (Attachment 14).




Decision re: PTE application for U.S. Patent No. 5,196,404 ‘ Page 11

V. MDCOQ’s Suggested Business-Day Interpretation of Section 156(d) Conflicts With
the FDA’s Interpretation of the Analogous Provision in Section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii)

MDCO argues that the USPTO should adopt a construction of section 156(d)’s date
language—i.e., “the date the product received permission . . . ,” that mirrors the FDA’s practice
of considering new drug applications that are electronically submitted after 4:30 p.m. to have -
been received on the next business day (the 4:30 rule). Reconsideration Request at 15, n.8;
17-18. '

‘The USPTO acknowledges that the FDA uses the 4:30 rule in the limited context of
electronic submissions to determine when a new drug application is submitted,” but the FDA
does not use that same rule when assessing the date that same application is approved. Critical
to the question of whether the FDA and the USPTO are interpreting the term “date” similarly is
the fact that while the word “date” only appears once in the provision interpreted by the USPTO,
35 U.S.C. § 156(d)(1), the word “date” appears twice in the provision interpreted by the FDA, 35
U.S.C. § 156(g)(1)(B)(i1):

(ii) the period beginning on the date the application was initially

submitted for the approved product under section 351, subsection

(b) or section 505, or section 507 and ending on the date such
. application was approved under such section.

(Emphasis added). That provision defines a portion of the regulatory review period in terms of a
beginning date and an ending date. The FDA only applies the 4:30 rule to the beginning date.
That beginning date is not relevant to the 60-day filing window. provided in section 156(d)(1)
because the date an applicant submits a new drug application to the FDA is unrelated to a time
period that turns on a subsequent approval of that application. Instead, it is the ending date in
section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii) that is relevant to 60-day filing window of section 156(d)(1) because
the conclusion of the review period marks the beginning PTE application filing window. By
rule, the FDA considers the date of approval — which of course marks the end of the review
period — to be the “date of issuance of the approval letter.” 21 C.F.R. § 314.105(a). The
USPTO cannot speak to whether the FDA’s approach to interpreting section 156(g)(1)(B)(ii) is
internally inconsistent, as MDCO argues. Reconsideration Request at 15, n.8. In any event, the
USPTO should not compound that perceived inconsistency by applying the 4:30 rule to the
ending date of the approval period, i.e., to the date that the FDA does not apply the 4:30 rule.
Thus, the USPTO concludes that the best approach is to interpret section 156(d)’s date language
in harmony with the FDA’s approach to interpreting the ending date language in section

156(g)(1)(B)(ii).

> It is worth noting that MDCO does not assert that the FDA’s 4:30 rule was used to
determine the submission date of the ANGIOMAX application or that the ANGIOMAX
application was even subject to the 4:30 rule, i.e., MDCO does not assert it filed an electronic
application. In other words, although MDCO implicitly makes the equitable argument that an
outgoing approval should be treated like an incoming submission, it never asserts that its
application should be subject to that equitable comity.
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VI. MDCO’s Suggested Interpretation of 156(g)(1)(B)(ii) Is Unpersuasive For
' Additional Reasons

Beyond the disharmony it would create with the FDA’s interpretation of section
156(g)(1)(B)(ii), there are other problems with MDCQ’s arguments in favor of the 4:30 rule.
First, the FDA’s refusal to accept new drug application submissions after 4:30 p.m. bears no
logical connection to whether a facsimile transmission sent after that time is received on the
same calendar day. MDCO’s concern is with notice. Reconsideration Request at 11. But
MDCO fails to articulate why its ability to receive notice is linked to the FDA’s hours for .

. accepting new drug applications. Instead, MDCO’s ability to receive notice logically turns on
whether if was closed for business when the FDA sent its courtesy facsimile on December 15,
2000. MDCO is careful to steer clear of urging actual notice because it has never asserted that it
was not on actual notice of FDA approval on December 15, 2000. MDCO candidly admits that
any standard that turns on actual notice would be “difficult to administer” and involve
“potentially burdensome fact-finding that the [USPTO] is not equipped to undertake.”
Reconsideration Request at 20. "

Second, the FDA was conducting business after 4:30 p.m. on December 15, 2000, and
any other time it takes action. The “business” of the FDA is drug approval, and MDCO agrees
that the regulatory review period here “ended on December 15, 2000.” .Reconsideration Request
at 21, n.14. Because MDCO also agrees that the FDA’s act of approval is what ends the review
period, id. at 20-21 (acknowledging that the end of the review period under séction
156(g)(1)(B)(ii) is the date of FDA’s approval), and because that approval occurred after 4:30
p.m., MDCO cannot seriously argue that the FDA was not conducting business when it sent the
courtesy facsimile to MDCO. Although it might not have been accepting new drug applications
at the time it approved Angiomax and almost immediately informed MDCO of that fact, it was
clearly conducting the very business desired by MDCO. In addition, MDCO’s permission for
commercial market or use of Angiomax began on December 15, 2000, and was not delayed until
the next business day (i.e., December 18, 2000) as a consequence of when, during the day on

‘December 15, 2000, the FDA transmitted this courtesy facsimile to MDCO. ‘The USPTO
declines to adopt the non sequitur rule that a valid FDA approval should not count until the next
business day just because the FDA was not accepting new applications at the time it issued its
approval of an application that had been filed years earlier.

Third, MDCO fails to consider that a 4:29 p.m. approval would deprive an applicant for a
patent term extension of the full 60-day period just as much as a 4:31 p.m. approval. Similarly, a
facsimile transmission from the FDA of an approval at 4:35 p.m. east coast time to a drug’
sponsor in California, would, under MDCO’s rationale, be outside the normal business hours of
the FDA for purposes of triggering the 60-day filing window of section 156(d)(1) but would
have provided many “business hours™ for the California sponsor to commercially market or use
its new drug.

Finally, MDCOQO’s argument in favor of a 4:30 rule is made possible because the FDA
provided a courtesy facsimile to Applicant. Nothing in the Federal Food, Drug, or Cosmetic Act
or FDA regulations requires the FDA to facsimile notification of FDA approval to a drug
sponsor. Had the FDA notified MDCO of the approval of its drug via postal mail only, MDCO
could not allege that the term “date” in section 156(d)(1) means “business day” because there
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would be no after business hours transmission of approval from the FDA to quibble over. Thus,
this entire litigation was made possible solely because the FDA chose to extend a courtesy to
MDCO and provide as prompt notification of FDA approval as possible.

VII. MDCQO’s Remaining Fairness Arguments Regarding Section 156

Urging that the USPTO should interpret section 156(d)(1) in a way that benefits it,
MDCO argues that the USPTO “has historically developed policies to avoid the unnecessary loss
of patent rights.” Reconsideration Request at 19. MDCO fails to appreciate, however, that those
. policies are provided by statutory provisions absent here. For example, the USPTO allows filing
on the next business day when a time period ends on a weekend or holiday, 37 C.F.R. § 1.7, and
allows certain filing dates to be met by timely deposit of the filing with the U.S. Postal Service,
37 C.F.R. § 1.8. Both rules are specifically authorized by statute. See 35 U.S.C. § 21. Likewise,
the USPTO will, under certain circumstances, allow revival of a patent that expires for failue to
pay a fee, or revival of an application that is abandoned for failure to take action, but only
because Congress authorized the USPTO to do so. 35 U.S.C. § 41(c) (patent maintenance fees)
35 U.S.C. §§ 41(a)(7) and 133 (application abandonment). Furthermore, the USPTO can even
extend the time for appealing its Board decision to the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal
Circuit, and accept late priority claims to earlier applications, but only because both practices are
authorized by statute. 35 U.S.C. §§ 142 (Federal Circuit Appeal), 120 (priority). '

The point is that there are indeed many instances where the USPTO prevents loss of
rights due to an applicant, appellant, or patentee’s failure to meet certain deadlines. But in all of
- those cases, Congress has provided the avenue for the relief available at the agency, and thus to
the applicant or patentee. In light of that, it speaks volumes that Congress provided no avenue to
allow the USPTO to accept a late PTE application filed under section 156. Given Congress’s
unquestionable awareness that lawyers make mistakes, and the various provisions it provided to
redress those mistakes, Congress’s failure to include a similar provision related to the section
156(d)(1) 60-day filing window compels the conclusion that Congress did not intend the
provision to be remedial, or to bée interpreted in a way that benefits late-filing PTE applicants.

Finally, although not specifically advanced in the Reconsideration Request, the USPTO
notes that in its decision, the district court referred to section 156 as “remedial.” While section
156, and more generally the Hatch-Waxman Act, in part, was certainly meant to remedy the loss
of effective patent term due to lengthy regulatory delay, it does not follow that every provision
within section 156 is “remedial.” In section 156(d)(1), Congress provided a 60-day window
within which a patentee can file its PTE application. No provision for extension of the time
period is included. By creating such a non-extendable period, Congress provided a date-certain
by which all players would know their future rights. Lastly, interpreting section 156(d)(1) “is
purely a case of statutory interpretation, so the equitable considerations” are inappropriate.
Unimed, 888 F.2d at 829.

" VII. MDCO?s Situation is Not a Result of USPTO’s “Calendar Day” Construction

At its core, MDCO’s situation ‘appears to turn on its failure to correctly docket the due
date for filing the patent term extension application with the USPTO. That is, instead of
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correctly docketing the 60-day filing window deadline as February 12, 2001 — 60 days from
December 15, 2000, MDCO seemingly docketed the deadline as February 15, 2001 — 2 months
from December 15, 2000. Because 60 days is not the same as two months in all instances due to
the varying number of days in a month, MDCO’s docketing mistake lead to its missed deadline.
Dr. Clive Meanwell, Chairman and CEO of MDCO, admitted before Congress that MDCO’s
situation’is the product of “human error” and not the USPTO long’s standing “calendar day”
definition of “date” in section 156(d)(1):

The FDA approved Angiomax for the narrow initial use in coronary angioplasty
on December 15, 2000 . . . . But then Auman error intervened. The current filing
provision of Hatch-Waxman requires an application to be filed within 60 days of
FDA'’s approval of the drug in question. Unfortunately, the 60-day requirement
was evidently mistaken for a two-month requirement, and our patent restoration
application was filed on February 14, 2001, within a two-month window, but one
day late for the actual 60-day deadline.

A Bill to Amend Title 35, U.S. Code, To Conform Certain Filing Provisions Within the Patent
and Trademark Office: Hearing on H.R. 5120 Before the Subcomm. on Courts, the Internet, and
Intellectual Property of the H. Comm. On the Judiciary, 109" Cong. 11 (2006) (emphases
added). Dr. Meanwell made this admission under oath, not in a litigation-induced setting. And
who better to know exactly why MDCO filed its PTE application on February 14, 2001, than the
head of its company.

Furthermore, MDCO has made numerous attempts to secure legislation to remedy its
situation rather than bring timely suit against the USPTO or the FDA. Specifically, the USPTO
issued a final agency decision on April 26, 2007. MDCO could have brought suit immediately
thereafter. But it did not do so. Instead, it spent at least the past three years lobbying Congress
for a legislative fix to its problem. See, e.g., S. 1785, 109™ Cong.; H.R. 1178, 110" Cong.;

S. 1145, 110™ Cong.; H.R. 6344, 110th,Cong. Thus, it was MDCO’s choice to place itself on the
courthouse steps on the eve of its patent expiration. Just as MDCO waited until the very last
minute to file its PTE application, and then some, it likewise waited to-the very last minute to
seek redress of the USPTO’s adverse patent term extension decision. MDCQ’s dire situation is
therefore exclusively of its own making.

Finally, a PTE application is a relatively short filing. The statute requires only certain
minimal items of information. See 35 U.S.C. § 156 (d)(1)(A)-(E). Consequently, it is not as if a
patent owner needs a full 60-days to assemble all of the necessary information and/or prepare the
application. In fact, all the information that MDCO needed, except for its FDA approval, was
available well before December 15, 2000. And on December 15, 2000, MDCO received the
missing FDA approval. Thus, MDCO was equipped on December 16, 2000, to file its PTE
application. An applicant for PTE gains no advantage, nor does it receive any additional restored
term, by waiting to the last minute to file its PTE.
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IX. MDCQO’s Patent Term Extension Application Was Filed TwolDays Late

As explained earlier, the trigger date for the 60-day filing window of section 156(d)(1) is.
the date stamped on the face of the FDA approval letter, here, December 15, 2000. MDCO has
repeatedly acknowledged to various governmental bodies as well as the public that the date of
FDA approval of its drug was December 15, 2000:

o Inits patent term extension appliication to the USPTO, Applicant stated three times that
the FDA approved its drug on December 15, 2000. For example, it stated: “The date on
which the NDA was approved was 15 December 2000.” PTE Appllcatlon at 4.

e In testimony before Congress as part of its lobbying efforts for a legislative resolution to
its untimely filing PTE application filing, Dr. Clive Meanwell, Chairman and CEO of
MDCO, stated that “[t]he FDA approved Angiomax for the narrow initial use in coronary
angioplasty on December 15, 2000.” 2006 Legislation.

¢ Inits filing to the Security and Exchange:Commission, Applicant stated that “[i]n
December 2000, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved Angiomax(R)
(bivalirudin), the Company’s lead product, for use as an anticoagulant in patients with
- unstable angina undergoing percutaneous transluminal coronary angioplasty (PTCA).”
SEC Statement at 84.

e . Inits Annual Report for 2000 to its shareholders and the public, Applicant notified stated-
that “[o]n December 15, 2000, the Company received FDA approval for Angiomax.”
Annual Report at 25-26.

With December 15, 2000, as the start of the 60-day filing window of section 156(d)(1),
Applicant’s patent term extension filing on February 14, 2001, was 2 days late. Thus, MDCO
does not qualify for a patent term extension under section 156. Therefore, the application for
extension of the patent term of U.S. Patent No. 5,196,404 under section 156 is DENIED. THIS
IS A FINAL AGENCY DECISION.

Further correspondence with respect to this matter should be addressed as follows:

By mail: Mail Stop Hatch-Waxman PTE
Commissioner for Patents
Post Office Box 1450
Alexandria, VA 22313-1450

"

o/ Bt~
Robert W. Bahr

Acting Associate Commissioner

for Patent Examination Policy
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY'S

l

August 2000:

We completed our
initial public offering
(IPO) in which we
raised $101.4 million
by selling 6.9 million
shares of Common
Stock, including the
underwriters’ over-
allotment option, at
$16.00 per share.

September 2000:

We initiated with
NIH a double-blind
randomized placebo-
controlled Phase 2
trial of our second
product, CTV-05, as
an adjunct to standard
antibiotic treatment
of bacterial vaginosis
(BV). CTV-05 is a pro-
prietary biotherapeutic
agent with a poten-
tially broad range

of applications in the
treatment of gynecol-
ogical and reproduc-
tive infections.

November 2000:

We initiated

the REPLACE

trial program—a
large randomized
Phase 3b trial com-
paring Angiomax
(bivalirudin), our lead
product, to heparin in
patients undergoing
percutaneous coro-
nary intervention
including intravenous
GP IIb/1Ila inhibitors.
We have since com-
pleted enrollment of
the first part of the
trial and will soon
begin the second part.

We began a Phase 2
trial of Angiomax in
patients undergoing
coronary artery
bypass graft surgery
(CABG) without the
use of a bypass pump.

December 2000:

We gained marketing
approval from the
U.S. Food and Drug
Administration, or
FDA, for Angiomax
for use as an antico-
agulant in combina-
tion with aspirin in
patients with unstable
angina undergoing
coronary balloon

" angioplasty.

We signed a commer-
cialization agreement
with Innovex Inc. to
provide us with a
sales force, sales terri-
tory management
systems and opera-
tional support for the
launch of Angiomax.

January 2001:

We began selling
Angiomax in cardiac
catheterization
laboratories in the
United States target-
ing approximately
700 hospitals where
about 95% of the
angioplasty proce-
dures are performed.
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COMMERCIALIZED

During 2000 we transformed The Medicines

Company from a private company focused
on product development to a public commercial
enterprise. In August, we raised $101.4 million by
selling 6.9 million shares of Common Stock,
including the underwriters’ over-allotment option,
at $16.00 per share. In December 2000 we gained
marketing approval for Angiomax (bivalirudin),
our lead product, for use in patients with unsta-

ble angina undergoing coronary angioplasty.

Having achieved these significant milestones,
we recruited experienced and dynamic commer-
cial leadership and assembled a quality 65-person
field sales organization dedicated solely to selling
Angiomax in the United States. With extensive
direct hospital selling and national account expe-
rience, the marketing and sales team will target
both hospital decision-makers and group pur-

chasing organizations.

The features and benefits of Angiomax pres-

ent our customers with an exciting medical and

economic opportunity. We believe that this
opportunity will translate into better care for
patients and more efficient management of car-

diac catheterization laboratory businesses.

The FDA’s approval of Angiomax was based
on data from a broad group of patients undergo-
ing angioplasty with new onset severe angina,
accelerating angina, angina at rest, including both
patients with pain within the month prior to
study entry and those with recurrent angina

developing within two weeks after a heart attack.

Angiomax treatment is associated with fewer
ischemic and bleeding complications than heparin
providing the basis for better patient care and
improved hospital economics. Given the clinical
features and benefits of Angiomax and its eco-
nomic advantages, we believe that it has the
potential to replace heparin as the foundation

anticoagulant in angioplasty.

To support the commercialization of Angiomax,
we have initiated educational programs includ-
ing symposia at major medical conferences, a far-
reaching speaker training program for physicians,
nurses and pharmacists and a series of peer-
reviewed and sponsored publications designed to
highlight the medical and economic value of
A"ngiomax. We are grateful for the support of
some of the world’s leading academic institutions

in helping to implement these programs.

We began the REPLACE clinical trial program
as an initiative to enable professionals in the
cardiac catheterization laboratory to learn how
to integrate Angiomax into their own practices.

In addition, this program will generate additional



clinical information for Angiomax used with
and without GP IIb/Illa platelet inhibitors and
stents. From its initiation in late 2000, REPLACE
has progressed very quickly with enrollment of
part one completed in February 2001. We expect
to begin part two in the near future.

Beyond angioplasty we are also developing
Angiomax for use in the treatment of arterial
thrombosis. To date clinical investigators have
administered Angiomax to over 16,000 patients
with a series of trials underway. The 17,000 patient
Phase 3 trial in heart attack patients called HERO-2
is nearing completion. We have a Phase 3 pro-
gram studying Angiomax in angioplasty patients
who experience allergic reactions to heparin. In
November 2000 we began a Phase 2 program
studying Angiomax in patients undergoing CABG
without the use of a bypass pump. We have plans
to commence a Phase 3 program to evaluate the

use of Angiomax in patients with unstable angina.

Our development objective is to expand the
use of Angiomax so that it can become the lead-
ing replacement for heparin in acute hospital
care—a substantial commercial opportunity.
Heparin is used to treat at least five million hospi-
talized patients per year in the United States. We
believe the medical opportunity is compelling;
patients who are treated with heparin are at risk
for excessive bleeding, thrombosis and allergic
reactions. In addition, the dosing and therapeutic
response to heparin are difficult to predict.
Although heparin was discovered in 1906 and
has been on the market for more than 50 years,
the manufacturing method of this animal derived

substance has changed little during that time and

batch-to-batch variability in biological activity is
typical. We, and many experts in the field, believe
that it is time to move intravenous anti-thrombin

treatment into the 21st century.

We plan for Angiomax to become the corner-
stone of the hospital care franchise we plan to
build. We intend to build this franchise through -
acquisitions and commercialization of additional
hospital products that meet our investment crite-
ria while utilizing our core strengths in hospital

selling and product development.

In January 2000 we announced the acquisition
of CTV-05 a strain of lactobacillus found in humans
with a potential range of applications in the areas
of urogenital and reproductive health. With the
National Institutes of Health, we began a large,
randomized clinical trial of CTV-05 as an adjunct
to standard antibiotic treatment of bacterial

vaginosis (BV).

The Medicines Company enters 2001 as a com-
mercial enterprise providing an exciting new
standard of care for patients undergoing angio-
plasty. We are committed to making Angiomax a
market leader in angioplasty, expanding the uses
of Angiomax in hospital care and building a valu-

able pharmaceutical business.

Sincerely,

-

/!
Fars

Fil
H t fAn e s
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V{{/vxﬁ,‘»‘«n QUVAS

Clive Meanwell, M.D., Ph.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director



ANGIOMAX

COMMERCIALIZATION

effect of a given dose of heparin is unpredictable
and therefore requires close monitoring. Heparin
can cause dangerous immunological reactions and
can be problematic in patients with impaired kid-

ney or liver function.

Angiomax Potential Advantages

The Clinical data has demonstrated the effec-
tiveness and safety of Angiomax compared to
heparin. Angiomax, as a direct thrombin inhibitor,
is equally effective on thrombin in the clot as
well as on thrombin circulating in the blood.
As a reversible thrombin inhibitor, Angiomax
has demonstrated consistent clinically mean-

ingful reductions in bleeding

and ischemic complications

as compared to heparin.

Douglas Losordo, M.D., St. Elizabeth’s Hospital Angiomax is a syn-
and Carrie Bedl, R.N., Regional Account Specialist, thetic peptide that
The Medicines Company provides predictable

levels of anticoagulation

Angioplasty Market . . . .
’ in all patients, including
There are approximately 686,000 inpatient . . )
those with impaired liver

coronary angioplasty procedures a year in the
y anglopiasty p y or kidney function.

United States. Coronary angioplasty is a proce-
FDA Approval

In December 2000, we

dure used to restore normal blood flow in an

obstructed artery in the heart. Heparin is used in

the vast majority of angioplasty patients in the received FDA marketing

United States and has long been considered the approval for Angiomax for use as

foundation anticoagulant for coronary angio- an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin

plasty, although it is associated with significant in_patients with unstable angina undergoing

clinical limitations. coronary balloon angioplasty. The approval of

Angiomax was based primarily on data from
Heparin Clinical Limitations R o . . .

double-blinded clinical trials in 4,312 patients

Because it is an indirect thrombin inhibitor, . X

undergoing coronary angioplasty for new onset
heparin is ineffective on thrombin when clots . . . : i .

angina, accelerating episodes of angina or angina
have formed. Patients who receive heparin have a o L .
at rest. In clinical trials in angjoplasty compared
high incidence of bleeding. The anticoagulant




"We believe Angiomax will become the
leading replacement for heparin in acute

cardiovascular care,”

Paul Puccioni
Senior Director, Commercial and Clinical
Development

"With our years of experience in hospital marketing
and sales, we are well positioned to launch
Angiomax in the US onﬁcoaguianf market.”

to heparin, Angiomax showed a 22% reduction in
the risk of death, heart attack or the need for
emergency coronary procedures. In addition,
Angiomax reduced the likelihood of major bleed-
ing by 62%. We began selling Angiomax in the
United States in January 2001.

Sales Force

We have a 65 person sales effort with years of -

direct selling and national account experience ded-
icated solely to selling Angiomax. Ouf sales force,
with an average of four and a half years of selling
experience, is targeting approximately 700 hospi-
tals. These targeted hospitals perform the vast
majority of angioplasty procedures in the United
States. We have signed a commercialization agree-
ment with Innovex Inc. to provide us with 52
members of our sales effort dedicated exclusively
to selling Angiomax. The Innovex agreement also
provides us with sales territory management sys-
tems and operational support in the field. We are
working actively with a number of major group

purchasing organizations to establish contracts.

REPLACE

To support the launch of Angiomax in angio-
plasty, we initiated the REPLACE clinical trial
program. This two-part trial will examine the use
of Angiomax versus heparin with and without

a GP IIb/Illa platelet inhibitor. In February 2001

@

Thomas Quinn
Vice President, Sales and Marketing

we completed enrollment
in part one of the REPLACE
program and expect to
begin part two of the trial

in the near future.

Medical Education

To support the launch
we initiated a medical edu-
cation program including
a series of publications and
educational symposia. In
addition to the publications
to date, there are numer-
ous manuscripis regarding
Angiomax either in press
or in scientific review. To
educate the physicians,

nurses and pharmacists,

we have an Angiomax
speaker training program that will develop more
than 600 physician, pharmacist and nurse speak-
ers to facilitate the appropriate cost-effective use

of Angiomax.

With our expérienced sales and marketing
team and the product attributes of Angiomax, we
believe that Angiomax will become the founda-
tion anticoagulant replacing heparin in angio-

plaéty patients.



EcoNOMICs OF

ANGIOMAX

"We believe Angiomax will enable hospitals angioplasty procedure with a stent was approxi-

fo provide better patient care while improving mately $11,500. The average cost to a hospital of

the economics of the hospital.” performing an uncomplicated angioplasty proce-

dure is approximately $9,500. As a result, an
Stephanie Plent, M.D.

Senlor Director, Medical Policy and Economics uncomplicated angioplasty procedure may result

Angioplasty Costs
Coronary angioplasty
has been performed for
approximately twenty years.
Over time, the procedure
has improved with the
introduction of new drugs,
including fibrinolytics and
platelet inhibitors and new
devices, such as stents. As
these new items are added
to the procedure, the asso-
ciated cost has increased

significantly.

Angioplasty
Reimbursement

The majority of hospitals

are reimbursed according
to contract rates that pay a fixed amount for
each coronary angioplasty regardless of the
costs incurred by the hospital. This is true for
all Medicare cases (the Diagnosis Related Group
prospective payment system) and most commer-
cial insurance arrangements. In this payment
environment, hospitals are at risk of losing money
when clinical complications occur and costs
exceed the fixed reimbursement. In 1999 the aver-

age hospital reimbursement for an uncomplicated

in an average $2,000 per case profit for the hospital.

Cost of Clinical Complications

When complications arise, the hospital could
lose money. On average a hospital incurs an addi-
tional $7,700 cost to treat a patient who has a
heart attack, an additional $9,600 cost for a
patient undergoing a repeat coronary angioplasty,
an additional $20,800 cost for a patient requiring
CABG and an additional $10,700 cost for manag-
ing a patient who requires a blood transfusion.
While the hospital will receive greater reimburse-
ment for a CABG, there will be no additional
reimbursement for a patient who experiences a
heart attack, repeat angioplasty or blood transfu-

sion as a’complication. Therefore the associated

| Hospital bears visk oI cofe cost:
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costs may result in an average net loss for the
hospital of $5,700 for a heart attack, $7,600 for a
repeat coronary angioplasty procedure and
$8,700 for a blood transfusion. Several studies
have shown the community transfusion rate for
angioplasty cases is approximately 5% making
bleeding the most frequent and costly complica-

tion of angioplasty.

Economics of Heparin

Even as techniques, drug treatments and
devices have improved, heparin has remained the
foundation anticoagulant in angioplasty. Heparin,
a generic drug with numerous manufacturers,
has a low acquisition cost. However, due to its
associated adverse events and bleeding complica-
tions, using heparin can result in significant

hospital costs.

Angiomax Economic Advantage

Angiomax has been shown in clinical trials
to decrease both ischemic and bleeding compli-
cations. Fewer complications during coronary
angioplasty procedures translate into cost avoid-
ance for the hospital and therefore overall

cost savings.

If published complications ‘costs were applied
to the improvement in complication rates seen
with Angiomax in the pivotal trials, Angiomax
use would result in reduction of overall hospital
costs. The reduction in costs would range from

$591 to $843 per patient.

Helping Hospitals Understand Value

To enable hospitals to evaluate the potential
economic impact of using Angiomax compared to
heparin during angioplasty, we have created the
Angiomax Value Analyzer (AVA). The AVA, a
software analytical tool, helps hospitals analyze
the cost of ischemic and bleeding complications.
The AVA allows a hospital to customize the analy-
sis to its particular practice pattern, complication

rates and cost experience.

The AVA tool is one of many
tools by which our sales and +}
national account team can
work with our customers to
provide solutions to their clini-
cal and economic problems and 2
help them make valuable improvements in the

hospital care of patients.




DEVELOPING ADDITIONAL

APPLICATIONS FOR_ ANGIOMAX

Angioplasty

Acute Myocardial Infarction

Heparin Induced Thrombocytopenia
with or without Thrombosis

Unstable Angina

Deep Vein Thrombosis
Coronary Artery Bypass Surgery
End Stage Renal Disease

Diagnostic Catheterization

Angiomax Vision

We believe that Angiomax will beéome the
leading replacement for heparin in hospital care.
In the United States, heparin is the most widely
used acute care anticoagulant and is used to treat
approximately five million hospitalized patients
per year. We have development programs designed
to expand the applications of Angiomax for use in

the treatment of ischemic heart disease.

Angiomax Development Strategy

" Our objectives in developing Angiomax are to
establish the basis of clinical and economic value
for Angiomax in the marketplace and to obtain

regulatory approval in each of three settings in

the hospital: in the cardiac catheterization labora-
tory, in the emergency room and in the oéerating
room. Angiomax has consistently demonstrated
reduced ischemia and bleeding when compared
to heparin. Given this profile we believe that
Angiomax provides a broad clinical and com-
mercial opportunity in the hospital treatment of

patients with ischemic heart disease.

Cardiac Catheterization Laboratory

Angiomax development programs to date
have provided clinical experience in the use of
Angiomax in over 12,000 angioplasty patients.
This includes clinical data from the pivotal Phase 3

trials in angioplasty that demonstrated a reduction




Christina Correla
Senior Director, Product Development

in ischemic complications and bleeding compli-

cations for Angiomax patients in comparison to
heparin patients. The Phase 2 CACHET trials
studying Angion{ax plus provisional ReoPro
(abciximab) versus heparin with ReoPro in angio-
plasty patients showed a significant reduction
in ischemic and bleeding c-omplications for the

Angiomax patients.

In November 2000 we initiated the REPLACE
program, a Phase 3b clinical trial program in
angioplasty. This two-part trial will examine the
use of Angiomax with and without a GP IIb/Illa
platelet inhibitor. In February 2001 we completed
enrollment in part one of the REPLACE program
and expect to begin the second part of the trial in

the near future.

We have an ongoing Phase 3 trial program
studying the use of Angiomax for the treatment
of patients undergoing angioplasty who have in
the past experienced reduced platelet count and
clotting due to an allergic reaction to heparin

(HIT/HITTS).

Emergency Room
In the United States there are approximately
870,000 heart attack and 950,000 unstable angina

patients who were treated in a hospital in 1997.

Sonia Barton Loar
Phorm. D., Senior Director. Regulatory Affoirs

Angiomax has been studied in three Phase 2
trials in heart attack patients treated with aspirin
and fibrinolytics. In these studies the use of
Angiomax resulted in normal blood flow in
34% more patients than heparin and resulted in
substantially less bleeding. In Phase 2 studies
in unstable angina patients, Angiomax showed
a reduction in death and heart attack rates in

comparison to placebo doses of anticoagulant.

HERO-2, our Phase 3 trial program studying
the use of Angiomax for the treatment of patients
who have suffered a heart attack, is nearing
completion. Heart attack patients in this study
are randomized to Angiomax or heparin prior
to treatment with a fibrinolytic. At present
we have recruited over 16,000 of the planned
17,000 patients into the HERO-2 trial. We are
also actively planning for a Phase 3 program in

patients with acute coronary syndromes.

Operating Room

Heparin is used extensively in the operatin'g
room in cardiac surgery, vascular surgery and
orthopedic surgery and a variety of other opera-
tions. Angiomax has been studied as an anti-
coagulant in a Phase 1 program in coronary
artery bypass graft surgery and a Phase 2 pro-
gram in patients undergoing orthopedic surgical

procedures.

In November 2000 we initiated a 100 patient
Phase 2 trial of Angiomax in patients undergoing
coronary artery bypass graft surgery without the

use of a bypass pump.



STRATEGY FOR

GROWTH

.

Strategic Objectives .
We plan to continue to acquire, develop
and commercialize late-stage product candidates
or approved products that
make a clinical difference in
critical care medicine. Our
strategy is to acquire late-
stage development product
candidates with an antici-
pated time to market of four
years or less and existing
clinical data which provides
reasonable evidence of safety
and efficacy. In addition we
aim to acquire approved
products that can be mar-
keted by our commercial

organization.

We believe the changes
underway in the pharma-
ceutical and biotechnology
industries will continue to

result in the availability of

high quality products or

. Andrew Sternlicht, M.D.
Senior Director, Business Development

Board Certified Anesthesiologist and attractive investment char-
Critical Care Specialist -

product candidates with

acteristics. We continually
assess potential product acquisitions to deter-
mine whether they meet the investment require-

ments we have established.

Hospital Care Franchise

With our team’s operational experience in
hospital marketing and sales, we plan to build
a hospital care franchise in which Angiomax
will be the cornerstone product. To expand the
applications of Angiomax in the hospital, we
have clinical trial programs examining the use of
Angiomax in angioplasty patients, in heart attack
patients, in patients undergoing angioplasty who
experience reduced platelet count and clotting
due to an allergic reaction to heparin and in
patients undergoing coronary artery bypass graft
surgery without the use of a bypass pump. In
addition, we are actively considering potential
product candidates that can be effectively sold by

our hospital field force.

Specialty Anti-Infective Franchise

We are also focused on specialty anti-
infectives. We are developing a product, CTV-05,
a proprietary biotherapeutic agent with a broad
range of potential applications in the treatment
of gynecological and reproductive infections.
CTV-05 is currently being studied in a double-
blind, placebo-controlled Phase 2 trial supported
by NTH, examining the safety and effectiveness of
the compound as an adjunct to antibiotic therapy

in the treatment of bacterial vaginosis.



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below, we provide you with our selected con-
solidated financial data. We have prepared this information
using our audited consolidated financial statements for the
period July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 1996
and for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1998, 1999 and
2000. The pro forma net loss per share data reflects the con-
version of our convertible riotes, and accrued interest, and the

conversion of our outstanding convertible preferred stock,
and accrued dividends, into common stock upon the closing
of our initial public offering in August 2000. The pro forma
net loss per share data does not include the effect of any
options or warrants outstanding. For further discussion of
earnings per share, please see note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Period from

Inception
(July 31, 1996)
Through :
December 31, Year Ended December 31,
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
In thousands, except share and per share data

Statements of Operations Data
Operating expenses »

Research and development $ 827 % 16,044 $ 24005 $ 30345 $ 39,572

Selling, general and administrative 702 2,421 6,248 5,008 15,034

Total operating expenses 1,529 18,465 30,253 35,353 54,606

Loss from operations (1,529) (18,465) (30,253) (35,353) (54,606)
Interest income (expense), net 62 659 1,302 640 (16,686)
Net loss (1,467) (17,806) (28,951) (34,713) (71,292)
Dividends and accretion to redemption value of :

redeemable convertible preferred stock (118) (2,018) (3,959) (5,893) (30,343)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $ (1,585) $ (19,824) $ (32910) $ (40,606) $ (101,635)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders

per common share, basic and diluted $ (2.8) $ (4.06) $ (603) $ (80.08) $ (8.43)
Shares used in computing net loss attributable to

common stockholders per common share, basic

and diluted 557,178 4,887,230 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275
Unaudited pro forma net loss attributable to common '

stockholders per common share, basic and diluted $ (194) $ (2.10)
Shares used in computing unaudited pro forma

net loss attributable to common stockholders

per common share, basic and diluted 17,799,876 24,719,075

As of December 31,
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000
In thousands

Balance Sheet Data
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and

accrued interest receivable $ 3,421 $ 25416 $ 29,086 $ 7,238 $ 80,718
Working capital (deficit) 3,174 18,779 24,570 (4,103) 68,023
Total assets 3,473 25,595 29,831 7,991 84,363
Convertible notes - — — 5,776 —
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 4,793 40,306 79,384 85,277 —
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (1,585) (21,409) (54,319) (94,925) (196,560)
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity (1,582) (21,387) (54,266) (94,558) 69,239




THE MEDICINES COMPANY

MANAGEMENT'S DIscUSSION AND ANALYsSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview

We acquire, develop and comumercialize biopharmaceutical
products that are in late stages of development or have been
approved for marketing. In December 2000, we received mar-
keting approval from the FDA for Angiomax, our lead product,
for use as an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin in
patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon
angioplasty. Coronary angioplasty is a procedure used to
restore normal blood flow in an obstructed artery in the heart.
We began selling Angiomax in the United States in January
2001. In August and September 2000, we consummated our ini-
tial public offering resulting in $101.4 million in net proceeds.

Since our inception, we have incurred significant losses
and, as of December 31, 2000, had a deficit accumulated dur-
ing the development stage of $196.6 million. Most of our
expenditures to date have been for research and development
activities, selling, general and administrative expenses and
interest expense. Research and development expenses repre-
sent costs incurred for product acquisition, clinical trials,
activities relating to regulatory filings and manufacturing
development efforts. We generally outsource our clinical and
manufacturing development activities to independent organi-
zations to maximize efficiency and minimize our internal
overhead. We expense our research and development costs as
they are incurred. Selling, general and administrative
expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses,
general corporate activities and costs associated with initial
product marketing activities. Interest expense consists of costs
associated with convertible notes which were issued to fund
our business activities.

We expect to continue to incur operating losses for the
foreseeable future as a result of research and development
activities attributable to new and existing products and costs
associated with the commercialization and launch of our
products. In 2001, we expect increased cash outlays for
research and development costs associated with our ongoing
clinical trials and manufacturing development activities. We
also expect increased outlays during 2001 for sales, general
and administrative costs related to the commercial launch in
the United States of Angiomax. We will need to generate sig-
nificant revenues to achieve and maintain profitability.
Through December 31, 2000, we have had no revenues from
any product sales, and we have not achieved profitability on a
quarterly or annual basis.

In March 1997, we acquired exclusive worldwide commer-
cial rights from Biogen, Inc. to the technology, patents, trade-
marks, inventories, know-how and all regulatory and clinical
information related to Angiomax. Under the Biogen license,
we paid $2.0 million upon execution of the license agreement
and are obligated to pay up to an additional $8.0 million upon

reaching certain Angiomax sales milestones, including the
first sale of Angiomax for certain indications. In addition, we
will pay royalties on future sales of Angiomax and on any
sublicense royalties earned.

In August 1999, we acquired exclusive worldwide rights
from GyneLogix, Inc. to the patents and know-how related to
the biotherapeutic agent CTV-05. Under the GyneLogix license,
we have paid $400,000 and are obligated to pay up to an addi-
tional $100,000 upon reaching certain development and regula-
tory milestones and to fund agreed-upon operational costs of
GyneLogix related to the development of CTV-05 on a monthly
basis subject to a limitation of $50,000 per month. In addition,
we will pay royalties on future sales of CTV-05 and on any
sublicense royalties earned.

In July 1998, we acquired from Immunotech S.A., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Beckman Coulter, Inc., exclusive
worldwide rights to IS-159, which is under clinical investiga-
tion for the treatment of acute migraine headache. Under the
Immunotech license, we paid $1.0 million upon execution of
the license agreement and are obligated to pay up to an addi-
tional $4.5 million upon reaching certain development and
regulatory milestones. In addition, we will pay royalties on
future sales of IS-159 and on any sublicense royalties earned.
We are seeking a collaborator to develop IS-159 and do not
intend to initiate further studies of 15-159 until we enter into a
collaborative agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2000, we recorded
deferred stock compensation on the grant of stock options of
approximately $17.3 million, representing the difference
between the exercise price of such options and the fair market
value of our common stock at the date of grant of such
options. The exercise prices of these options were below the
estimated fair market value of our common stock as of the
date of grant based on the estimated initial public offering
price of our common stock.

We amortize deferred stock compensation over the respec-
tive vesting periods of the individual stock options. We
recorded amortization expense for deferred compensation of
approximately $3.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2000. We expect to record an amortization expense for
deferred compensation as follows, reduced, where applicable,
for employee terminations: approximately $4.2 million for
2001, approximately $3.9 million for 2002, approximately $3.9
million for 2003 and approximately $1.4 million for 2004.

In May 2000, we sold shares of series IV convertible pre-
ferred stock. These shares contained a beneficial conversion
feature based on the estimated fair market value as of the date
of such sale of the common stock into which such shares were
convertible. The total amount of such beneficial conversion



;

was approximately $25.5 million and has been reflected as a
dividend in the period of issuance, the second quarter of 2000.
In the year ended December 31, 2000, we also recorded
approximately $19.4 million as interest expense, including the
discount on our convertible notes issued in October 1999 and
March 2000.

Through December 31, 2000, we had not generated taxable
income. At December 31, 2000, net operating losses available
to offset future taxable income for federal income tax pur-
poses were approximately $122.2 million. If not utilized, fed-
eral net operating loss carryforwards will expire at various
dates beginning in 2011 and ending 2020. We have not recog-
nized the potential tax benefit of our net operating losses in
our statements of operations. The future utilization of our
net operating loss carryforwards may be limited pursuant to
regulations promulgated under the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended.

Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

Research and Development Expenses. Research and develop-
ment expenses increased 30% from $30.3 million in 1999 to
$39.6 million in 2000. The increase of $9.3 million was prima-
rily due to the increased enrollment rate of our Phase 3 clinical
trial in AMI, called HERO-2 during 2000, initiation in 2000 of a
Phase 3b trial in angioplasty called REPLACE and by the
recognition of $12.2 million of research and development costs
in connection with the completion of UCB Bioproduct’s manu-
facture of Angiomax bulk drug substance prior to FDA
approval. The increase in costs was partly offset by reduced
development expenses reflecting our termination of the semi-
log manufacturing development program with Lonza AG in
the fourth quarter of 1999 and a reduction in development
activity for IS-159 in 2000.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general
and administrative expenses increased 200% from $5.0 million
in 1999 to $15.0 million in 2000. The increase of $10.0 million
was primarily due to an increase in marketing and selling
expenses and corporate infrastructure costs arising from
an increase in activity in preparation for the commercial
launch of Angiomax.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income
increased 223% from $838,000 in 1999 to $2.7 million in 2000.
The increase of $1.9 million was primarily due to interest
income arising from investment of the proceeds of our initial
public offering.

Interest expense was $19.4 million in 2000 and was related
to interest charges and the amortization of the discount on
our convertible notes issued in October 1999 and March 2000.

(3)

The notes were converted into series IV convertible pre-
ferred stock in May 2000, accelerating the remaining unamor-
tized discount.

Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

Research and Development Expenses. Research and develop-
ment expenses increased 26% from $24.0 million in 1998 to
$30.3 million in 1999. The increase of $6.3 million was due to
the expansion in 1999 of our clinical development programs,
primarily those relating to our Angiomax HERO-2 Phase 3
clinical trial in AMI which commenced in late 1998, our IS-159
development program and our Angiomax trials in angioplasty.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general
and administrative expenses decreased 20% from $6.2 million
in 1998 to $5.0 million in 1999. The decrease of $1.2 million
was primarily due to a decrease in Angiomax-related market-
ing expenses.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income
decreased 36% from $1.3 million in 1998 to $838,000 in 1999
due to a lower level of cash and marketable securities avail-
able for investment during 1999 as compared to 1998. Interest
expense was $197,000 in 1999 and related to interest expense
and amortization of the discount on our convertible notes
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million in
October 1999.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In August and September 2000, we received $101.4 million
in net proceeds from the sale of an aggregate of 6,900,000
shares of common stock in our initial public offering at a price
of $16.00 per share. Prior to our initial public offering, we had
financed our operations primarily through the private place-
ment of equity, convertible debt securities and warrants. Until
our initial public offering, we had received net proceeds of
$79.4 million from the private placement of equity securities,
primarily redeemable convertible preferred stock, and $19.4
million from the issuance of convertible notes and warrants.

As of December 31, 2000, we had $79.3 million in cash,
cash equivalents and marketable securities, as compared to
$7.2 million and $28.3 million as of December 31, 1999 and
1998, respectively.

During 2000, we used net cash of $48.1 million in operat-
ing activities. This consisted of a net loss for the period of
$71.3 million, combined with a decrease in accounts payable
of $1.8 million, an increase in inventory of $2.0 million and an
increase in accrued interest receivable of $1.3 million, partly
offset by an increase in accrued expenses of $5.7 million, non-
cash amortization of discount on convertible notes of $19.0



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

MANAGEMENT'S DIscUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued)

million and deferred compensation of $3.7 million. We spent
$42.8 million for investing activities, which consisted princi-
pally of purchases of marketable securities with net proceeds
from our initial public offering. We received $121.1 million
from financing activities, primarily from our initial public
offering, which resulted in net proceeds of $101.4 million, and
from the issuance of convertible notes and preferred stock,
which resulted in proceeds of $19.4 million during 2000.

During 1999, we placed an order with UCB Bioproducts
for the manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug product.
Manufacture of $14.2 million of this material was completed
in 2000, of which $12.2 million was expensed during that
period. All costs associated with the manufacture of
Angiomax bulk drug product and finished products to which
title has transferred to us prior to the date of FDA approval of
Angiomax were expensed as research and development. We
recorded Angiomax bulk drug product to which we took title
after the date of FDA approval of Angiomax as inventory,
which will increase our cost of sales in 2001 and possibly the
following year. In November 2000, we placed additional
orders with UCB Bioproducts for the manufacture of
Angiomax bulk drug product. Under the terms of these pur-
chase orders, we are scheduled to take title to material and
become obligated to make payments totaling approximately
$24.0 million in 2001 and early 2002.

As of December 31, 2000, we had net operating loss carry-
forwards of approximately $122.2 million to offset future
federal taxable income expiring in 2011 through 2020 and
approximately $116.0 million to offset future state taxable
income expiring in 2001 through 2004. Due to the degree of
uncertainty related to the ultimate realization of such net
operating losses, no benefit has been recognized in the finan-
cial statements as of December 31, 2000. If we achieve prof-
itability, such tax benefits would be recognized when their
realization was considered more likely than not. Our ability to
utilize these losses in future years, however, may be subject to
limitation based upon changes in ownership under the rules
of the Internal Revenue Code.

We expect to devote substantial resources to continue our
research and development efforts and to expand our sales,
marketing and manufacturing programs associated with the'
commercialization and launch of our products. Our funding
requirements will depend on numerous factors, including
whether Angiomax is commercially successful, the progress,
level and timing of our research and development activities,
the cost and outcomes of regulatory reviews, the establish-
ment, continuation or termination of third-party manufactur-
ing or sales and marketing arrangements, the cost and
effectiveness of our sales and marketing programs, the status
of competitive products, our ability to defend and enforce

our intellectual property rights and the establishment of
additional strategic or licensing arrangements with other
companies or acquisitions.

We anticipate that our existing capital resources will
enable us to maintain our current operations for at least the
next 12 months. If our existing resources are insufficient to
satisfy our liquidity requirements, or if we acquire additional
product candidates or approved products, we may be
required to seek additional financing prior to that time. The
sale of additional equity and debt securities may result in
additional dilution to our stockholders, and we cannot be cer-
tain that additional financing will be available in amounts or
on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we are unable to obtain
this additional financing, we may be required to reduce the
scope of our planned research, development and commercial-
ization activities, which could harm our financial condition
and operating results.

Factors Which May Affect Future Results

This Annual Report contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
For this purpose, any statements contained in this Report that
are not statements of historical fact may be deemed to be
forward-looking statements. Without limiting the foregoing,
the words “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,”
“intends,” “may” and similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. There are a number of
important factors that could cause the Company’s actual
results to differ materially from those indicated by forward-
looking statements contained in this Report and presented
elsewhere by management from time to time. These factors
include the risk factors set forth below.

Risks Related to Our Business

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF NET LOSSES, AND WE EXPECT TO
CONTINUE TO INCUR NET LOSSES AND MAY NOT ACHIEVE
OR MAINTAIN PROFITABILITY

We are a development stage company with no revenues
through December 31, 2000. We have incurred net losses since
our inception, including net losses of approximately $71.3 mil-
lion for the year ended December 31, 2000. As of December 31,
2000, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $196.6
million. We expect to make substantial expenditures to further
develop and commercialize our products and expect that our
rate of spending will accelerate as the result of costs and
expenses associated with increased clinical trials, regulatory
approval and commercialization of products. As a result, we
are unsure when we will become profitable, if at all.



OUR BUSINESS WILL BE VERY DEPENDENT ON THE COMMER-
CIAL SUCCESS OF ANGIOMAX

Other than Angiomax, our products are in clinical phases of
development and, even if approved by the FDA, are a number
of years away from entering the market. As a result, Angiomax
will account for almost all of our revenues for the foreseeable
future. The commercial success of Angiomax will depend
upon its acceptance by physicians, patients and other key
decision-makers as a therapeutic and cost-effective alternative
to heparin and other products used in current practice. If
Angiomax is not commercially successful, we will have to find
additional sources of revenues or curtail or cease operations.

FAILURE TO RAISE ADDITIONAL FUNDS IN THE FUTURE MAY
AFFECT THE DEVELOPMENT, MANUFACTURE AND SALE OF
OUR PRODUCTS

Our operations to date have generated substantial and
increasing needs for cash. Our negative cash flow from opera-
tions is expected to continue into the foreseeable future. The
clinical development of Angiomax for additional indications,
the development of our other product candidates and the
acquisition and development of additional product candi-
dates by us will require a commitment of substantial funds.
Our future capital requirements are dependent upon many
factors and may be significantly greater than we expect.

We anticipate that our existing capital resources will enable
us to maintain our current operations for at least the next 12
months. If our existing resources are insufficient to satisfy our
liquidity requirements, or if we acquire any additional product
candidates, we may be required to seek additional financing
prior to that time. We intend to seek additional funding through
collaborative arrangements and private or public financings,
including equity financings. Such additional funding may not
be available on acceptable terms, if at all. If additional funds are
not available to us, we may need to delay or significantly curtail
our acquisition, development or commercialization activities.

WE CANNOT EXPAND THE INDICATIONS FOR ANGIOMAX
UNLESS WE RECEIVE FDA APPROVAL FOR EACH ADDITIONAL
INDICATION. FAILURE TO EXPAND THESE INDICATIONS
WILL LIMIT THE SIZE OF THE COMMERCIAL MARKET FOR
ANGIOMAX

We received, in December 2000, approval from the FDA of
the use of Angiomax as an anticoagulant in combination with
aspirin in patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary
balloon angioplasty. One of our key objectives is to expand
the indications for which the FDA will approve Angiomax. In
order to do this, we will need to conduct additional clinical
trials and obtain FDA approval for each proposed indication.
If we are unsuccessful in expanding the approved indication
for the use of Angiomax, the size of the commercial market
for Angiomax will be limited.

FAILURE TO OBTAIN REGULATORY APPROVAL IN FOREIGN
JURISDICTIONS WILL PREVENT US FROM MARKETING
ANGIOMAX ABROAD

We intend to market our products in international markets,
including Europe. In order to market our products in the
European Union and many other foreign jurisdictions, we
must obtain separate regulatory approvals. In February 1998,
we submitted a MAA to the EMEA for use in unstable angina
patients undergoing angioplasty. Following extended interac-
tion with European regulatory authorities, the CPMP of the
EMEA voted in October 1999 not to recommend Angiomax for
approval in angioplasty. The United Kingdom and Ireland dis-
sented from this decision. We have withdrawn our application
to the EMEA and are in active dialog with European regulators
to determine our course of action including seeking approval
of Angiomax in Europe on a country-by-country basis. We may
not be able to obtain approval from any or all of the jurisdic-
tions in which we seek approval to market Angiomax.
Obtaining foreign approvals may require additional trials and
additional expense.

THE DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZATION OF OUR
PRODUCTS MAY BE TERMINATED OR DELAYED, AND THE
COSTS OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZATION MAY
INCREASE, IF THIRD PARTIES WHO WE RELY ON TO MANU-
FACTURE AND SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT AND COMMER-
CIALIZATION OF OUR PRODUCTS DO NOT FULFILL THEIR
OBLIGATIONS

Our development and commercialization strategy entails
entering into arrangements with corporate and academic col-
laborators, contract research organizations, contract sales
organizations, distributors, third-party manufacturers, licen-
sors, licensees and others to conduct development work,
manage our clinical trials and manufacture, market and sell
our products. Although we manage these services, we do not
have the expertise or the resources to conduct such activities
on our own and, as a result, are particularly dependent on
third parties in most areas.

We may not be able to maintain our existing arrangements
with respect to the commercialization of Angiomax or establish
and maintain arrangements to develop and commercialize any
additional products on terms that are acceptable to us. Any
current or future arrangements for the development and com-
mercialization of our products may not be successful. If we are
not able to establish or maintain our agreements relating to
Angiomax or any additional products on terms which we
deem favorable, our financial condition would be materially
adversely effected.

Third parties may not perform their obligations as expected.
The amount and timing of resources that third parties devote
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to developing, manufacturing and commercializing our prod-
ucts may not be within our control. Furthermore, our interests
may differ from those of third parties that manufacture or
commercialize our products. Disagreements that may arise
with these third parties could delay or lead to the termination
of the development or comumercialization of our product can-
didates, or result in litigation or arbitration, which would be
time consuming and expensive. If any third party that manu-
factures or supports the development or commercialization of
our products breaches or terminates its agreement with us, or
fails to conduct its activities in a timely manner, such breach,
termination or failure could:

—delay the development or commercialization of
Angiomax, our other product candidates or any
additional product candidates that we may acquire or
develop;

— require us to undertake unforeseen additional responsi-
bilities or devote unforeseen additional resources to the
development or commercialization of our products; or

— result in the termination of the development or com-
mercialization of our products.

WE ARE CURRENTLY DEPENDENT ON A SINGLE SUPPLIER FOR
THE PRODUCTION OF ANGIOMAX BULK DRUG SUBSTANCE
AND A DIFFERENT SINGLE SUPPLIER TO CARRY OUT ALL
FILL-FINISH ACTIVITIES FOR ANGIOMAX

Currently, we obtain all of our Angiomax bulk drug sub-
stance from one manufacturer, UCB Bioproducts, and rely on
another manufacturer, Ben Venue Laboratories, to carry out
all fill-finish activities for Angiomax, which includes final for-
mulation and transfer of the drug into vials where it is then
freeze-dried and sealed. The FDA requires that all manufac-
turers of pharmaceuticals for sale in or from the United States
achieve and maintain compliance with the FDA’s current
Good Manufacturing Practice, or cGMP, regulations and
guidelines. There are a limited number of manufacturers that
operate under cGMP regulations capable of manufacturing
Angiomax. The FDA has inspected Ben Venue Laboratories
for cGMP compliance for the manufacture of Angiomax and
UCB Bioproducts for cGMP compliance in the manufacture of
pharmaceutical ingredients generally. Ben Venue Laboratories
and UCB Bioproducts have informed us that they have no
material deficiencies in cGMP compliance. We do not cur-
rently have alternative sources for production of Angiomax
bulk drug substance or to carry out fill-finish activities. In the
event that either of our current manufacturers is unable to
carry out its respective manufacturing obligations to our satis-
faction, we may be unable to obtain alternative manufacturing,
or obtain such manufacturing on commercially reasonable
terms or on a timely basis.

Any delays in the manufacturing process may adversely
impact our ability to meet commercial demands for
Angiomax on a timely basis and supply product for clinical
trials of Angiomax.

IF WE DO NOT SUCCEED IN DEVELOPING A SECOND GENERA-
TION PROCESS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF BULK ANGIOMAX
DRUG SUBSTANCE, OUR GROSS MARGINS MAY BE BELOW
INDUSTRY AVERAGES

We are currently developing with UCB Bioproducts a sec-
ond generation process for the production of bulk Angiomax
drug substance. This process involves limited changes to the
early manufacturing steps of our current process in order to
improve our gross margins on the future sales of Angiomax.
If we cannot develop the process successfully or regulatory
approval of the process is not obtained or is delayed, then our
ability to improve our gross margins on future sales of
Angiomax may be limited.

CLINICAL TRIALS OF OUR PRODUCT CANDIDATES ARE
EXPENSIVE AND TIME CONSUMING, AND THE RESULTS OF
THESE TRIALS ARE UNCERTAIN

Before we can obtain regulatory approvals for the commer-

- cial sale of any product which we wish to develop, we will be

required to complete pre-clinical studies and extensive clinical
trials in humans to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of such
product. We are currently conducting four clinical trials of
Angiomax for use in the treatment of ischemic heart disease.
There are numerous factors which could delay our clinical
trials or prevent us from completing these trials successfully.
We or the FDA may suspend a clinical trial at any time on
various grounds, including a finding that patients are being
exposed to unacceptable health risks.

The rate of completion of clinical trials depends in part
upon the rate of.enrollment of patients. Patient enrollment is a
function of many factors, including the size of the patient
population, the proximity of patients to clinical sites, the eligi-
bility criteria for the trial, the existence of competing clinical
trials and the availability of alternative or new treatments. In
particular, the patient population targeted by some of our
clinical trials may be small. Delays in future planned patient
enroliment may result in increased costs and program delays.

In addition, clinical trials, if completed, may not show any
potential product to be safe or effective. Results obtained in
pre-clinical studies or early clinical trials are not always
indicative of results that will be obtained in later clinical trials.
Moreover, data obtained from pre-clinical studies and clinical
trials may be subject to varying interpretations. As a result,
the FDA or other applicable regulatory authorities may not
approve a product in a timely fashion, or at all.



OUR FAILURE TO ACQUIRE AND DEVELOP ADDITIONAL
PRODUCT CANDIDATES OR APPROVED PRODUCTS WILL
IMPAIR OUR ABILITY TO GROW ’

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to acquire and
develop additional pharmaceutical product candidates or
approved products. The success of this strategy depends
upon our ability to identify, select and acquire pharmaceutical
products in late-stage development or that have been
approved that meet the criteria we have established. Because
we do not have, nor intend to establish, internal scientific
research capabilities, we are dependent upon pharmaceutical
and biotechnology companies and other researchers to sell or
license product candidates to us.

Identifying suitable product candidates and approved
products and proposing, negotiating and implementing an
economically viable acquisition is a lengthy and complex
process. In addition, other companies, including those with
substantially greater financial, marketing and sales resources,
may compete with us for the acquisition of product candi-
dates and approved products. We may not be able to acquire
the rights to additional product candidates and approved
products on terms that we find acceptable, or at all.

IF WE BREACH ANY OF THE AGREEMENTS UNDER WHICH WE
LICENSE COMMERCIALIZATION RIGHTS TO PRODUCTS OR
TECHNOLOGY FROM OTHERS, WE COULD LOSE LICENSE
RIGHTS THAT ARE IMPORTANT TO OUR BUSINESS

We license commercialization rights to products and tech-
nology that are important to our business, and we expect to
enter into additional licenses in the future. For instance, we
acquired our first three products through exclusive licensing
arrangements. Under these licenses we are subject to com-
mercialization and development, sublicensing, royalty, insur-
ance and other obligations. If we fail to comply with any of
these requirements, or otherwise breach these license agree-
ments, the licensor may have the right to terminate the license
in whole or to terminate the exclusive nature of the license. In
addition, upon the termination of the license we may be
required to license to the licensor the intellectual property
that we developed.

OUR ABILITY TO MANAGE OUR BUSINESS EFFECTIVELY
COULD BE HAMPERED IF WE ARE UNABLE TO ATTRACT AND
RETAIN KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS

The biopharmaceutical industry has experienced a high
rate of turnover of management personnel in recent years.
We are highly dependent on our ability to attract and retain
qualified personnel for the acquisition, development and

commercialization activities we conduct or sponsor. If we lose
one or more of the members of our senior management,
including our chief executive officer, Dr. Clive A. Meanwell,
or other key employees or consultants, our business and
operating results could be seriously harmed. Our ability to
replace these key employees may be difficult and may take an
extended period of time because of the limited number of
individuals in the biotechnology industry with the breadth of
skills and experience required to develop and commercialize
products successfully. Competition to hire from this limited
pool is intense, and we may be unable to hire, train, retain or
motivate such additional personnel.

WE FACE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITION, WHICH MAY RESULT IN
OTHERS DISCOVERING, DEVELOPING OR COMMERCIALIZING
COMPETING PRODUCTS BEFORE OR MORE SUCCESSFULLY
THAN WE DO

The biopharmaceutical industry is highly competitive. Our
success will depend on our ability to develop products and
apply technology and our ability to establish and maintain a
market for our products. Potential competitors in the United
States and other countries include major pharmaceutical and
chemical companies, specialized biotechnology firms, univer-
sities and other research institutions. Many of our competi-
tors have substantially greater research and development
capabilities and experience, and greater manufacturing,
marketing and financial resources than we do. Accordingly,
our competitors may develop products or other novel tech-
nologies that are more effective, safer or less costly than any
that have been competing or are being developed by us or
may obtain FDA approval for products more rapidly than we
are able. Technological development by others may render
our products or product candidates noncompetitive. We may
not be successful in establishing or maintaining technological
competitiveness. '

BECAUSE THE MARKET FOR THROMBIN INHIBITORS IS COM-
PETITIVE, OUR PRODUCT MAY NOT OBTAIN WIDESPREAD USE

We plan to position Angiomax as a replacement to
heparin, which is widely-used and inexpensive, for use in
patients with ischemic heart disease. Because heparin is inex-
pensive and has been widely used for many years, medical
decision-makers may be hesitant to adopt our alternative
treatment. In addition, due to the high incidence and severity
of cardiovascular diseases, the market for thrombin inhibitors
is large and competition is intense and growing. There are a
number of thrombin inhibitors currently on the market,
awaiting regulatory approval and in development, including
orally administered agents.
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THE LIMITED RESOURCES OF THIRD-PARTY PAYORS MAY
LIMIT THE USE OF OUR PRODUCTS

" In general, anticoagulant drugs may be classified in three
groups: drugs that directly or indirectly target and inhibit
thrombin, drugs that target and inhibit platelets and drugs
that break down fibrin. Because each group of anticoagulants
acts on different components of the clotting process, we
believe that there will be continued clinical work to determine
the best combination of drugs for clinical use. We expect
Angiomax to be used with aspirin alone or in conjunction
with other therapies. Although we do not plan to position
Angiomax as a direct competitor to platelet inhibitors or fibri-
nolytic drugs, platelet inhibitors and fibrinolytic drugs may
compete with Angiomax for the use of hospital financial
resources. Many U.S. hospitals receive a fixed reimbursement
amount per procedure for the angioplasties and other treat-
ment therapies they perform. Because this amount is not
based on the actual expenses the hospital incurs, U.S. hospitals
may have to choose among Angiomax, platelet inhibitors and
fibrinolytic drugs.

FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD AFFECT
THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Our operating results may vary from period to period
based on the amount and timing of sales of Angiomax to
customers in the United States, the availability and timely
delivery of a sufficient supply of Angiomax, the timing and
expenses of clinical trials, the availability and timing of third-
party reimbursement and the timing of approval for our
product candidates. If our operating results do not match the
expectations of securities analysts and investors as a result of
these and other factors, the trading price of our common
stock may fluctuate.

Risks Related to Our Industry

IF WE DO NOT OBTAIN FDA APPROVALS FOR OUR PRODUCTS
OR COMPLY WITH GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS, WE MAY
NOT BE ABLE TO MARKET OUR PRODUCTS AND MAY BE
SUBJECT TO STRINGENT PENALTIES

Except for Angiomax, which has been approved for sale in
the United States and New Zealand, we do not haye a product
approved for sale in the United States or any foreign market.
We must obtain approval from the FDA in order to sell our
product candidates in the United States and from foreign reg-
ulatory authorities in order to sell our product candidates in
other countries. We must successfully complete our clinical
trials and demonstrate manufacturing capability before we
can file with the FDA for approval to sell our products. The
FDA could require us to repeat clinical trials as part of ‘the

regulatory review process. Delays in obtaining or failure to
obtain regulatory approvals may:

— delay or prevent the successful commercialization of
any of our product candidates;

— diminish our competitive advantage; and

— defer or decrease our receipt of revenues or royalties.

. The regulatory review and approval process is lengthy,
expensive and uncertain. Extensive pre-clinical data, clinical
data and supporting information must be submitted to the
FDA for each additional indication to obtain such approvals,
and we cannot be certain when we will receive these regula-
tory approvals, if ever.

In addition to initial regulatory approval, our products and
product candidates will be subject to extensive and rigorous '
ongoing domestic and foreign government regulation. Any
approvals, once obtained, may be withdrawn if compliance
with regulatory requirements is not maintained or safety prob-
lems are identified. Failure to comply with these requirements
may also subject us to stringent penalties.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN OR MAINTAIN PATENT
PROTECTION FOR OUR PRODUCTS, AND WE MAY INFRINGE
THE PATENT RIGHTS OF OTHERS

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies like us are generally uncertain and involve com-
plex legal, scientific and factual issues. Our success depends
significantly on our ability to:

— obtain patents;
— protect trade secrets;

— operate without infringing the proprietary rights of
others; and

— prevent others from infringing our proprietary rights.

We may not have any patents issued from any patent
applications that we own or license. If patents are granted, the
claims allowed may not be sufficiently broad to protect our
technology. In addition, issued patents that we own or license
may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. Our patents
also may not afford us protection against competitors with
similar technology. Because patent applications in the United
States are maintained in secrecy until patents issue, others
may have filed or maintained patent applications for technol-
ogy used by us or covered by our pending patent applications
without our being aware of these applications. In all, we
exclusively license 10 issued United States patents and a
broadly filed portfolio of corresponding foreign patents and
patent applications. We have not yet filed any independent
patent applications.



We may not hold proprietary rights to some patents related
to our product candidates. In some cases, others may own or
control these patents. As a result, we may be required to obtain
licenses under third-party patents to market some of our prod-
uct candidates. If licenses are not available to us on acceptable
terms, we will not be able to market these products.

We may become a party to patent litigation or other pro-
ceedings regarding intellectual property rights. The cost to us
of any patent litigation or other proceeding, even if resolved in
‘our favor, could be substantial. If any patent litigation or other
intellectual property proceeding in which we are involved is
resolved unfavorably to us, we may be enjoined from manufac-
Vturing or selling our products and services without a license
from the other party, and we may be held liable for significant
damages. We may not be able to obtain any required license on
commercially acceptable terms, or at all.

IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO KEEP OUR TRADE SECRETS CONFI-
DENTIAL, OUR TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION MAY BE
USED BY OTHERS TO COMPETE AGAINST US

We rely significantly upon unpatented proprietary tech-
nology, information, processes and know how. We seek to
protect this information by confidentiality agreements with
our employees, consultants and other third-party contractors,
as well as through other security measures. We may not
have adequate remedies for any breach by a party to these
confidentiality agreements. In addition, our competitors may
learn or independently develop our trade secrets.

WE COULD BE EXPOSED TO SIGNIFICANT LIABILITY CLAIMS IF
WE ARE UNABLE TO OBTAIN INSURANCE AT ACCEPTABLE
COSTS AND ADEQUATE LEVELS OR OTHERWISE PROTECT
OURSELVES AGAINST POTENTIAL PRODUCT LIABILITY CLAIMS

Our business exposes us to potential product liability risks
which are inherent in the testing, manufacturing, marketing
and sale of human healthcare products. Product liability claims
might be made by consumers, health care providers or phar-
maceutical companies or others that sell our products. These
claims may be made even with respect to those products that
are manufactured in licensed and regulated facilities or that
otherwise possess regulatory approval for commercial sale.

These claims could expose us to significant liabilities that
could prevent or interfere with the development or commer-
cialization of our products. Product liability claims could
require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or
pay significant damages. We are currently covered, with
respect to our commercial sales in the United States and New
Zealand and our clinical trials, by primary product liability

insurance in the amount of $20.0 million per occurrence and
$20.0 million annually in the aggregate on a claims-made basis.
This coverage may not be adequate to cover any product liabil-
ity claims. As we commence commercial sales of our products,
we may wish to increase our product liability insurance, and
we will need to extend the coverage of our product liability
insurance to cover our commercial sales of Angiomax in the
United States. Product liability coverage is expensive. In the
future, we may not be able to maintain or obtain such product
liability insurance on reasonable terms, at a reasonable cost or
in sufficient amounts to protect us against losses due to prod-
uct liability claims.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT
MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk is confined to our cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities. We place our invest-
ments in high-quality financial instruments, primarily money
market funds and corporate debt securities with maturities or
auction dates of less than one year, which we believe are sub-
ject to limited credit risk. We currently do not hedge interest
rate exposure. At December 31, 2000, we held $79.3 million in
cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities, all due
within one year, which had an average interest rate of approx-
imately 6.5%.

We currently hold a $3.0 million principal investment in
Southern California Edison 5%% bonds due January 15, 2001,
which is accounted for in accordance with Statement of
Financial Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” We classify these
securities as available-for-sale and carry them at fair market
value based on the quoted market price. We have exposure
to market risk related to the fluctuation of the Southern
California Edison bonds’ price, which fluctuation has increased
significantly as a result of events which occurred after
December 31, 2000, including the non-payment of principal
and interest on the bonds at maturity on January 15, 2001. The
value of our investments in these Southern California Edison
bonds was approximately $2.5 million as of March 28, 2001.

Most of our transactions are conducted in U.S. dollars. We
do have certain development and commercialization agree-
ments with vendors located outside the United States.
Transactions under certain of these agreements are conducted
in U.S. dollars, subject to adjustment based on significant
fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Transactions under
certain other of these agreements are conducted in the local
foreign currency. If the applicable exchange rate undergoes a
change of 10%, we do not believe that it would have a mate-
rial impact on our results of operations or cash flows.



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

1999 2000
Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,643,266 $ 36,802,356
Marketable securities 539,274 42,522,729
Accrued interest receivable 55,225 1,392,928
7,237,765 80,718,013
Inventory : — 1,963,491
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 154,967 465,650
Total current assets 7,392,732 83,147,154
Fixed assets, net 430,061 965,832
Other assets 168,605 250,144

Total assets

$ 7,991,398

$ 84,363,130

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,815,028 $ 5,987,213
Accrued expenses . 3,680,293 9,136,934
Total current liabilities 11,495,321 15,124,147

Convertible notes 5,776,319 —_
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, $1 par value; 31,550,000 and

5,000,000 shares authorized at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively;

shares issued and outstanding: 22,962,350 and none at December 31, 1999

and 2000, respectively; at redemption value (liquidation value of

$86,167,821 and $0 at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively) 85,277,413 —_
Stockholders’ equity /(deficit):

Common stock, $.001 par value, 36,000,000 and 75,000,000 shares authorized at

December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively; shares issued and outstanding:

833,400 and 30,320,455 at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively 834 30,320
Additional paid-in capital | 339,144 279,126,337
Deferred stock compensation — (13,355,694)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage (94,925,028) (196,560,034)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 27,395 (1,946)

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) (94,557,655) 69,238,983

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)

$ 7,991,398

$ 84,363,130

See accompanying notes.



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Period July 31, 1996

Year Ended December 31, (Date of Inception)
1998 1999 2000 to December 31, 2000

Operating expenses: »

Research and development $ 24,004,606 $ 30,344,892 $ 39,572,297 $ 110,793,397

Selling, general and administrative 6,248,265 5,008,387 15,033,585 29,411,917

Total operating expenses 30,252,871 35,353,279 54,605,882 140,205,314

Loss from operations (30,252,871) (35,353,279) (54,605,882) (140,205,314)
Other income (expense): :

Interest income 1,302,073 837,839 2,704,126 5,593,904

Interest expense = (197,455) (19,390,414) (19,617,104)
Net loss (28,950,798) (34,712,895) (71,292,170) (154,228,514)
Dividends and accretion to redemption value .

of redeemable preferred stock (3,958,903) (5,893,016) (30,342,988) (42,331,520)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders $(32,909,701) $(40,605,911) $(101,635,158) $(196,560,034)
Basic and diluted net loss attributable to

common stockholders per common share $ (6.03) $ (80.08) $ (8.43)
Unaudited pro forma basic.and diluted

net loss attributable to common stockholders

per common share : $ — $ (194) $ (2.10)
Shares used in computing net loss attributable

to common stockholders per common share:

Basic and diluted 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275
Unaudited pro forma basic and diluted — 17,799,876 24,719,075

" See accompanying notes.




THE MEDICINES COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

For the Period July 31, 1996 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 2000

Redeemable
Preferred Stock

Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Shares

Amount

Issuance of common stock

Issuance of redeemable preferred stock
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value
Net loss

4,675

$ 4,675,000
118,348

2,042,175

$ 2,042

Balance at December 31, 1996
Employee stock purchases
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of redeemable preferred stock
Dividends on preferred stock
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value
Net loss
Currency translation adjustment
Unrealized gain on marketable securities

Comprehensive loss

4,675

34,456
1,175

4,793,348

33,498,408
1,056,652
957,592

2,042,175
627,070
7,186,537

2,042
627
7,187

Balance at December 31, 1997

Employee stock purchases
Repurchase of common stock
Exchange of redeemable preferred stock for

redeemable convertible preferred stock
Issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock
Dividends on preferred stock -
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value
Net loss
Currency translation adjustment
Unrealized loss on marketable securities

Comprehensive loss

40,306

(41,992)

1,686

40,306,000

(41,992,000)

1,686,000

13,071,714
8,421,907

41,992,000
35,126,419

2,266,051

9,855,782
34,887
(107,979)

(8,892,912)

9,856
35
(108)

(8,893)

Balance at December 31, 1998
Repurchase of common stock
Dividends on preferred stock
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption value .
Issuance of warrants associated with convertible notes
Net loss
Currency translation adjustment
Unrealized loss on marketable securities

Comprehensive loss

21,493,621

1,468,729

79,384,470

5,351,178
541,765

889,778
(56,378)

890
(56)

Balance at December 31, 1999

Repurchase of common stock
Employee stock purchases
Issuance of redeemable convertible preferred stock
Accretion and dividend on preferred stock
Beneficial conversion of redeemable convertible

preferred stock
Issuance of warrants associated with convertible notes
Issuance of common stock through initial public offering
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock
Deferred compensation expense associated with

stock options
Adjustments to deferred compensation for terminations
Amortization of deferred compensation
Net loss
Currency translation adjustment
Unrealized loss on marketable securities

Comprehensive loss

22,962,350

5,946,366
1,751,241

(30,659,957)

85,277,413

25,688,284
4,898,537

(115,864,234)

833,400
(22,205)
227,525

6,900,000
22,381,735

834
(22)
26

6,900
22,382

Balance at December 31, 2000

30,320,455

$30,320

See accompanying notes.



For the Period July 31, 1996 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 2000

Deficit
Accumulated Total
Additional Deferred - During the Comprehensive Stockholders’
Paid-In Stock Development Income - Equity
Capital Compensation Stage (Loss) (Deficit)
$ 755 $ - $ — $ 2,797
$  (118,348) (118,348)
. (1,466,877) (1,466,877)
755 — (1,585,225) — (1,582,428)
232 859
2,658 9,845
(1,060,673) (1,060,673)
(957,592) (957,592)
(17,805,926) (17,805,926)
1,806 1,806
7,274 7,274
(17,796,846)
3,645 — (21,409,416) 9,080 (21,386,835)
1,312 1,347
(40) (148)
8,893 —
(1,692,852) (1,692,852)
(2,266,051) (2,266,051)
(28,950,798) (28,950,798)
31,562 31,562
(1,984) (1,984)
(28,921,220)
13,810 (54,319,117) 38,658 (54,265,759)
(1) . (77)
(5,351,251) (5,351,251)
(541,765) (541,765)
325.355 325,355
(34,712,895) (34,712,895)
. (3,847) (3,847)
(7.416) (7.416)
(34,724,158)
339,144 — (94,925,028) 27,395 (94,557,665)
(22)
286,068 286,294
(4,898,537) (4,898,537)
25,444,299 (15,444,299) —
18,789,805 18,789,805
101,343,162 101,350,062
115,841,732 115,864,114
17,279,612 (17,279,612) —
(197,485) 197,485 —_
3,726,433 3,726,433
(71,292,170) (71,292,170)
5,141 5141
(34,482) (34,482)
(71,321,511)
$279,126,337 $(13,355,694) $(196,560,034) $ (1,946) $ 69,238,983




THE MEDICINES COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAsH FLows

Period July 31, 1996

Year Ended December 31, (Date of Inception)

1998 1999 2000 to December 31, 2000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $(28,950,798) $(34,712,895) $ (71,292,170) $(154,228,514)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 98,413 207,663 277,307 618,677
Amortization of discount on convertible notes — 101,674 19,013,486 19,115,160
Amortization of deferred stock compensation — — 3,726,433 3,726,433
Loss on sales of fixed assets ' — — 14,631 14,631
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (705,515) 690,290 (1,337,703) (1,392,928)
Inventory ] — (1,963,491) (1,963,491)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (156,812) 39,141 (312,027) (466,548)
Other assets (152,165) (3,349) (82,391) (250,629)
Accounts payable’ (31,864) 5,528,544 (1,823,602) 5,990,320
Accrued expenses (1,928,001) 1,258,366 5,708,535 9,386,636
Net cash used in operating activities (31,826,742) (26,890,566) (48,070,992) (119,450,253)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities (29,861,162) — (51,098,901) (111,144,188)
Maturities and sales of marketable securities 28,722,483 18,796,493 9,083,090 68,586,977
Purchase of fixed assets (357,103) (258,788) (834,160) (1,604,226)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,495,782) 18,537,705 (42,849,971) (44,161,437)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of convertible
notes and warrants — 6,000,000 13,348,779 19,348,779
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net 35,126,419 — 6,095,338 79,395,165
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net 1,347 — 101,636,356 101,651,204
Repurchases of common stock ’ (148) (77) (22) (247) ‘
Dividends paid in cash (6,852) (73) (118) (11,064)
Net cash provided by financing activities 35,120,766 5,999,850 121,080,333 200,383,837
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 29,928 (1,245) (280) 30,209
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,828,170 (2,354,256) 30,159,090 36,802,356
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 7,169,352 8,997,522 6,643,266 ' —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 8,997,522 $ 6,643,266  $ 36,802,356 $ 36,802,356

Non-cash transactions:

Dividends on preferred stock $ 1,686,000 $ 5,351,178 $ 31,894,474 $ 40,106,652
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ — $ — $ 255781 $ 285016

See accompanying notes.




THE MEDICINES COMPANY.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2000

1. Nature of Business

The Medicines Company (the Company) was incorporated
in Delaware on July 31, 1996. The Company is a pharmaceuti-
cal company engaged in the acquisition, development and
commercialization of late-stage development drugs. The
Company is a development stage enterprise, as defined in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, and has,
since inception, been developing business plans, acquiring
product rights, conducting initial commercialization activities,
obtaining financing, performing research and development,
conducting regulatory activities and recruiting and training
personnel. In December 2000, The U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) approved Angiomax@® (bivalirudin), the
Company’s lead product, for use as an anticoagulant in
patients with unstable angina undergoing percutaneous trans-
luminal coronary angioplasty (PTCA).

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All sig-
nificant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in
the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to,
uncertainties related to regulatory approvals, dependence on
key products, and protection of proprietary rights.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to concentration of credit risk include cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities. The Company believes it minimizes
its exposure to potential concentrations of credit risk by plac-
ing investments in high-quality financial instruments. At
December 31, 2000, approximately $23,300,000 of the cash and
cash equivalents balance was invested in the Merrill Lynch
Premier Institutional Fund, a no-load money market fund.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company considers all highly liquid investments pur-
chased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of investments in
money market funds, corporate bonds and taxable auction

securities. These investments are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value.

Marketable securities consist of securities with original
maturities of greater than three months. The Company classi-
fies its marketable securities as available-for-sale. Securities
under this classification are recorded at fair market value and
unrealized gains and losses are recorded as a separate compo-
nent of stockholders’ equity. The estimated fair value of the
marketable securities is determined based on quoted market
prices or rates for similar instruments. At December 31, 1999
and 2000, marketable securities consisted of investments in
corporate bonds with maturities of less than one year and are
summarized as follows:

Unrealized
Cost Gain (Loss)  Fair Value
December 31, 1999 $ 541,400 $ (2,126) $ 539,274
December 31, 2000 $42,559,337 $(36,608) $42,522,729

There were no sales of available-for-sale securities during
the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000, although there
were maturities of such securities as disclosed in the accom-
panying consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Medicines Company currently holds a $3.0 million prin-
cipal investment in Southern California Edison 5%% bonds due
]énuary 15, 2001, which is accounted for in accordance with
Statement of Financial Standards No. 115, “Accounting for
Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” We classify
these securities as available-for-sale and carry them at fair mar-
ket value based on the quoted market price. We have exposure
to market risk related to the fluctuation of the Southern
California Edison bonds’ price, which fluctuation has increased
significantly as a result of events which occurred after
December 31, 2000, including the non-payment of principal and
interest on the bonds at maturity on January 15, 2001. At
March 28, 2001, the value of the Company’s investment in
these Southern California Edison bonds had declined to
approximately $2.5 million.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.
Advertising costs were approximately $1,491,000, $484,000
and $807,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and
2000, respectively.

Inventory

The Company records inventory upon the transfer of title
from its vendor. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or
market with cost determined using a weighted average of
actual costs. All costs associated with the manufacture of
Angiomax bulk drug product and finished product to which
title transferred to the Company prior to FDA approval of
Angiomax was expensed as research and development. On
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December 15, 2000, the Company received FDA approval for
Angiomax and any Angiomax bulk drug product to which the
Company took title after that date is recorded as inventory.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided
using the straight-line method based on estimated useful
lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements, over the lesser
of the useful lives or the lease terms.

Stock-Based Compensation

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”)
encourages, but does not require, companies to record com-
pensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans
at fair value. The Company has elected to account for stock-
based compensation using the intrinsic value method pre-
scribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”).

Translation of Foreign Currencies

The functional currencies of the Company’s foreign sub-
sidiaries.are the local currencies; British pound sterling, Swiss
franc and New Zealand dollar. The Company translates its for-
eign operations using a current exchange rate. In accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 52,
assets and liabilities are exchanged using the current exchange
rate as of the balance sheet date. Expenses and items of income
are exchanged using a weighted average exchange rate over
the period ended on the balance sheet date. Adjustments
resulting from the translation of the financial statements of the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars are excluded
from the determination of net loss and are accumulated in a
separate component of stockholders’ deficit. Foreign exchange
transaction gains and losses are included in the results of oper-
ations and are not material to the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
differences between financial reporting and income tax bases
of assets and liabilities, as well as net operating loss carry-
forwards, and are measured using the enacted tax rates and
laws that will be in effect when the differences reverse.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to
reflect the uncertainty associated with ultimate realization.

Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

The Company reports comprehensive income/(loss) and
its components in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No.
130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income.” Comprehensive
income/(loss) includes all changes in equity for cumulative
translations adjustments resulting from the consolidation of
foreign subsidiaries’ financial statements and unrealized
gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101,
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 1017),
which provides guidance related to revenue recognition
based on interpretations and practices followed by the SEC.
SAB 101, as amended, is effective beginning the fourth quar-
ter of calendar fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1999
and requires companies to report any changes in revenue
recognition as a cumulative change in accounting principle at
the time of implementation. Adoption of SAB 101 did not
have a material impact on the Company’s financial position
or results of operations, since the Company has no revenues
to date.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments
and Hedging Activities.” The effective date of this statement
was deferred to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000 by
SFAS No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities—Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS
No. 133.” The adoption of this new standard is not expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s financial condi-
tion or results of operations.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed using the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding dur-
ing the period reduced, where applicable, for outstanding,
yet unvested, shares. Diluted net loss per share includes the
effect of stock options, warrants and redeemable convertible
preferred stock and convertible notes outstanding during the
period, if dilutive. Since the Company has a net loss for all
periods presented, the effect of all potentially dilutive securi-
ties is antidilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted net loss per
share are the same.

Unaudited Pro Forma Net Loss Per Share

Unaudited pro forma net loss per share is computed using
the weighted average number of common shares outstanding,
including the pro forrha effects of automatic conversion of all
outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock and
accrued dividends and convertible notes and accrued interest
through each balance sheet date into shares of the Company’s
common stock effective upon the closing of the Company’s
initial public offering, as if such conversion had occurred at
the date of original issuance.

Segments

The Company is a development stage company focused on
the acquisition, development and commercialization of late-
stage development drugs. The Company has license rights to
three potential products, Angiomax, CTV-05 and 15-159. The



Company manages its business and operations as one seg-
ment. There are no revenues to date for any potential products
and the Company’s assets are not identifiable to its three
potential products.

3. Management'’s Plans and Financing

The Company is a development stage company and has
incurred substantial losses since inception. To date, the
Company has funded its operations through the issuance of
debt and equity. The Company expects to continue to expend
substantial amounts for continued product research, develop-
ment and initial commercialization activities for the foresee-
able future and management’s plans with respect to funding
this development are to secure additional equity, if possible,
and to secure collaborative partnering arrangements that will
provide available cash funding for operations.

Should additional equity financing or collaborative part-
nering arrangements be unavailable to the Company, man-
agement will restrict certain of the Company’s planned
activities and operations, as necessary, to sustain operations
and conserve cash resources.

4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets consist of thé following:

Estimated December 31,
Life (Years) 1999 2000
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment 3 $323,685 $ 547,748
Computer hardware and
software 3 213,376 728,333
Leasehold improvements 5 216,064 243,060
, 753,125 1,519,141
Less: Accumulated depreciation (323,064) (553,309)
$430,061 $ 965,832

_ Depreciation expense was approximately $98,000, $208,000
and $277,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and
2000, respectively.

5. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31:

1999 2000
Development services $3,283,767 $5,998,117
Other 396,526 3,138,817
$3,680,293 $9,136,934

6. Convertible Notes

In October 1999, the Company issued $6,000,000 of 8%
Convertible Notes (“the Notes”) and 1,013,877 Common

Stock Purchase Warrants (“the Warrants”) to existing investors,
raising proceeds of $6,000,000. The Notes were redeemable on
January 15, 2001 and pay interest semi-annually at a rate of 8%
per annum. The Notes were convertible into shares of stock of
the Company upon a subsequent sale of stock of the
Company provided that such sale resulted in aggregate gross
proceeds of at least $6,000,000. The Notes were convertible
into a number of shares of stock determined by dividing the
outstanding principal and interest on the date of the subse-
quent sale by the price per share of such sale. Each Warrant
provides the holder with the right to purchase one share of
Comunon Stock of the Company at a price of $5.92 per share
at any time prior to October 19, 2004. The exercise price and
the number of shares underlying the Warrants could be
adjusted in certain circumstances related to future issuances
of capital stock. The Company recorded $325,355 as the fair
value of the Warrants using the Black-Scholes method and the
estimated fair value of the Company’s Common Stock on the
date of the issuance of warrants, and $5,674,645 as the value
of the Notes on the issuance date. The discount on the Notes
was amortized to interest expense over the expected term of
the Notes, which the Company anticipated to be to June 2000.
Since the Notes were issued in October 1999, the carrying
amount approximates their fair value at December 31, 1999.
Upon completion of the Company's sale of Series IV Preferred
Stock in May 2000, the principal and accrued interest on the
Notes was converted into 1,393,909 shares of Series IV
Preferred Stock.

In March 2000, the Company issued $13,348,779 of 8%
Convertible Notes (“the Notes”) and 2,255,687 Common
Stock Purchase Warrants (“the Warrants”) to current stock-
holders, raising praceeds of $13,348,779. The Notes were
redeemable on January 15, 2001 and accrue interest semi-
annually at a rate of 8% per annum. The Notes were convert-
ible into shares of stock of the Company upon a subsequent
private sale of stock of the Company provided that such sale
results in aggregate gross proceeds of at least $6,000,000. The
Notes were convertible into a number of shares of stock
determined by dividing the outstanding principal and inter-
est on the date of the subsequent sale by the price per share of
such sale. Each Warrant provides the holder with the right to
purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company at
a price of $5.92 per share at any time prior to March 2005.
The exercise price and the number of shares underlying the
Warrants could be adjusted in certain circumstances related to
future issuances of stock. The Company recorded approxi-
mately $18,800,000 as the value of the Warrants using the Black-

. Scholes method and the estimated fair value of the Company’s

Common Stock on the date of the issuance of the warrants. The
discount on the Notes was amortized over the expected term of
the Notes, which the Company anticipated to be to June 2000.
For the year ended December 31, 2000, amortization of the
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discount was approximately $18,800,000 and is included with
the interest expense in the accompanying financial state-
ments. Upon completion of the Company’s sale of Series IV
Preferred Stock in May 2000, the principal and accrued inter-
est on the Notes was converted into 3,141,457 shares of Series
IV Preferred Stock.

7. Redeemable Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity

On June 29, 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors
approved a reverse split of 0.73 shares for every one share of
common stock then outstanding. The reverse stock split
became effective on August 4, 2000. The accompanying finan-
cial statements and footnotes, including all share and per
share amounts, reflect the reverse stock split.

Series I, Series 11, Series III and Series IV Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock

During 1999 and 2000, the Company had designated four
series of redeemable convertible preferred stock. A summary
of the Series I, Series 1I, Series 111 and Series IV Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock is as follows.

December 31,

1999 2000

Series 1, $1 par value, 3,550,000 shares
authorized at December 31, 1999 and
none at December 31, 2000, 2,678,005
shares and none issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively ($5,512,225 liquidation
value at December 31, 1999 and
$0 at December 31, 2000)

Series 11, $1 par value, 15,850,000 shares
authorized at December 31, 1999 and
none at December 31, 2000, 11,290,928
shares and none issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively (340,670,864 liquidation
value at December 31, 1999 and $0 at
December 31, 2000)

Series 111, $1 par value, 12,150,000 shares
authorized at December 31, 1999 and
none at December 31, 2000, 8,993,417
shares and none issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively ($39,984,732 liquidation
value at December 31, 1999 and $0 at
December 31, 2000)

Series 1V, $1 par value, 12,150,000 shares
authorized during December 31, 2000
and none at December 31, 1999, none
issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 2000 — -

Total ‘ $85,277413  §—

$ 5512225 §—

40,670,864 -

39,094,324 -

In August 1998, the Company executed an agreement (the
“Exchange Agreement”) under which 8,892,912 shares of
common stock and 41,992 shares of Series A Redeemable

Preferred Stock were exchanged for 2,506,000 shares of
Series 1 Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and
10,565,714 shares of Series II Redeemable Convertible
Preferred Stock. Holders of Series A Redeemable Preferred
Stock were entitled to receive preferential cumulative annual
dividends payable in additional shares of Series A
Redeemable Preferred Stock at the rate of 7% per annum of
the stated value. Prior to the Exchange Agreement, dividends
earned from January 1, 1998 through the date of the Exchange
Agreement were paid to the holders of Series A Redeemable
Preferred Stock. During 1997, certain preferred shareholders
waived their right to a portion of earned dividends and the
Company paid agreed-upon amounts through December 31,
1997. To the extent that all or any part of the Stock would have
resulted in the issuance of a fractional share of the Series A
Preferred stock, the amount of such fraction, multiplied by the
stated value, was paid in cash.

On May 17, 2000, the Company issued 1,411,000 shares of
Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock for net
proceeds of $6,095,520. In addition, on May 17, 2000, the con-
vertible notes and accrued interest were converted into

' 4,535,366 shares of Series IV Redeemable convertible

Preferred Stock. The Series IV preferred stock carries terms
and conditions similar to the Series 1, 11, Il preferred stock.
The Series IV preferred stock was convertible into common
stock at a 1-for-0.73 conversion rate and automatically
converted upon the closing of the sale of shares of common
stock in an underwritten public offering. The Series IV
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock issued on May 17,
2000 contained a beneficial conversion feature based on the
estimated fair market value of common stock into which it
is convertible. In accordance with EITF 98-5, the total amount
of such beneficial conversion is approximately $25,450,000.
The beneficial conversion is analogous to a dividend and
was recognized during 2000 when issued. Simultaneously
with the closing of the Company’s initial public offering,
30,659,957 shares of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
then outstanding (including accrued dividends for the period

_August 1, 2000 to August 11, 2000) were converted into

22,381,735 shares of common stock.

A summary of the rights, preferences and privileges of the
Series I, Series II, Series Il and Series IV Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock (“Series Preferred Stock”) is
as follows: i

Dividends. The holders of each series of Series Preferred
Stock are entitled to receive, prior to any distribution to the
holders of Common Stock, preferential cumulative dividends
payable in additional shares of such series of Series Preferred
Stock at a rate of 7% per share per annum of the liquidation
value of such series of Series Preferred Stock. Such dividends
were paid annually commencing on July 31, 1999.



Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution
or winding up of the Company (either voluntary or involun-
tary), the holders of Series Preferred Stock are entitled
to receive, out of the assets of the Company available for
distribution to its stockholders, a per share amount equal to
$2.00 per share in the case of the Series I Preferred Stock, $3.50
per share in the case of the Series II Preferred Stock and $4.32
in the case of the Series Il and Series IV Preferred Stock, plus
any accrued but unpaid dividends (the liquidation value).
These distributions will be made prior to any distributions to
other stockholders. Any amounts remaining after making
such distributions will be distributed to the holders of
Common Stock and Series Preferred Stock on parity with each
other. If the remaining assets of the Company available for
distribution to its stockholders are insufficient to pay all of the
holders of Series Preferred Stock, distributions will be made
first to the Series IV Preferred Stockholders, then to Series III
Preferred Stockholders and then to the Series I and II
Preferred Stockholders on a pro-rata basis.

Conversion. Holders of shares of Series Preferred Stock
have the right to convert their shares at any time into shares
of Common Stock. The conversion rate for each series of
Series Preferred Stock is 0.73-for-1. The conversion rate for
each series of Series Preferred Stock is subject (i) to propor-
tional adjustments for splits, reverse splits, recapitalizations,
etc., and (ii) to formula-weighted average adjustments in the
event that the Company issues additional shares of Common
Stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for Common
Stock at a purchase price less than the applicable conversion
price then in effect, other than the issuance of shares to direc-
tors, officers, employees and consultants pursuant to stock
plans approved by the Board of Directors and certain other
exceptions. Each share of Series Preferred Stock will be auto-
matically converted into shares of Common Stock upon the
closing of the sale of shares of Common Stock at a price of at
least $8.90 per share (subject to appropriate adjustment for
stock dividends, stock splits, combinations and other similar
recapitalizations affecting such shares) in an underwritten
public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act of 1933, resulting in at least
$15,000,000 of gross proceeds to the Company.

Redemption. The Company will redeem the outstanding
shares of Series Preferred Stock in three equal annual
installments commencing July 31, 2002 at a price equal to the
liquidation value of such shares.

Voting. Generally, holders of shares of Series Preferred Stock
vote on all matters, including the election of directors, with the
holders of shares of Common Stock on an as-converted basis,
except where a class vote is required by law.

Accretion. Series Preferred Stock is accreted to its redemp-
tion value to recognize issuance costs over the period from
issuance to redemption using the interest method and to
reflect accrued but unpaid dividends.

Common Stock

Common Stockholders are entitled to one vote per share
and dividends when declared by the Board of Directors,
subject to the preferential rights of preferred stockholders.

Upon the completion of its Initial Public Offering (“IPO")
on August 11, 2000, the Company sold 6,000,000 shares of its
common stock at a price of $16.00 per share. In addition, on
September 8, 2000, the underwriters of the IPO exercised their
over-allotment option and purchased an additional 900,000
shares of common stock at a price of $16.00 per share. The
Company received proceeds of approximately $101.4 million,
net of underwriting discounts and commissions, and expenses.
Simultaneously with the closing of the IPO, 30,659,957 shares
of Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding
(including accrued dividends for the period August 1, 2000 to
August 11, 2000) were converted into 22,381,735 shares of
common stock.

During 1996, 1997 and 1998, certain employees of the
Company purchased 335,800, 627,070 and 32,850 shares of
common stock, respectively, for $0.001 per share. These shares
are subject to restriction and vesting agreements that limit
transferability and allow the Company to repurchase
unvested shares at the original purchase price. The shares
vest ratably over a four-year period that generally begins on
each employee’s hire date. During 1998, 1999 and 2000, the
Company repurchased 107,979, 56,378 and 22,205 shares,

. respectively, of unvested common stock for $0.001 per share.

There were 62,722 shares of common stock unvested at
December 31, 2000.

Stock Plans .

In April 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Plan”), which provides for the grant of
stock options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards
to employees, directors and consultants. The plan allows for
the issuance of up to 1,083,259 shares of common stock
through April 2008. The Board of Directors determines the
term of each option, the option price, the number of shares for
which each option is granted and the rate at which each
option is exercisable. During 1999, the Board of Directors
amended all outstanding grants to allow- holders the opportu-
nity to exercise options prior to vesting. Exercised options
that are unvested are subject to repurchase by the Company
at the original exercise price. Options granted under the plan
generally vest in increments over four years.
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In January 2000, the Board of Directors approved an
amendment to the Plan to increase the number of shares avail-
able under the Plan to 1,448,259. In May 2000, the Board of
Directors appro'ved an amendment to the Plan to increase the
number of shares available under the Plan to 4,368,259. In
addition, the Board of Directors also approved the 2000
Employee Stock Purchase Plan which provides for the
issuance of up to 255,500 shares of common stock to partici-
pating employees and the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan
which provides for the issuance of up to 250,000 shares of
common stock to the Company’s directors. Both the 2000
Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the 2000 Directors Stock
Option Plan have received stockholder approval.

Prior to the Company’s initial public offering, the Board of
Directors of the Company determined the fair value of the
Company’s common stock in its good faith judgment at each
option grant date for grants under the Plan considering a
number of factors including the financial and operating
performance of the Company, recent transactions in the
Company’s common and preferred stock, if any, the values of
similarly situated companies and the lack of marketability
of the Company’s common stock. Following the Company’s
initial public offering, the fair value is determined based on the
traded value of the Company’s common stock.

During the period January 1, 2000 to September 31, 2000,
the Company issued 2,273,624 options at exercise prices
below the estimated fair value of the Company’s common
stock as of the date of grant of such options based on the price
of the Company’s common stock in connection with the
Company’s initial public offering. The total deferred compen-
sation associated with these options is approximately $17.3
million. Included in the results of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2000 is compensation expense of approx-
imately $3.7 million associated with such options.

The Company has elected to follow APB 25 in accounting
for its stock options granted to employees because the alter-
native fair value accounting provided for under SFAS 123,
requires the use of option valuation models that were not
developed for use in valuing employee stock options. Because
the exercise price of the Company’s stock options generally
equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant, no compensation is recognized under APB 25. Had
compensation costs for the Plan been determined based on
the fair value at the grani dates as calculated in accordance
with SFAS 123, the Company’s net loss for the year ended
December 31, 1999 and 2000 would have been increased to
the pro forma amounts indicated below.

Years Ended December 31,
1999

1998 2000

Net loss attributable to
common stockholders—
As reported

Net loss attributable to
common stockholders—
Pro forma

Net loss per share attributable
to common stockholders—
As reported $

Net loss per share attributable
to common stockholders—
Pro forma $

$32,909,701 $40,605,911 $101,635,158

$32,965,764 $40,771,828 $106,150,604

603) - $ (80.08) $ (8.43)

(604) § (8041) § 8.80)

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatility 70% 70% 70%
Risk-free interest rate 4.70% 5.45% 6.32%
Expected option term 3.38 years 3.30 years 3.35 years

A summary of stock option activity under the 1998 Stock
Incentive Plan and the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan are
as follows:

Number of  Weighted Average
. Shares Exercise Price
Outstanding, December 31, 1997 —_— $ —
Granted 734,745 1.11
Exercised (2,037) 0.64
Canceled (27,437) 0.88
Outstanding, December 31, 1998 705,271 1.12
Granted 239,075 123
Canceled (175,380) 1.05
Outstanding, December 31, 1999 768,966 116
Granted 3,080,424 9.80
Exercised (227,523) 1.26
Canceled (406,713) 1.22
Outstanding, December 31, 2000 3,215,154 $9.43
Available for future grant at
December 31, 2000 1,173,545

The weighted average per share fair value of options
granted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 was $0.55, $0.62 and
$10.34, respectively. The weighted average fair value and
exercise price of options granted during 2000 which were
granted with exercise prices below the fair market value
were $9.35 and $4.68, respectively. The weighted average fair
value and exercise price of options granted during 2000
which were granted with exercise prices equal to the fair
market value were $13.19 and $24.96, respectively.



The following table summarizes information about stock options from the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2000 Directors

Stock Option Plan outstanding at December 31, 2000:

Options Outstanding Options Vested
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Number Remaining Average Number Average
Range of Outstanding Contractual Exercise Outstanding Exercise
Exercise Prices at 12/31/00 Life (Years) Price at 12/31/00 Price
$ 0.69-% 3.08 911,673 872 $ 1.63 363,052 $1.46
$ 4.79-$% 4.79 850,450 9.39 $ 4.79 115,582 $4.79
$ 5.92-$12.00 631,231 9.52 $ 6.69 3,815 $5.92
$19.88-$24.00 183,750 9.85 $22.76 — —
$24.13-$30.63 638,050 9.93 $25.60 -— —
3,215,154 9.36 $ 9.43 482,449 $2.29

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

At December 31, 2000, there were 7,913,763 shares of com-
mon stock reserved for future issuance under the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, for conversion of the Common Stock
Warrants and for grants made under the 1998 Stock Incentive
Plan and the 2000 Director Stock Option Plan.

8. Net Loss and Unaudited Pro Forma Net Loss Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and
diluted, and unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss per
share for the respective periods. The unaudited pro forma basic
and diluted net loss per share gives effect to the conversion of
the redeemable convertible preferred stock and the convertible
notes and accrued interest as if converted at the date of original
issuance.

Year Ended December 31,

1998 ' 1999 2000

Basic and Diluted

Net loss

Dividends and accretion on
redeemable convertible
preferred stock

Net loss attributable to
common stockholders

$(28,950,798)  $(34,712,895) $ (71,292,170)

(3958903)  (5,893016)  (30,342,988)

$(32,909,701)  $(40,605911)  $(101,635,158)

Weighted average common

shares outstanding 6,075,948 850,238 12,225,537
Less: unvested restricted

common shares outstanding (621,295) (343,173) (166,262)
Weighted average common ’

shares used to compute

net loss per share 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275

Basic and diluted net loss
per share $ 603) $ (80.08) $ (8.43)

Year Ended December 31,

1999 2000

Unaudited Pro Forma Basic

and Diluted
Net loss $(34,712,895)  $(71,292,170)
Interest expense on

convertible notes 197,455 19,390,414
Net loss used to compute

pro forma net loss per share $(34,515440)  $(51,901,756)

Weighted average common
shares used to compute
net loss per share 507,065

Weighted average number of
common shares assuming the
conversion of all redeemable
convertible preferred stock
and convertible notes and
accrued interest at the date of
original issuance

12,059,275

17,292,811 12,659,800

Weighted average common
shares used to compute
pro forma net loss per share

17,799,876 24,719,075

Unaudited pro forma basic
and diluted net loss per share $ (1.94) $ (2.10)

Options to purchase 768,966 and 3,215,154 shares of common
stock have not been included in the computation of diluted net
loss per share for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, as their effects would have been antidilutive.
Warrants to purchase 1,013,877 and 3,269,564 shares of common
stock were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss
per share for the year ended December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, as their effect would be antidilutive.
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9. Income Taxes

The significant components of the Company’s deferred tax
assets are as follows:

December 31,
1999 2000

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 30,864,000 $ 48,494,000
Research and development credit 2,074,000 3,576,000
Intangible assets 1,139,000 1,233,000
Other 36,000 86,000
34,113,000 53,389,000
Valuation allowance (34,113,000) (53,389,000)
Net deferred tax assets $ —_ $ —

The Company has increased its valuation allowance by
$19,276,000 in 2000 to provide a full valuation allowance for
deferred tax assets since the realization of these future benefits
is not considered more likely than not. The amount of the
deferred tax asset considered realizable is subject to change
based on estimates of future taxable income during the carry-
forward period. If the Company achieves profitability, these
deferred tax assets would be available to offset future income
taxes. The future utilization of net operating losses and credits
may be subject to limitation based upon changes in ownership
under the rules of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company
will assess the need for the valuation allowance at each balance
sheet date based on all available evidence.

At December 31, 2000, the Company had federal net operat-
ing loss carryforwards available to reduce taxable income, and
federal research and development tax credit carryforwards
available to reduce future tax liabilities, which expire as follows:

Federal Research

Federal Net and Development
Year of Operating Loss Tax Credit
Expiration Carryforwards Carryforwards
2011 $ 930,000 $ 22,000
2012 15,260,000 527,000
2018 27,876,000 425,000
2019 33,802,000 1,002,000
2020 44,282,000 1,300,000

$122,150,000 $3,276,000 .

For state purposes, net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $116,042,000 expire in the years 2001 through
2004. State research and development tax credit carryforwards
are approximately $300,000.

10. License Agreements

Angiomax

In March 1997, the Company entered into an agreement
with Biogen, Inc. for the license of the anticoagulant pharma-
ceutical, bivalirudin (now known as Angiomax). Under the
terms of the agreement, the Company acquired exclusive
worldwide rights to the technology, patents, trademarks,
inventories and know-how related to Angiomax. In exchange
for the license, the Company paid $2 million on the closing
date and is obligated to pay up to an additional $8 million
upon reaching certain Angiomax sales milestones, including
the first commercial sale of Angiomax for the treatment of
AMIin the United States and Europe. In addition, the Company
shall pay royalties on future sales of Angiomax and. on any
sublicense royalties earned until the later of (1) 12 years after
the date of the first commercial sale of the product in a country
or (2) the date in which the product or its manufacture, use or
sale is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed
patent right in such country. The agreement also stipulates
that the Company use commercially reasonable efforts
to meet certain milestones related to the development and
commercialization of Angiomayx; including expending at least
$20 million for certain development and commercialization
activities, which we met in 1998. The license and rights under
the agreement remain in force until our obligation to pay roy-
alties ceases. Either party may terminate for material breach,
and the Company may terminate the agreement for any reason
upon 90 days prior written notice. During December 2000, the
Company received approval from the U.S. Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) for the sale of Angiomax for certain
indications.

CTV-05

In August 1999, the Company entered into an agreement
with Gynelogix, Inc. for the license of the biotherapeutic
agent CTV-05, a strain of human lactobacillus currently under
clinical investigation for applications in the areas of urogenital
and reproductive health. Under the terms of the agreement,
the Company acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the
patents and know-how related to CTV-05. In exchange for the
license, the Company has paid $400,000 and is obligated to
pay an additional $100,000 upon reaching certain develop-
ment and regulatory milestones and to fund agreed-upon
operational costs of Gynelogix related to the development of
CTV-05 on a monthly basis subject to a limitation of $50,000
per month. In addition, the Company is obligated to pay roy-
alties on future sales of CTV-05 and on any sublicense royalties



earned until the date on which the product is no longer cov-
ered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in a country.
The agreement also stipulates that the Company must use
commercially reasonable efforts in pursuing the development,
commercialization and marketing of CTV-05 to maintain the
license. The license and rights under the agreement remain in
force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party
may terminate the agreement for material breach, and may
terminate the agreement for any reason upon 60 days prior
written notice. ‘

1S-159

In July 1998, the Company entered into an agreement with
Immunotech S.A. for the license of the pharmaceutical IS-159
for the treatment of acute migraine headache. Under the terms
of the agreement, the Company acquired exclusive worldwide
rights to the patents and know-how related to 1S-159. In
exchange for the license, the Company paid $1 million on the
closing date and is obligated to pay up to an additional $4.5
million upon reaching certain development and regulatory
milestones. In addition, the Company shall pay royalties on
future sales of IS-159 and on any sublicense royalties earned
until the date on which the product is no longer covered by a
valid claim of the licensed patent rights in a country. The
agreement also stipulates that the Company must use com-
mercially reasonable efforts in pursuing the development,
commercialization and ‘marketing of IS-159 and meet certain
development and regulatory milestones to maintain the
license. The licenses and rights under the agreement remain
in force until the Company’s obligation to pay royalties
ceases. Either party may terminate the agreement for material
breach, and the Company may terminate the agreement for
any reason upon 60 days prior written notice.

11. Strategic Alliances

UCB

In December 1999, the Company entered into a commercial
supply agreement with UCB-Bioproducts S.A. (“UCB”) to
develop and supply Angiomax bulk drug substance. Under the
terms of the agreement, UCB Bioproducts is also responsible
for developing the Chemilog process in coordination with the
Company and obtaining regulatory approval for use of the
process. The Company has agreed to partially fund UCB
Bioproducts’ development activities. The funding is due upon
the completion by UCB Bioproducts of development mile-
stones. If UCB Bioproducts successfully completes each of
these development milestones, the Company anticipates total
development funding to be approximately $9.1 million. During
1999 and 2000, expenses incurred for such services were
approximately $811,000 and $560,000, respectively, of which

approximately $469,000 and $789,000 was recorded in accounts
payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively. In addition, the Company has agreed to purchase
Angiomax bulk drug product exclusively from UCB
Bioproducts at agreed upon prices for a period of seven years
from the date of the first commercial sale of Angiomax pro-
duced under the Chemilog process. Following the expiration
of the agreement, or if the Company terminates the agreement
prior to its expiration, UCB Bioproducts will transfer the
development technology to the Company. If the Company
engages a third party to manufacture Angiomax using this
technology, the Company will be obligated to pay UCB
Bioproducts a royalty based on the amount paid by the
Company to the third-party manufacturer.

During 1999, the Company placed an order with UCB
Bioproducts for the manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug prod-
uct. Manufacture of $14.2 million of this material was com-
pleted in 2000, of which $12.2 million was expensed during the
period. All costs associated with the manufacture of Angiomax
bulk drug product and finished products to which title was
transferred to the Company prior to the date of FDA approval
of Angiomax were expensed as research and development. The
Company recorded Angiomax bulk drug product to which title
transferred after the date of FDA approval of Angiomax as
inventory. In November 2000, the Company placed additional
orders with UCB Bioproducts for the manufacture of Angiomax
bulk drug product. Under the terms of these orders, the
Company is scheduled to take title to material and become obli-
gated to make payments totaling approximately $24.0 million in
fiscal 2001 and early fiscal 2002.

Lonza

In September 1997, the Company entered into an agree-
ment with Lonza AG (“Lonza”) for the development of a new
commercial manufacturing process for an advanced interme-
diate compound used in the manufacturing of Angiomax
(“Angiomax intermediate”). In November 1998, the Company
entered into an additional agreement with Lonza for the engi-
neering, procurement and installation of equipment for the
initial manufacturing of the Angiomax intermediate using the
new process. The agreement also contemplated the purchase
of the Angiomax intermediate from Lonza at specified prices
for an anticipated two-year period following initial production
and stipulated the basic principles of a long-term commercial
supply contract. In January 2000, the Company notified

- Lonza of its intention to terminate the agreement. As a result

of the termination, the Company retained certain ownership
rights to intellectual property and was responsible for
reimbursement of all costs incurred under the terms of the
agreement through the date of notice. Approximately



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

December 31, 2000

$1,572,000 was recorded in accounts payable and accrued
expenses at December 31, 1999. There was no outstanding
obligation to Lonza at December 31, 2000.

PharmaBio

In August 1996, the Company entered into a strategic
alliance with one of its stockholders, PharmaBio Development
Inc. (“PharmaBio”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Quintiles
Transnational Corporation (“Quintiles”). Under the terms of
the strategic alliance agreement, PharmaBio and any of its
affiliates who work on the Company’s projects will, at no cost
to the Company, review and evaluate, jointly with the
Company, development programs designed by the Company
related to potential or actual product acquisitions. The purpose
of this collaboration is to optimize the duration, cost, specifica-
tions and quality aspects of such programs. PharmaBio and its
affiliates have also agreed to perform other services with
respect to our products, including clinical and non-clinical
development services, project management, project imple-
mentation, pharmacoeconomic services, regulatory affairs
and post marketing surveillance services and statistical, sta-
tistical programming, data processing and data management
services pursuant to work orders agreed to by the Company
and PharmaBio from time to time. Through December 31,
2000, the Company has entered in approximately 40 work
orders with PharmaBio and has paid PharmaBio a total of
$10.9 million. During 1998, 1999 and 2000, expenses incurred
for such services were approximately $1.7 million, $3.7 million
and $2.3 million, respectively, of which approximately $1.2
million and $813,000 was recorded in accounts payable and
accrued expenses at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
At December 31, 2000, the Company had open orders with
PharmaBio for such services that reflect estimated aggregate
future payments of approximately $3.4 million.

Innovex

In January 1997, the Company entered into a consulting
agreement with Innovex, Inc. (“Innovex”), a subsidiary of
Quintiles, which was subsequently superceded by a consult-
ing agreement executed with Innovex in December 1998.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Innovex provides the
Company with consulting services with respect to pharmaceu-
tical marketing and sales. Since December 1997, the Company
has also entered into various clinical services agreements with
Innovex pursuant to which Innovex has provided project
management, clinical monitoring, site management, medical
monitoring, regulatory affairs, data management and quality
assurance services with respect to clinical trials of Angiomax.
None of the clinical services agreements is currently outstand-
ing. Through December 31, 2000 the Company has paid
Innovex $1.8 million under these agreements.

In December 2000, the Company signed a master services
agreement and a work order with Innovex under which
Innovex agreed to provide contract sales, marketing and com-
mercialization services relating to Angiomax. Under the master
services agreement, Innovex may provide additional services
unrelated to Angiomax pursuant to work orders entered into
from time to time. Under the master services agreement and the
Angiomax work order, Innovex will provide the Angiomax
sales force of 52 representatives, a sales territory management
system and operational support for the launch of Angiomax.
The Company will provide the marketing plan and marketing
materials for the sales force and other sales and marketing sup-
port and direction for the sales force. For Innovex services, the
Company has agreed to a daily fee for each day worked by the
members of the sales force. The Company will reimburse
Innovex for expenses incurred in providing the services and for
the incentive compensation paid to the sales force of Innovex.
The Company has the right to terminate the work order and the
master services agreement at any time upon 90 days prior
written notice. The Company may hire members of the sales
force, although the Company may incur additional fees to
Innovex. Through December 31, 2000, the Company had paid
Innovex $1.1 million for its services under the master services
agreement and work order. Total fees for 2001 under this
agreement are estimated to be approximately $8.2 million
subject to adjustments in the size of the sales force and other
commercial factors.

During 1998, 1999 and 2000, expenses incurred for services
provided by Innovex were approximately $943,000, $616,000
and $1.7 million, respectively, of which approximately
$102,000, $280,000 and $440,000 were recorded in accounts
payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 1998, 1999 and
2000, respectively.

Stack Pharmaceuticals

In April 2000, the Company entered into an agreement
with Stack Pharmaceuticals, an entity controlled by David
Stack, one of the Company’s senior vice presidents, which
was amended in August 2000. Pursuant to the terms of this
agreement, as amended, Stack Pharmaceuticals will perform
infrastructure services for us, which includes providing office
facilities, equipment and supplies for the Company’s employ-
ees based in New Jersey, and such consulting, advisory and
related services for the Company as may be agreed upon from
time to time. For the infrastructure services, the Company has
agreed to pay Stack Pharmaceuticals a service fee of $20,100
per month. The term of this agreement continues until April 1,
2001, but either party may terminate it earlier upon 90 days
prior written-notice. From January 2000 through March 2000,
Stack Pharmaceuticals provided the Company with consulting



services under a consulting agreement that expired on March
31, 2000. Through December 31, 2000, the Company had paid
Stack Pharmaceuticals $407,000 under these agreements. The
was no outstanding obligation to Stack Pharmaceuticals at
December 31, 2000.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its facilities in Cambridge,
Massachusetts and Parsippany, New Jersey and certain office
furniture and equipment at those facilities under operating
leases. The leases for the Cambridge and Parsippany facilities
expire in August 2003 and September 2005, respectively. Future
annual minimum payments under all non-cancelable operating
leases are $590,000, $712,000, $429,000, $210,000 and $160,000 in
2001, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. Rent expense was
approximately $326,000, $442,000 and $504,000 for the years
ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The Company is involved in ordinary-and routine matters
and litigation incidental to its business. There are no such
matters pending that the Company expects to be material in
relation to its financial condition or results of operations.

13. Employee Benefit Plan

401(k) Plan

The Company has an employee savings and retirement
plan which is qualified under Section 401 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Our employees may elect to reduce their cur-
rent compensation by up to the statutorily prescribed limit
and have the amount of such reduction contributed to the
401(k) plan. The Company may make matching or additional
contributions to the 401(k) plan in amounts to be determined
annually by the board of directors. The Company has not
made any matching or additional contributions to date.

The following table presents selected quarterly financial data for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000.

Three Months Ended

Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30; Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
1999 - 1999 1999 " 1999 2000 2000 2000 2000
In thousands, except per share data

Total operating expenses $ 8,483 $ 11,715 $ 9,000 $6,155 $ 11,840 $ 8,706 $ 10,297 $ 23,763
Net loss (8,137) (11,369) (8,877) (6,330) (19,243) (20,408) (9,459) (22,182)
Net loss attributable to

common stockholders (9,573) (12,806) (10,375) (7,852) (20,773) (47,596) (11,083) (22,182) -
Basic and diluted net loss

attributable to common . . "

stockholders per common share $(21.09) $ (25.62) $ (19.21) $(13.45) $ (32.91) $ (68.65) $ (0.67) $ (0.79)
Pro forma basic and diluted

net loss attributable to common

stockholders per common share (0.48) (0.66) (0.49) (0.33) (0.55) (0.38) (0.34) (0.74)

The net loss for each quarter of 2000 was higher compared to
the corresponding quarter of 1999. There were higher research
and development costs in every quarter of 2000 associated with
increased enrollment rates in the HERO-2 trial in AM], in the
third and fourth quarters of 2000 related to the initiation of the
REPLACE clinical trial program in angioplasty, and in the first
and fourth quarters of 2000 in connection with the receipt of
Angiomax bulk drug substance to which title was taken prior to
FDA approval. These increases in research and development
costs were partly offset by lower development costs in all
quarters of 2000 related to the discontinuation of the semilog
manufacturing program and reduction in the 1S-159 activities.

Higher selling, general and administrative expenses associated
with the commercial launch of Angiomax also contributed to
the higher net loss in the last three quarters of 2000 as compared
to the corresponding quarters of 1999. Higher interest expense
in the first two quarters of 2000 resulted from the amortization
of the discount on convertible notes issued in October 1999 and
March 2000. In the second quarter of 2000, we recorded a divi-
dend on the beneficial conversion associated with the issuance
of convertible preferred stock in May 2000. In addition, in all
the quarters of 2000, amortization of deferred compensation
on the grant of stock options also contributed to the higher 2000
quarterly losses.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Medicines Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets of The Medicines Company (a company in the develop-
ment stage) as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, redeemable preferred
stock and stockholders’ equity/(deficit), and cash flows, for
each of the three years in the period ending December 31, 2000,
and for the period July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December
31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of materjal misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

- consolidated financial position of The Medicines Company

at December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the consolidated results
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2000, and for the period
July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2000,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States.

Boston, Massachusetts

February 13, 2001,

except for the eighth paragraph of Note 2,
as to which the date is February 20, 2001
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intends,” “may” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statemeits.

There are a number of important factors that could cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from those indicated by the forward-looking statements contained in
this report. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. The Company undertakes no obligation
to republish revised forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hercof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readers are also urged
to review carefully and consider the various disclosures made by the Company that attempt to advise interested parties of the factors that affect the Company’s business, including
the disclosures made under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Factors Which May Affect Future Results” in
this report, as well as the Company’s periodic reports on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, ) ’
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THE INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT COMPLETE AND MAY BE CHANGED. THE SELLING STOCKHOLDERS
NAMED IN THIS PROSPECTUS MAY NOT SELL THESE SECURITIES UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FILED WITH
. THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION IS EFFECTIVE. THIS PROSPECTUS IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL THESE

SECURITIES AND NEITHER WE NOR THE SELLING STOCKHOLDERS NAMED IN THIS PROSPECTUS ARE SOLICITING
OFFERS TO BUY THESE SECURITIES IN ANY JURISDICTION WHERE THE OFFER OR SALE IS NOT PERMITTED.

SUBJECT TO COMPLETION, DATED MAY 22, 2001
COMPANY LOGO
4,000,000 Shares of Common Stock

This prospectus relates to resales of shares of common stock previously issued by The Medicines Company. We will not receive any proceeds
from the sale of the shares.

. The selling stockholders identified in this prospectus, or their pledgees, donees, transferees or other successors-in-interest, may offer the shares
from time to time through public or private transactions at prevailing market prices, at prices related to prevailing market prices or at privately
negotiated prices.

We do not know when or in what amounts a selling stockholder may offer shares for sale. The selling stockholders may not sell any or all of
the shares offered by this prospectus. ‘

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "MDCO." On May 21, 2001, the closing sale price of the
common stock on Nasdaq was $13.27 per share. You are urged to obtain current market quotations for the common stock.

INVESTING IN OUR COMMON STOCK INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. SEE "RISK

FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 5.

NEITHER THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION HAS APPROVED OR
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this prospectus. This summary does not contain all of the information you should
consider before buying shares of our common stock.. You should read the entire prospectus carefully.

THE MEDICINES COMPANY

We acquire, develop and commercialize biopharmaceutical products that are in late stages of development or have been approved for
marketing. In December 2000; we received marketing approval from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, for Angiomax, our lead
product, for use as an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin in patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty.
Coronary angioplasty is a procedure used to restore normal blood flow in an obstructed artery in the heart. We began selling Angiomax in the
United States in January 2001.

We are also developing Angiomax for additional potential applications for use in the treatment of ischemic heart disease, a condition which
occurs when organs receive an inadequate supply of oxygen as a result of decreased blood flow. As of May 15, 2001, clinical investigators had
administered Angiomax to approximately 13,100 patients in clinical trials for the treatment and prevention of blood clots in a wide range of
hospital applications. We believe that Angiomax will become the leading replacement for heparin in hospital care. In the United States, heparin
is the most widely-used acute care anticoagulant, a type of drug used to prevent or slow the formation of blood clots, and is used to treat
approximately five million hospitalized patients per year.

ANGIOMAX

Angiomax directly blocks or inhibits the actions of thrombin, a key component in the formation and growth of blood clots. By blocking
thrombin directly, rather than indirectly like heparin, Angiomax inhibits the actions of thrombin both in the clot and in the blood. Angiomax's
inhibition of thrombin is reversible, which means that its thrombin blocking effect wears off over time, allowing thrombin to again work in the
clotting process. This reversibility is associated with a reduced risk of bleeding.

In the clinical trials in angioplasty, Angiomax has:

- reduced the frequency of life-threatening coronary events including heart attack and the need for emergency coronary procedures;

- reduced the likelihood of major bleeding and the need for blood transfusion;

- demonstrated a predictable anticoagulant response to a specific Angiomax dose, which enables simplified dosing; and

- been used in combination with glycoprotein IIb/Illa, also known as GP 1Ib/IlIa, inhibitors and demonstrated no evidence of significant
interactions. '

Our development programs are designed to expand the applications of Angiomax for the treatment of ischemic heart disease. As of May 15,
2001, we had: :

- a randomized, open-label Phase 3b trial program in angioplasty underway comparing Angiomax to heparin, with and without GP ITb/ITla
inhibitors;

- a 17,000 patient Phase 3 trial program underwgy studying the use of Angiomax for the treatment of patients who have suffered a heart attack;

- a Phase 3 trial program underway studying the use of Angiomax for the treatment of patients undergoing angioplasty who experience reduced
platelet count and clotting due to an allergic, or immunological, reaction to heparin;
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- a Phase 2 trial program underway studying the use of Angiomax as an antlcoagulant in patients undergoing coronary artery bypass graft
surgery without the use of a bypass pump; and

- plans to commence a Phase 3 trial program to evaluate the use of Angiomax in patients with unstable angina, a coronary condition in which
patients experience the new onset of severe chest pain, increasingly frequent chest pain or chest pain that occurs while they are at rest.

STRATEGY

Our strategy is to build a commercial biopharmaceutical operation by acquiring, developing and commercializing products in late-stage clinical
development, which we refer to as our product candidates, and approved products. We will actively manage the development and
commercialization of these product candidates and approved products. We expect our first product, Angiomax, to become the cornerstone
product of an acute hospital product franchise that we plan to build. We market Angiomax in the United States using a sales force contracted
from Innovex, Inc., which we manage.

We are also focused on specialty anti-infectives and are developing a second product candidate, CTV-05, a proprietary biotherapeutic agent
with a potentially broad range of applications in the treatment of gynecological and reproductive infections. We are currently studying CTV-05
in a double-blind placebo controlled Phase 2 trial program examining the safety and effectiveness of the compound as an adjunct to antibiotic
therapy in the treatment of bacterial vaginosis, the most common gynecological infection in women of childbearing age. We intend to market
CTV-05 and our other products in the United States by supplementing our existing commercial organization, contracting with external
organizations, which we would manage, or collaborating with other biopharmaceutical companies.

Our principal objectives include:
- commercializing Angiomax for use in patients with unstable angina undergoing angioplasty;
- developing and commercializing Angiomax as the leading replacement for heparin for use in the hospital treatment of ischemic heart disease;

- acquiring additional products with (1) existing clinical data which provides reasonable evidence of safety and efficacy, (2) an anticipated time
to market of four years or less and (3) potential cost savings to payors or improved efficiency of patient care; and

- making the best use of our resources through our relationships with contract development, manufacturing and sales companies.
CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Medicines Company was incorporated in Delaware in July 1996. Our corporate website is located at www.themedicinescompany.com. We
do not intend for information found on our website to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We own or have rights to various
trademarks and trade names used in our business, including The Medicines Company name and logo and Angiomax(R).

Our executive offices are located at One Cambridge Center, Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142, and our telephone number is (617) 225-9099.
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THE OFFERING

Common stock offered by selling
stockholders......................... 4,000,000 shares

Use of proceeds...... e e e The Medicines Company will not
receive any proceeds from the sale of
shares in this offering.

Nasdaq National Market Symbol........ "MDCO"



SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below, we provide you with our summary consolidated financial data. We have prepared this information using our audited
consolidated financial statements for the period from July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 1996 and for the years ended December
31, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 and our unaudited consolidated financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2000 and 2001. The
pro forma net loss per share data reflects the conversion of our convertible notes and accrued interest, and the conversion of our outstanding
convertible preferred stock and accrued dividends into common stock upon the closing of our initial public offering in August 2000. The pro
forma balance sheet data as of March 31, 2001 reflect the sale of 4,000,000 shares of common stock on May 16, 2001 at a price of $11.00 per
share for net proceeds of approximately $41.8 million. The pro forma net loss per share data and the pro forma balance sheet data do not
include the effect of any options or warrants outstanding. The following data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements, including the accompanying notes, and "Management's Discussion and AnalySIS of Financial Condition and Results of Operations"
mcluded elsewhere in this prospectus.

PERIOD FROM-

INCEPTION
(JuLy 31,
1996) THREE MONTHS ENDED
THROUGH YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, MARCH 31,
DECEMBER 31, = -m - emmmoo o oo L el
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2000 2001
In thousands, except share and
per share data
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA
Net revenue.............ouveeunmnn. $ -o-- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ .- $ -- $ 1,861
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenues............... -~ -- -- .- - -- 332
Research and development....... 827 16,044 24,005 30,345 39,572 10,642 12,595
Selling, general and 702
administrative............... 2,421 6,248 5,008 15,034 1,198 9,059
Total operating expenses......... 1,529 18,465 30,253 35,353 54,606 11,840 ’ 21,986
Loss from operations............. (1,529) (18,465) {30,253) (35,353) (54,606) (11,840) (20,125)
Interest income (expense), net... 62 659 1,302 640 (16,686) (7,403) 1,069
Net 10SS....... ... .. (1,467) (17,806) (28,951) (34,713) (71,292) (19,243) (19, 056)
Dividends and accretion to (118)
redemption value of redeemable
convertible preferred stock.... (2,018) (3,959) (5,893) (30,343) (1,530) -~
Net loss attributable to common $ (1,585) N
stockholders................... $ (40 606) $ (101,635) $ (20,773) § (19,056)
Net loss attributable to common $ (2.85)
stockholders per common share,
basic and diluted.............. $ (4.06) § (6.03) $ (80.08) $ (8.43) § (32.91) § (0.63)
Shares used in computing net loss 557,178

attributable to common

stockholders per common share,

basic and diluted.............. 4,887,230 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275 631,276 30,247,599
Unaudited pro forma net loss

attributable to common

stockholders per common share,

basic and diluted.............. $ (1.94) § (2.10) § (0.55) $ (0.63)
Shares used in computing : .

unaudited pro forma net loss

attributable to common

stockholders per common share,

basic and diluted .............. 17,799,876 24,719,075 21,407,651 30,247,599

AS OF MARCH 31, 2001

ACTUAL PRO FORMA

In thousands
BALANCE SHEET DATA
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accrued

interest receivable......................................: $ 60,153 $ 101,956
Working capital. .. .. ... e 49,670 91,473
TOLAL A58 S . o vttt it it ittt ettt e e e e e e 65,801 107,604
Accumulated deficCit. .. .. ... ..t (215,616) (215,616)

Total stockholders' equity............iiiiiiiiiannnnnnnnn.. 51,080 92,883



RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following risk factors and all other information contained in this prospectus before purchasing our common
stock. Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk and you may lose all or part of your investment. Please read "Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements."

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF NET LOSSES, AND WE EXPECT TO CONTINUE TO INCUR NET LOSSES AND MAY NOT
ACHIEVE OR MAINTAIN PROFITABILITY

We have incurred net losses since our inception, including net losses of approximately $19.1 million for the three months ended March 3 1,
2001. As of March 31, 2001, we had an accumulated deficit of approximately $215.6 million. We expect to make substantial expenditures to
further develop and commercialize our products, including costs and expenses associated with clinical trials, regulatory approval and
commercialization of products. As a result, we are unsure when we will become profitable, if at all.

OUR BUSINESS IS VERY DEPENDENT ON THE COMMERCIAL SUCCESS OF ANGIOMAX

Other than Angiomax, our products are in clinical phases of development and, even if approved by the FDA, are a number of years away from
entering the market. As a result, Angiomax will account for almost all of our revenues for the foreseeable future. The commercial success of
Angiomax will depend upon its acceptance by physicians, patients and other key decision-makers as a therapeutic and cost-effective alternative
to heparin and other products used in current practice. If Angiomax is not commercially successful, we will have to find additional sources of
revenues or curtail or cease operations.

FAILURE TO RAISE ADDITIONAL FUNDS IN THE FUTURE MAY AFFECT THE DEVELOPMENT, MANUFACTURE AND
SALE OF OUR PRODUCTS

Our operations to date have generated substantial and increasing needs for cash. Our negative cash flow from operations is expected to continue
into the foreseeable future. The clinical development of Angiomax for additional indications, the development of our other product candidates
and the acquisition and development of additional product candidates by us will require a commitment of substantial funds. Our future capital
requirements are dependent upon many factors and may be significantly greater than we expect.

We believe, based on our current operating plan, including anticipated sales of Angiomax, that our cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities as of May 16, 2001 will be sufficient to fund our operations for at least 18 months. If our existing resources are insufficient to satisfy
our liquidity requirements due to slower than anticipated sales of Angiomax or otherwise, or if we acquire additional product candidates, we
may need to sell additional equity or debt securities. If we are unable to obtain this additional financing, we may be required to reduce the
scope of our planned research, development and commercialization activities, which could harm our financial condition and operating results.

WE CANNOT EXPAND THE INDICATIONS FOR ANGIOMAX UNLESS WE RECEIVE FDA APPROVAL FOR EACH ADDITIONAL
INDICATION. FAILURE TO EXPAND THESE INDICATIONS WILL LIMIT THE SIZE OF THE COMMERCIAL MARKET FOR
ANGIOMAX -

We received in December 2000 approval from the FDA of the use of Angiomax as an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin in patients
with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. One of our key objectives is to expand the indications for which the FDA will
approve Angiomax. In order to do this, we will need to conduct additional clinical trials and obtain FDA approval for each proposed indication.
If we are unsuccessful in expanding the approved indication for the use of Angiomax, the size of the commercial market for Angiomax will be
limited. '



FAILURE TO OBTAIN REGULATORY APPROVAL IN FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS WILL PREVENT US FROM MARKETING
ANGIOMAX ABROAD

We intend to market our products in international markets, including Europe. In order to market our products in the European Union and many
other foreign jurisdictions, we must obtain separate regulatory approvals. In February 1998, we submitted a Marketing Authorization
Application to the European Agency for the Evaluation of Medicinal Products, or EMEA, for use of Angiomax in unstable angina patients
undergoing angioplasty. Following extended interaction with European regulatory authorities, the Committee of Proprietary Medicinal
Products of the EMEA voted in October 1999 not to recommend Angiomax for approval in angioplasty. The United Kingdom and Ireland
dissented from this decision. We have withdrawn our application to the EMEA and are in active dialog with European regulators to determine
our course of action. We may not be able to obtain approval from any or all of the jurisdictions in which we seek approval to market
Angiomax. Obtaining foreign approvals may require additional trials and additional expense. :

THE DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZATION OF OUR PRODUCTS MAY BE TERMINATED OR DELAYED, AND THE
COSTS OF DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZATION MAY INCREASE, IF THIRD PARTIES WHO WE RELY ON TO
MANUFACTURE AND SUPPORT THE DEVELOPMENT AND COMMERCIALIZATION OF OUR PRODUCTS DO NOT FULFILL
THEIR OBLIGATIONS

Our development and commercialization strategy entails entering into arrangements with corporate and academic collaborators, contract
research organizations, contract sales organizations, distributors, third-party manufacturers, licensors, licensees and others to conduct
development work, manage our clinical trials and manufacture, market and sell our products. Although we manage these services, we do not
have the expertise or the resources to conduct such activities on our own and, as a result, are particularly dependent on third parties in most
areas.

We may not be able to maintain our existing arrangements with respect to the commercialization of Angiomax or establish and maintain
arrangements to develop and commercialize any additional products on terms that are acceptable to us. Any current or future arrangements for
the development and commercialization of our products may not be successful. If we are not able to establish or maintain our agreements
relating to Angiomax or any additional products on terms which we deem favorable, our financial condition would be materially adversely
affected.

Third parties may not perform their oi)ligations as expected. The amount and timing of resources that third parties devote to developing,
manufacturing and commercializing our products may not be within our control. Furthermore, our interests may differ from those of third
parties that manufacture or commercialize our products. Disagreements that may arise with these third parties could delay or lead to the
termination of the development or commercialization of our product candidates, or result in litigation or arbitration, which would be time
consuming and expensive. If any third party that manufactures or supports the development or commercialization of our products breaches or
terminates its agreement with us, or fails to conduct its activities in a timely manner, such breach, termination or failure could:

- delay the development or commercialization of Angiomax, our other product candidates or any additional product candidates that we may
acquire or develop; ’

- require us to undertake unforeseen additional responsibilities or devote unforeseen additional resources to the development or
commercialization of our products; or

- result in the termination of the development or commercialization of our products.

WE ARE CURRENTLY DEPENDENT ON A SINGLE SUPPLIER FOR THE PRODUCTION OF ANGIOMAX BULK DRUG
SUBSTANCE AND A DIFFERENT SINGLE SUPPLIER TO CARRY OUT ALL FILL-FINISH ACTIVITIES FOR ANGIOMAX

Currently, we obtain all of our Angiomax bulk drug substance from one manufacturer, UCB Bioproducts S.A., and rely on another
manufacturer, Ben Venue Laboratories, Inc., to carry out all fill-finish activities for Angiomax, which includes final formulation and transfer of
the drug into vials where it is then freeze-dried and sealed. The FDA requires that all manufacturers of pharmaceuticals for sale in or from the
United States achieve and maintain compliance with the FDA's current Good Manufacturing Practice, or cGMP, regulations and guidelines.
There are a limited number of manufacturers that operate under cGMP regulations
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capable of manufacturing Angiomax. The FDA has inspected Ben Venue Laboratories for cGMP compliance for the manufacture of Angiomax
and UCB Bioproducts for cGMP compliance in the manufacture of pharmaceutical ingredients generally. Ben Venue Laboratories and UCB
Bioproducts have informed us that they have no material deficiencies in cGMP compliance. We do not currently have alternative sources for
production of Angiomax bulk drug substance or to carry out fill-finish activities. In the event that either of our current manufacturers is unable
to carry out its respective manufacturing obligations to our satisfaction, we may be unable to obtain alternative manufacturing, or obtain such
manufacturing on commercially reasonable terms or on a timely basis.

Any delays in the manufacturing‘ process may adversely impact our ability to meet commercial demands for Angiomax on a timely basis and
supply product for clinical trials of Angiomax. :

IF WE DO NOT SUCCEED IN DEVELOPING A SECOND GENERATION PROCESS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF BULK ANGIOMAX
DRUG SUBSTANCE, OUR GROSS MARGINS MAY BE BELOW INDUSTRY AVERAGES

We are currently developing with UCB Bioproducts a second generation process for the production of bulk Angiomax drug substance. This
process involves limited changes to the early manufacturing steps of our current process in order to improve our gross margins on the future
sales of Angiomax. If we cannot develop the process successfully or regulatory approval of the process is not obtained or is delayed, then our
ability to improve our gross margins on future sales of Angiomax may be limited.

CLINICAL TRIALS OF OUR PRODUCT CANDIDATES ARE EXPENSIVE AND TIME CONSUMING, AND THE RESULTS OF
THESE TRIALS ARE UNCERTAIN

Before we can obtain regulatory approvals for the commercial sale of any product which we wish to develop, we will be required to complete
pre-clinical studies and extensive clinical trials in humans to demonstrate the safety and efficacy of such product. We are currently conducting
four clinical trials of Angiomax for use in the treatment of ischemic heart disease. There are numerous factors which could delay our clinical
trials or prevent us from completing these trials successfully. We, or the FDA, may suspend a clinical trial at any time on various grounds,
including a finding that patients are being exposed to unacceptable health risks. :

The rate of completion of clinical trials depends in part upon the rate of enrollment of patients. Patient enrollment is a function of many factors,
including the size of the patient population, the proximity of patients to clinical sites, the eligibility criteria for the trial, the existence of
competing clinical trials and the availability of alternative or new treatments. In particular, the patient population targeted by some of our
clinical trials may be small. Delays in future planned patient enrollment may result in increased costs and program delays.

In addition, clinical trials, if completed, may not show any potential product to be safe or effective. Results obtained in pre-clinical studies or
early clinical trials are not always indicative of results that will be obtained in later clinical trials. Moreover, data obtained from pre-clinical
studies and clinical trials may be subject to varying interpretations. As a result, the FDA or other applicable regulatory authorities may not
approve a product in a timely fashion, or at all.

OUR FAILURE TO ACQUIRE AND DEVELOP ADDITIONAL PRODUCT CANDIDATES OR APPROVED PRODUCTS WILL
IMPAIR OUR ABILITY TO GROW :

As part of our growth strategy, we intend to acquire and develop additional pharmaceutical product candidates or approved products. The
success of this strategy depends upon our ability to identify, select and acquire pharmaceutical products in late-stage development or that have
been approved that meet the criteria we have established. Because we do not have, nor intend to establish, internal scientific research
capabilities, we are dependent upon pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies and other researchers to sell or license product candidates to
us.

Identifying suitable product candidates and approved products and proposing, negotiating and implementing an economically viable acquisition
is a lengthy and complex process. In addition, other companies,



including those with substantially greater financial, marketing and sales resources, may cbmpete with us for the acquisition of product
candidates and approved products. We may not be able to acquire the rights to additional product candidates and approved products on terms
that we find acceptable, or at all.

IF WE BREACH ANY OF THE AGREEMENTS UNDER WHICH WE LICENSE COMMERCIALIZATION RIGHTS TO PRODUCTS OR
TECHNOLOGY FROM OTHERS, WE COULD LOSE LICENSE RIGHTS THAT ARE IMPORTANT TO OUR BUSINESS

We license commercialization rights to products and technology that are important to our business, and we expect to enter into additional
licenses in the future. For instance, we acquired our first three products through exclusive licensing arrangements. See "Business -- License
Agreements" for a description of the terms of these licenses. Under these licenses we are subject to commercialization and development,
sublicensing, royalty, insurance and other obligations. If we fail to comply with any of these requirements, or otherwise breach these license
agreements, the licensor may have the right to terminate the license in whole or to terminate the exclusive nature of the license. In addition,
upon the termination of the license we may be required to license to the licensor the intellectual property that we developed.

OUR ABILITY TO MANAGE OUR BUSINESS EFFECTIVELY COULD BE HAMPERED IF WE ARE UNABLE TO ATTRACT
AND RETAIN KEY PERSONNEL AND CONSULTANTS

The biopharmaceutical industry has experienced a high rate of turnover of management personnel in recent years. We are highly dependent on
our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel for the acquisition, development and commercialization activities we conduct or sponsor. If
we lose one or more of the members of our senior management, including our chief executive officer, Dr. Clive A. Meanwell, or other key
employees or consultants, our business and operating results could be seriously harmed. Our ability to replace these key employees may be
difficult and may take an extended period of time because of the limited number of individuals in the biotechnology industry with the breadth
of skills and experience required to develop and commercialize products successfully. Competition to hire from this limited pool is intense, and
we may be unable to hire, train, retain or motivate such additional personnel.

WE FACE SUBSTANTIAL COMPETITION, WHICH MAY RESULT IN OTHERS DISCOVERING, DEVELOPING OR
COMMERCIALIZING COMPETING PRODUCTS BEFORE OR MORE SUCCESSFULLY THAN WE DO

The biopharmaceutical industry is highly competitive. Our success will depend on our ability to develop products and apply technology and our
ability to establish and maintain a market for our products. Potential competitors in the United States and other countries include major
pharmaceutical and chemical companies, specialized biotechnology firms, universities and other research institutions. Many of our competitors
have substantially greater research and development capabilities and experience, and greater manufacturing, marketing and financial resources
than we do. Accordingly, our competitors may develop products or other novel technologies that are more effective, safer or less costly than
any that have been competing or are being developed by us or may obtain FDA approval for products more rapidly than we are able.
Technological development by others may render our products or product candidates noncompetitive. We may not be successful in establishing
or maintaining technological competitiveness.

BECAUSE THE MARKET FOR THROMBIN INHIBITORS IS COMPETITIVE, OUR PRODUCT MAY NOT OBTAIN
WIDESPREAD USE

- We are positioning Angiomax as a replacement to heparin, which is widely-used and inexpensive, for use in patients with ischemic heart
disease. Because heparin is inexpensive and has been widely used for many years, medical decision-makers may be hesitant to adopt our
alternative treatment. In addition, due to the high incidence and severity of cardiovascular diseases, the market for thrombin inhibitors is large
and competition is intense and growing. There are a number of thrombin inhibitors currently on the market, awaiting regulatory approval and in
development, including orally administered agents. '



THE LIMITED RESOURCES OF THIRD-PARTY PAYORS MAY LIMIT THE USE OF OUR PRODUCTS

In general, anticoagulant drugs may be classified in three groups: drugs that directly or indirectly target and inhibit thrombin, drugs that target
and inhibit platelets and drugs that break down fibrin. Because each group of anticoagulants acts on different components of the clotting
process, we believe that there will be continued clinical work to determine the best combination of drugs for clinical use. We expect Angiomax
to be used with aspirin alone or in conjunction with other therapies. Although we do not plan to position Angiomax as a direct competitor to
platelet inhibitors or fibrinolytic drugs, platelet inhibitors and fibrinolytic drugs may compete with Angiomax for the use of hospital financial
resources. Many U.S. hospitals receive a fixed reimbursement amount per procedure for the angioplasties and other treatment therapies they
perform. Because this amount is not based on the actual expenses the hospital incurs, U.S. hospitals may have to choose among Angiomax,
platelet inhibitors and fibrinolytic drugs.

FLUCTUATIONS IN OUR OPERATING RESULTS COULD AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Our operating results may vary from period to period based on the amount and timing of sales of Angiomax to customers in the United States,

the availability and timely delivery of a sufficient supply of Angiomax, the timing and expenses of clinical trials, the availability and timing of

third-party reimbursement and the timing of approval for our product candidates. If our operating results do not match the expectations of
_securities analysts and investors as a result of these and other factors, the trading price of our common stock may fluctuate.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR INDUSTRY

IF WE DO NOT OBTAIN FDA APPROVALS FOR OUR PRODUCTS OR COMPLY WITH GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS, WE MAY
NOT BE ABLE TO MARKET OUR PRODUCTS AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO STRINGENT PENALTIES

Except for Angiomax, which has been approved for sale in the United States and New Zealand, we do not have a product approved for sale in
the United States or any foreign market. We must obtain approval from the FDA in order to sell our product candidates in the United States and
from foreign regulatory authorities in order to sell our product candidates in other countries. We must successfully complete our clinical trials
and demonstrate manufacturing capability before we can file with the FDA for approval to sell our products. The FDA could require us to
repeat clinical trials as part of the regulatory review process. Delays in obtaining or failure to obtain regulatory approvals may:

- delay or prevent the successful commercialization of any of our product candidates;

- diminish our competitive advantage; and

- defer or decrease our receipt of revenues or royalties.

The regulatory review and approval process is lengthy, expensive and uncertain. Extensive pre-clinical data, clinical data and supporting
information must be submitted to the FDA for each additional indication to obtain such approvals, and we cannot be certain when we will
receive these regulatory approvals, if ever. '

In addition to initial regulatory approval, our products and product candidates will be subject to extensive and rigorous ongoing domestic and
foreign government regulation, as we discuss in more detail in "Business -- Government Regulation." Any approvals, once obtained, may be

withdrawn if compliance with regulatory requirements is not maintained or safety problems are identified. Failure to comply with these
requirements may also subject us to stringent penalties.



WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN OR MAINTAIN PATENT PROTECTION FOR OUR PRODUCTS, AND WE MAY
INFRINGE THE PATENT RIGHTS OF OTHERS

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies like us are generally uncertain and involve complex legal, scientific and
. factual issues. Our success depends significantly on our ability to:

- obtain patents;

- protect trade secrets;

- operate without infringing the proprietary rights of others; and
- prevent others from infringing our proprietary rights.

We may not have any patents issued from any patent applications that we own or license. If patents are granted, the claims allowed may not be
sufficiently broad to protect our technology. In addition, issued patents that we own or license may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented.
Our patents also may not afford us protection against competitors with similar technology. Because patent applications in the United States are
maintained in secrecy until patents issue, others may have filed or maintained patent applications for technology used by us or covered by our
pending patent applications without our being aware of these applications. In all, as of May 15, 2001 we exclusively licensed 10 issued United
States patents and a broadly filed portfolio of corresponding foreign patents and patent applications. We have not yet filed any independent
patent applications.

We may not hold proprietary rights to some patents related to our product candidates. In some cases, others may own or control these patents.
As a result, we may be required to obtain licenses under third-party patents to market some of our product candidates. If licenses are not
available to us on acceptable terms, we will not be able to market these products.

We may become a party to patent litigation or other proceedings regarding intellectual property rights. The cost to us of any patent litigation or
other proceeding, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. If any patent litigation or other intellectual property proceeding in which
we are involved is resolved unfavorably to us, we may be enjoined from manufacturing or selling our products and services without a license
from the other party, and we may be held liable for significant damages. We may not be able to obtain any required license on commercially
acceptable terms, or at all.

IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO KEEP OUR TRADE SECRETS CONFIDENTIAL, OUR TECHNOLOGY AND INFORMATION MAY
BE USED BY OTHERS TO COMPETE AGAINST US

We rely significantly upon unpatented proprietary technology, information, processes and know-how. We seek to protect this information by
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants and other third-party contractors, as well as through other security measures. We
may not have adequate remedies for any breach by a party to these confidentiality agreements. In addition, our competitors may learn or
independently develop our trade secrets.

WE COULD BE EXPOSED TO SIGNIFICANT LIABILITY CLAIMS IF WE ARE UNABLE TO OBTAIN INSURANCE AT
ACCEPTABLE COSTS AND ADEQUATE LEVELS OR OTHERWISE PROTECT OURSELVES AGAINST POTENTIAL PRODUCT
LIABILITY CLAIMS

Our business exposes us to potential product liability risks which are inherent in the testing, manufacturing, marketing and sale of human
healthcare products. Product liability claims might be made by consumers, health care providers or pharmaceutical companies or others that
sell our products. These claims may be made even with respect to those-products that are manufactured in licensed and regulated facilities or
that otherwise possess regulatory approval for commercial sale.

These claims could expose us to significant liabilities that could prevent or interfere with the development or commercialization of our

products. Product liability claims could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or pay significant damages. As of May 15,
2001, we were covered, with respect to our commercial sales in the United States and New Zealand and our clinical trials, by primary product
liability .
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insurance in the amount of $20.0 million per occurrence and $20.0 million annually in the aggregate on a claims-made basis. This coverage
may not be adequate to cover any product liability claims. As we commercialize our products, we may wish to increase our product liability
insurance. Product liability coverage is expensive. In the future, we may not be able to maintain or obtain such product liability insurance on
reasonable terms, at a reasonable cost or in sufficient amounts to protect us against losses due to product liability claims. -

RISKS RELATING TO THE OFFERING

OUR STOCK PRICE HAS BEEN VOLATILE, WHICH COULD RESULT IN SUBSTANTIAL LOSSES FOR INVESTORS
PURCHASING SHARES IN THIS OFFERING

The market price of our common stock, like that of the common stock of many other biotechnology companies, has been and may continue to
be highly volatile. The stock market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has significantly affected the
market prices of securities of many biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies for reasons frequently unrelated, or disproportionate, to the
operating performance of the specific companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
Factors that may have a significant effect on the market price of our common stock include announcements of technological innovations or new
commercial products by us or our competitors, disclosure of results of clinical testing or regulatory proceedings, developments in patent or
other proprietary rights, including as a result of any public policy concerns and public concern as to the safety of products developed by us.

OUR ’OF FICERS AND DIRECTORS, AND CERTAIN ENTITIES WITH WHICH THEY ARE AFFILIATED, MAY BE ABLE TO
CONTROL THE OUTCOME OF MOST CORPORATE ACTIONS REQUIRING STOCKHOLDER APPROVAL

Following the completion of the private placement of 4,000,000 shares of our common stock on May 16, 2001, our directors and executive
officers, and certain entities with which they are affiliated, beneficially owned, in the aggregate, approximately 61.0% of our outstanding
common stock. Due to this concentration of ownership, these stockholders as a group will be able to elect the directors and officers of our
company, control the management and affairs of our company and control most matters requiring a stockholder vote, including:

- the amendment of our organizational documents; or
- the approval of any merger, consolidation, sale or assets or other major corporate transaction.

WE HAVE ANTI-TAKEOVER DEFENSES THAT COULD DELAY OR PREVENT AN ACQUISITION AND COULD
ADVERSELY AFFECT THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and of Delaware law could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing an
acquisition of our company. For example, we have divided our board of directors into three classes that serve staggered three-year terms, we
may authorize the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of "blank check" preferred stock, our stockholders may not take actions by written
consent and may not call special meetings of stockholders, and our stockholders are limited in their ability to introduce proposals at stockholder
meetings.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes and incorporates forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included or incorporated in this
prospectus regarding our strategy, future operations, financial position, future revenues, projected costs, prospects, plans and objectives of
management are forward-looking statements. The words "anticipates," "believes," "estimates," "expects," "intends," "may," "plans," "projects,"
"will," "would" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking statements
contain these identifying words. We cannot guarantee that we actually will achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our -
forward-looking statements and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Actual results or events could differ
materially from the plans, intentions and expectations disclosed in the forward-looking statements we make. We have included important
factors in the cautionary statements included or incorporated in this prospectus, particularly under the heading "Risk Factors", that we believe
could cause actual results or events to differ materially from the forward-looking statements that we make. Our forward-looking statements do
not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments we may make. We do not assume
any obligation to update any forward-looking statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the shares offered pursuant to this prospectus.

The selling stockholders will pay any expenses incurred by the selling stockholders for brokerage, accounting, tax or legal services or any other
expenses incurred by the selling stockholders in disposing of the shares covered by this prospectus. We will bear all other costs, fees and
expenses incurred in effecting the registration of the shares covered by this prospectus, including, without limitation, all registration and filing
fees, Nasdaq listing fees and fees and expenses of our counsel and our accountants.

SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

We issued the shares of common stock covered by this prospectus in a private placement on May 16, 2001. The following table sets forth, to
our knowledge, certain information about the selling stockholders as of May 16, 2001.

We do not know when or in what amounts a selling stockholder may offer shares for sale. The selling stockholders may not sell any or all of
the shares offered by this prospectus. Because the selling stockholders may sell all or some of the shares offered by this prospectus, and
because there are currently no agreements, arrangements or understandings with respect to the sale of any of the shares, we cannot estimate the
number of shares that will be held by the selling stockholders after completion of the offering. For purposes of this table, however, we have
assumed that, after completion of the offering, none of the shares covered by this prospectus will be held by the selling stockholders.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and includes voting or
investment power with respect to shares. Shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and/or stock options that are exercisable
within 60 days after May 16, 2001 are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person holding the warrants and/or
options but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Unless otherwise indicated below, to our
knowledge, all persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to their shares of common stock, except to the
extent authority is shared by spouses under applicable law. The inclusion of any shares in this table does not constitute an admission of
beneficial ownership for the person named below.

SHARES OF COMMON

SHARES OF COMMON STOCK
STOCK BENEFICIALLY OWNED TO BE BENEFICIALLY
PRIOR TO OFFERING NUMBER OF SHARES OWNED AFTER OFFERING
————————————————————————— OF COMMON STOCK T e et e e
NAME OF SELLING STOCKHOLDER(1) NUMBER PERCENTAGE BEING OFFERED NUMBER PERCENTAGE
Warburg, Pincus Ventures, L.P.(2)... 10,655,256 29.9% 1,050,000 9,605, 256 26.9%
T. Rowe Price New Horizons Fund,

INC. . e e e 425,000 1.2% 425,000 -- -—
T. Rowe Price Health Sciences Fund,

InC. ... e 400,000 1.2% 400,000 - --
Deerfield Partners, L.P............. 353,000 1.0% 353,000 -- --
Alta BioPharma Partners, L.P.(3).... 1,604,581 4.6% 279,714 1,324,867 3.8%
PharmaBio Development Inc.(4)....... 2,178,630 6.3% 200,000 - 1,978,630 5.7%
Green Line Health Sciences Fund..... 161,400 * 161,400 - --
The Medicines Company Chase Partners

(Alta Bio), L.L.C.(5)............. 916,367 2.7% 159,743 756,624 2.2%
Deerfield International, LTD........ 147,000 * 147,000 -- --
BayStar Capital, L.P................ 105,000 * 105,000 -- --
S.A.C. Capital Associates, L.L.C.... 100,000 * 100,000 -- --
Chelsey Capital..................... 100,000 * 100,000 -- --
Sands Point Partners................ 100,000 * 100,000 -- --
Orion Biomedical Fund, L.P.......... 82,150 * 82,150 -- -~



SHARES OF COMMON

SHARES OF COMMON i STOCK
STOCK BENEFICIALLY OWNED TO BE BENEFICIALLY
PRIOR TO OFFERING NUMBER OF SHARES OWNED AFTER OFFERING’
------------------------- ‘OF COMMON STOCK B e R
NAME OF SELLING STOCKHOLDER(1) NUMBER PERCENTAGE BEING OFFERED NUMBER PERCENTAGE
MAM Luxembourg...................... 79,800 * 79,800 -- --
Mercury Master Trust................ 70,800 * 70,800 -- --
MPM BioEquities Master Fund, L.P.... 108,500 * 50,000 58,500 *
BayStar International, LTD.......... 35,000 * 35,000 -- --
LMAM Main A/C. .o i 24,400 * 24,400 -- --
Orion BioMedical Offshore Fund,

7 17,850 * 17,850 - --
Alta Embarcadero BioPharma Partners,

L.L.C(6) it ei it i i 60,477 * 10,543 49,934 *
Jay Silverman................c....... 10, 000 * 10,000 -- --
Clive A. Meanwell(7)(8)............. 770,273 2.2% 10,000 760,273 2.2%
T. Rowe Price Health Services

Fund.......... ... .. . . . 10,000 * 10,000 - --
Glenn Sblendorio(7){(9) .............. 51,982 * 5,000 46,982
Gary Dickinson(7)................... 5,000 * 5,000 -- *

T. Scott Johnson(10)................ 109,823 * 5,000 104,823 *
Manufacturers Investment Trust --

Health Sciences Trust............. 2,000 * 2,000 -- --
T. Rowe Price Health Sciences

Portfolio, Inc.................... 1,600 * 1,600 1,600 --

* Less than one percent.

(1) The term "selling stockholders" includes donees, pledgees, transferees or other successors-in-interest selling shares received after the date
of this prospectus from a selling stockholder as a gift, pledge, partnership distribution or other non-sale related transfer.

(2) Includes warrants to purchase 1,275,810 shares of common stock.

(3) Includes warrants to purchase 178,987 shares of common stock.
(4) Includes warrants to purchase 282,385 shares of common stock.

(5) Includes warrants to purchase 102,218 shares of common stock.

(6) Includes warrants to purchase 6,746 shares of common stock.

(7) Employee of The Medicines Company.

(8) Includes 221,580 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants prior to July 15, 2001.
(9) Includes 45,982 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options prior to July 15, 2001.

(10) Includes warrants to purchase 13,744 shares of common stock.

None of the selling stockholders has held any position or office with, or has otherwise had a material relationship with, us or any of our
subsidiaries within the past three years, except that:

- the selling stockholders indicated have been employed by us; and
- T. Scott Johnson serves as one of our diréctors.
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PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND POLICY

Our common stock has been quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "MDCQ" since August 8, 2000. The following table sets
forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low intraday sales prices per share of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National
Market. :

HIGH LOW
2000
Third Quarter (since August 7, 2000)........c.cuuiiuiunnnnn $35.38 $16.50
FOUXth QUYL Y . L. . ittt ittt et et e e e e e e e e $34.75 $17.13
2001 )
First QUArLer. ...ttt ittt it et e e e e, $20.48 $ 8.75
Second Quarter (through May 21, 2001).............ccuuu... $15.18 $ 9.10

On May 21, 2001, the last reported sale price of our common stock on the Nasdaq National Market was $13.27 per share. As of the close of
business on May 15, 2001, we had 127 holders of record of our common stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our common stock. We anticipate that we will retain all of our future earnings, if any, for use
in the expansion and operation of our business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Payment of future
dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table summarizes as of March 31, 2001 our caéh, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accrued interest receivable and our
capitalization:

- on an actual basis; and

- on a pro forma basis to give effect to the sale of 4,000,000 shares of common stock on May 16, 2001 at a price of $11.00 per share and the
receipt of net proceeds of approximately $41.8 million from the sale of the shares.

This table does not include:

- 3,287,175 shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options outstanding as of March 31, 2001 at a weighted average
exercise price of $9.74 per share or any stock options issued subsequent to March 31, 2001;

- 3,269,564 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of common stock purchase warrants outstanding as of March 31, 2001 at an
exercise price of $5.92 per share; or

- 1,274,384 additional shares of common stock that we could issue under our stock plans as of March 31, 2001 or any additional shares
available for grants subsequent to March 31, 2001 under our stock plans.

This table should be read with "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and our consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

MARCH 31, 2001

ACTUAL PRO FORMA

In thousands, except share data
Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities and accrued

interest receivable........ ..., $ 60,153 $ 101,956
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares -

authorized; none issued actual and pro forma.............. -- --
Stockholders' equity: ’
Common Stock, $0.001 par value, 75,000,000 shares authorized

at March 31, 2001, actual and pro forma; 30,391,948 shares

issued and outstanding at March 31, 2001, actual and

34,391,948 shares issued and outstanding, pro forma....... 30 . 34
Additional paid-in capital.........c...iuiiiin . 279,298 321,097
Deferred stock compensation...............uuiiiuiuiunennnn... (12,235) (12,235)
Accumulated defiCit. ... ...t (215,616) (215,616)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, principally foreign

currency translation............... ... (397) (397)
Total stockholders' equity............ouoiiiniinnnennn... 51,080 92,883
Total capitalization.......... ... ... ... $ 51,080 $ 92,883



DILUTION

This offering is for sales of stock by our existing stockholders on a continuous or delayed basis in the future. Sales of common stock by
stockholders will not result in a change to the net tangible book value per share before and after the distribution of shares by the selling
stockholders. There will be no change in net tangible book value per share attributable to cash payments made by purchasers of the shares
being offered. Prospective investors should be aware, however, that the market price of our shares may not bear any rational relationship to net
tangible book value per share.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

In the table below, we provide you with our selected consolidated financial data. We have prepared this information using our audited
consolidated financial statements for the period from July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 1996 and for the years ended December
31, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 and our unaudited consolidated financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2000 and 2001. The
consolidated financial statements for each of the three years in the period ended December-31, 2000 which are included in this prospectus have
been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. The consolidated statements of operations data for the three months ended March
31, 2000 and 2001 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of March 31, 2001 have been derived from our unaudited consolidated financial
statements that appear elsewhere in this prospectus. The unaudited consolidated financial statements include all adjustments, consisting of
normal recurring accruals, which we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position and the results of operations for these
periods. Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2001 are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the full
year.

The pro forma net loss per share data reflects the conversion of our convertible notes and accrued interest and the conversion of our outstanding
convertible preferred stock and accrued dividends into common stock upon the closing of our initial public offering in August 2000. The pro
forma net loss per share data does not include the effect of any options or warrants outstanding.

The following data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, including the accompanying notes, and
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included elsewhere in this prospectus.

PERIOD FROM

INCEPTION
(JuLy 31,
1996) THREE. MONTHS ENDED
THROUGH YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, MARCH 31,
DECEMBER 31, @ ----ooooocomm et e memmemmeaa.
1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2000 2001
In thousands, except share and
per share data
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS DATA
Net revenue...................... $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ 1,861
Operating expenses
Cost of revenues............... -- ) -- -- -- -- -- 332
Research and development....... 827 16,044 24,005 30,345 39,572 10,642 12,595
Selling, general and 702
administrative............... 2,421 6,248 5,008 15,034 1,198 9,059
Total operating 1,529
EXPeNnsSesS. .. ............ 18,465 30,253 35,383 54,606 11,840 21,986
Loss from operations............. (1,529) (18,465) (30,253) (35,353) (54,606) (11,840) (20,125)
Interest income (expense), net... 62 © 659 1,302 640 (16,686) (7,403) 1,069
Net loss........ocnviiiiinannn... (1,467) (17,806) (28,951) (34,713) (71,292) (19,243) (19, 056)
Dividends and accretion to (118)
redemption value of redeemable
convertible preferred stock.... (2,018) (3,959) {5,893) (30,343) (1,530) -~
Net loss attributable to common $ (1,585
stockholders................... $ (19,824) $ (40,606) $ (101,635) $ (20,773) $ (19,056)
======== = = =========== ss=====ss===
Net loss attributable to common $ (2.85)
stockholders per common share,
basic and diluted..............

Shares used in computing net loss
attributable to common
stockholders per common share, :
basic and diluted.............. 4,887,230 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275 631,276 30,247,599

Unaudited pro forma net loss
attributable to common
stockholders per common share,
basic and diluted.............. $ (1.94) § (2.10) $ (0.55) § (0.63)

Shares used in computing .
unaudited pro forma net loss
attributable to common
stockholders per common share,
basic and diluted.............. 17,799,876 24,719,075 21,407,651 30,247,599
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In thousands

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Cash, cash equivalents, marketable securities
and accrued interest receivable............

Working capital (deficit)....................

Total assets. ... ...ttt

Convertible notes............ ... ... .........

Redeemable convertible preferred stock.......

Accumulated deficit.................. e

Total stockholders' (deficit) equity.........

4,793
(1,585)
(1,582)

AS OF DECEMBER 31,

$ 25,416 $ 29,086

18,779 24,570
25,595 29,831
40,306 79,384
(21,409) (54,319)
(21,387) (54,266)
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$ 7,238
(4,103)
7,991
5,776
85,277

(94,925)
(94,558)

$ 80,718

68,023
84,363

(196,560)
69,239

$ 60,153
49,670
65,801

(215,616)
51,080



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should be read with "Selected Consolidated Financial Data" and our consolidated financial statements
and notes included elsewhere in this prospectus.

OVERVIEW

We acquire, develop and commercialize biopharmaceutical products that are in late stages of development or have been approved for
marketing. In December 2000, we received marketing approval from the FDA for Angiomax, our lead product, for use as an anticoagulant in
combination with aspirin in patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. Coronary angioplasty is a procedure used
to restore normal blood flow in an obstructed artery in the heart. We began selling Angiomax in the United States in January 2001. In August
and September 2000, we consummated our initial public offering resulting in $101.4 million in net proceeds.

Since our inception, we have incurred significant losses. Most of our expenditures to date have been for research and development activities,
selling, general and administrative expenses. Research and development expenses represent costs incurred for product acquisition, clinical
trials, activities relating to regulatory filings and manufacturing development efforts. We generally outsource our clinical and manufacturing
development activities to independent organizations to maximize efficiency and minimize our internal overhead. We expense our research and
development costs as they are incurred. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and related expenses, general
corporate activities and costs associated with product marketing activities. Interest expense consists of costs associated with convertible notes
which were issued in 2000 and 1999 to fund our business activities.

We expect to continue to incur operating losses during the balance of fiscal 2001 and for the foreseeable future as a result of research and
development activities attributable to new and existing products and costs associated with the commercialization and launch of our products. In
2001, we expect increased cash outlays for research and development costs associated with our ongoing clinical trials and manufacturing
development activities. We also expect increased outlays during 2001 for sales, general and administrative costs related to selling and
marketing activities of Angiomax, our lead product. We will need to generate significant revenues to achieve and maintain profitability. During
the first quarter of 2001, we recorded revenue for the initial shipments of Angiomax.

In March 1997, we acquired exclusive worldwide commercial rights from Biogen, Inc., to the technology, patents, trademarks, inventories,
know-how and all regulatory and clinical information related to Angiomax. Under the Biogen license, we paid $2.0 million upon execution of
the license agreement and are obligated to pay up to an additional $8.0 million upon reaching certain milestones, including the first sale of
Angiomax for certain indications. In addition, we will pay royalties on future sales of Angiomax and on any sublicense royalties earned.

In August 1999, we acquired exclusive worldwide rights from GyneLogix, Inc. to the patents and know-how related to the biotherapeutic agent
CTV-05. Under the GyneLogix license, we have paid $400,000 and are obligated to pay up to an additional $100,000 upon reaching certain
development and regulatory milestones and to fund agreed-upon operational costs of GyneLogix related to the development of CTV-05 on a
monthly basis subject to a limitation of $50,000 per month. In addition, we will pay royalties on future sales of CTV-05 and on any sublicense
royalties earned.

In July 1998, we acquired from Immunotech S.A., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beckman Coulter, Inc., exclusive worldwide rights to IS-159,
which is under clinical investigation for the treatment of acute migraine headache. Under the Immunotech license, we paid $1.0 million upon
execution of the license agreement and are obligated to pay up to an additional $4.5 million upon reaching certain development and regulatory
milestones. In addition, we will pay royalties on future sales of IS-159 and on any sublicense royalties earned. We are seeking a collaborator to
develop IS-159 and do not intend to initiate further studies of IS-159 until we enter into a collaborative agreement.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2000, we recorded deferred stock compensation on the grant of stock options of approximately $3.9
million, representing the difference between the exercise price of such options and the fair market value of our common stock at the date of
grant of such options. The exercise prices of these options were below the estimated fair market value of our common stock as of the date of
grant based on the estimated initial public offering price of our common stock.

We amortize deferred stock compensation over the respective vesting periods of the individual stock options. We recorded amortization
expense for deferred compensation of approximately $1.1 million and $150,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. We expect to record amortization expense for the deferred compensation as follows: approximately $3.1 million for the remainder
of 2001, approximately $3.9 million for 2002, approximately $3.9 million for 2003 and approximately $1.4 million for 2004.

We have not generated taxable income to date. At December 31, 2000, net operating losses available to offset future taxable income for federal
income tax purposes were approximately $122.2 million. If not utilized, federal net operating loss carryforwards will expire at various dates
beginning in 2011 and ending 2020. We have not recognized the potential tax benefit of our net operating losses in our statements of
operations. The future utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards may be limited pursuant to regulations promulgated under the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Three Months Ended March 31, 2001 and 2000

Product Revenue. With the commercial launch of the Company's lead product, Angiomax, in January 2001, the Company reported product
revenue of $1.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2001. The Company had not reported revenue prior to this time.

Cost of Revenue. Cost of revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2001 was $332,000, or 18% as a percentage of product revenue. Cost
of revenue includes cost of manufacturing Angiomax, logistical costs associated with distributing Angiomax, and accrued royalties. The cost of
manufacturing as a percentage of product revenue was low in the first quarter of 2001 and is expected to continue to run at, or near, this level
through most of 2001 because cost associated with the manufacture of Angiomax incurred by the Company prior to date of FDA approval of
Angiomax in December 2000 was expensed as research and development expense. i

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased 18% to $12.6 million for the three months ended March
31, 2000, from $10.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2000. The increase in research and development expenses of $2.0 million
was primarily due to increased enrollment rates of the Company's Phase 3 clinical trial of Angiomax in acute myocardial infraction, called
HERO-2, and our Phase 3b trial of Angiomax in angioplasty, called REPLACE. Also contributing to the increase was the manufacture of
Angiomax bulk product produced using the Chemilog process, which we will continue to expense as research and development until the
process is approved by the FDA. The increase in research and development expenses was partly offset by a reduction in manufacturing
development expenses given the receipt of the first batch of pre-FDA approved Angiomax bulk drug substance manufactured by UCB
Bioproducts during the first quarter of 2000.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 656% to $9.1 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2001, from $1.2 million for the three months ended March 31, 2000. The increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses of $7.9 million was primarily due to an increase in marketing and selling expenses and corporate infrastructure costs
arising from an increase in activity relating to the commercial launch of Angiomax during the three months ended March 31, 2001.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income increased 930% to $1.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2001, from
$104,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2000. The increase in
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interest iﬁcome of $965,000 was primarily due to interest income arising from investment of the proceeds of the Company's IPO in August
2000.

Interest expense was $7.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2000 and related to interest charges and amortization of discount on
our convertible notes issued in October 1999 and March 2000.

Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased 30% from $30.3 million in 1999 to $39.6 million in 2000.
The increase of $9.3 million was primarily due to the increased enrollment rate of our Phase 3 clinical trial in AMI, called HERO-2 during
2000, initiation in 2000 of a Phase 3b trial in angioplasty called REPLACE and by the recognition of $12.2 million of research and

_ development costs in connection with the completion of UCB Bioproduct's manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug substance prior to FDA
approval. The increase in costs was partly offset by reduced development expenses reflecting our termination of the semilog manufacturing
development program with Lonza AG in the fourth quarter of 1999 and a reduction in development activity for IS-159 in 2000. .

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 200% from $5.0 million in 1999 to $15.0
million in 2000. The increase of $10.0 million was primarily due to an increase in marketing and selling expenses and corporate infrastructure
costs arising from an increase in activity in preparation for the commercial launch of Angiomax.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income increased 223% from $838,000 in 1999 to $2.7 million in 2000. The increase of $1.9
million was primarily due to interest income arising from investment of the proceeds of our initial public offering.

Interest expense was $19.4 million in 2000 and was related to interest charges and the amortization of the discount on our convertible notes
issued in October 1999 and March 2000. The notes were converted into series IV convertible preferred stock in May 2000, accelerating the
remaining unamortized discount.

Years Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses increased 26% from $24.0 million in 1998 to $30.3 million in 1999.
The increase of $6.3 million was due to the expansion in 1999 of our clinical development programs, primarily those relating to our Angiomax
HERO-2 Phase 3 clinical trial in AMI which commenced in late 1998, our IS-159 development program and our Angiomax trials in
angioplasty.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 20% from $6.2 million in 1998 to $5.0
million in 1999. The decrease of $1.2 million was primarily due to a decrease in Angiomax-related marketing expenses.

Interest Income and Interest Expense. Interest income decreased 36% from $1.3 million in 1998 to $838,000 in 1999 due to a lower level of
cash and marketable securities available for investment during 1999 as compared to 1998. Interest expense was $197,000 in 1999 and related to
interest expense and amortization of the discount on our convertible notes issued in the aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million in October
1999. . ‘

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On May 16, 2001, we received approximately $41.8 million in net proceeds from the sale of shares of common stock in a private placement to
new and existing investors.

As of March 31, 2001, we had $59.0 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, as compared to $79.3 million as of December
31, 2000.

For the three months ended March 31, 2001, we used net cash of $20.0 million in operating activities. This consisted of a net loss of $19.1
million, combined with a decrease in accounts payable of $2.3 million and an increase in accounts receivable of $1.8 million, partly offset by
an increase in accrued expenses of $1.9 million, and non-cash amortization of deferred compensation of $1.1 million. We generated
approximately
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$9.4 million of cash from net investing activities, which consisted principally of the maturity or sale of marketable securities, partly offset by
the purchase of fixed assets of $95,000. We received $171,000 from financing activities, primarily from purchases of stock by employees.

In August and September 2000, we received $101.4 million in net proceeds from the sale of common stock in our initial public offering, or
IPO, at a price of $16.00 per share. Prior to the IPO, we had received net proceeds of $79.4 million from the private placement of equity
securities, primarily redeemable convertible preferred stock, and $19.4 million from the issuance of convertible notes and warrants.

As of December 31, 2000, we had $79.3 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities, as compared to $7.2 million and $28.3
million as of December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively.

During 2000, we used net cash of $48.1 million in operating activities. This consisted of a net loss for the period of $71.3 million, combined
with a decrease in accounts payable of $1.8 million, an increase in inventory of $2.0 million and an increase in accrued interest receivable of
$1.3 million, partly offset by an increase in accrued expenses of $5.7 million, non-cash amortization of discount on convertible notes of $19.0
million and deferred compensation of $3.7 million. We spent $42.8 million for investing activities, which consisted principally of purchases of
marketable securities with net proceeds from our initial public offering. We received $121.1 million from financing activities, primarily from
our initial public offering, which resulted in net proceeds of $101.4 million, and from the issuance of convertible notes and preferred stock,
which resulted in proceeds of $19.4 million during 2000.

During 1999, we placed an order with UCB Bioproducts for the manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug product. Manufacture of $14.2 million of
this material was completed in 2000, of which $12.2 million was expensed during that period. All costs associated with the manufacture of
Angiomax bulk drug product and finished products to which title has transferred to us prior to the date of FDA approval of Angiomax were
expensed as research and development. We recorded Angiomax bulk drug product to which we took title after the date of FDA approval of
Angiomax as inventory, which will increase our cost of sal€s in 2001 and possibly the following year. In November 2000, we placed additional
orders with UCB Bioproducts for the manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug product. Under the terms of these purchase orders, we are scheduled
to take title to material and become obligated to make payments totaling approximately $24.0 million in 2001 and early 2002.

As of December 31, 2000, we had net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $122.2 million, to offset future federal taxable income
expiring in 2011 through 2020 and approximately $116.0 million to offset future state taxable income expiring in 2001 through 2004. Due to
the degree of uncertainty related to the ultimate realization of such net operating losses, no benefit has been recognized in the financial
statements as of December 31, 2000. If we achieve profitability, such tax benefits would be recognized when their realization was considered
more likely than not. Our ability to utilize these losses in future years, however, may be subject to limitation based upon changes in ownership
under the rules of the Internal Revenue Code.

We expect to devote substantial resources to our research and development efforts and to our sales, marketing and manufacturing programs
associated with the commercialization of our products. Our funding requirements will depend on numerous factors, including whether
Angiomax is ¢commercially successful, the progress, level and timing of our research and development activities, the cost and outcomes of
regulatory reviews, the continuation or termination of third party manufacturing or sales and marketing arrangements, the cost and

effectiveness of our sales and marketing programs, the status of competitive products, our ability to defend and enforce our intellectual property
rights and the establishment of additional strategic or licensing arrangements with other companies or acquisitions.

We believe, based on our current operating plan, including anticipated sales of Angiomax, that our cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities as of May 16, 2001 will be sufficient to fund our operations for approximately 18 months. If our existing resources are insufficient to
satisfy our liquidity requirements due to slower than anticipated sales of Angiomax or otherwise, or if we acquire additional product candidates,
we may need to sell additional equity or debt securities. The sale of additional equity and debt securities may result in additional dilution to our
stockholders, and we cannot be certain that additional financing will be
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available in amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. If we are unable to obtain this additional financing, we may be required to reduce the
scope of our planned research, development and commercialization activities, which could harm our financial condition and operating results.

DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk is confined to our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities. We place our investments in high-quality
financial instruments, primarily money market funds and corporate debt securities with maturities or auction dates of less than one year, which
we believe are subject to limited credit risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate exposure. At March 31, 2001, we held $59.0 million in
cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities, all due within one year, which had an average interest rate of approximately 6.5%.

As of March 31, 2001, we held a $3.0 million principal investment in Southern California Edison 5 7/8% bonds which was due January 15,
2001, which is accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities." On May 16, 2001, we sold $1.0 million of the Southern California Edison bonds, which will result in a realized loss of
$270,000 that will be recognized in the second quarter of 2001, and accordingly, we had a $2.0 million principal investment remaining as of
May 16, 2001. As of May 16, 2001, the value of our investment in these Southern California Edison bonds had declined to approximately $1.5
million. We classify these securities as available-for-sale and carry them at fair market value based on the quoted market price. We have
exposure to market risk related to the fluctuation of the Southern California Edison bonds' price, which fluctuation has increased significantly
as a result of events which occurred after December 31, 2000, including the non-payment of principal and interest on the bonds at maturity on
January 15, 2001. Payment of interest was resumed on the Southern California Edison bonds subsequent to March 31, 2001.

Most of our transactions are conducted in U.S. dollars. We do have certain development and commercialization agreements with vendors
located outside the United States. Transactions under certain of these agreements are conducted in U.S. dollars, subject to adjustment based on
significant fluctuations in currency exchange rates. Transactions under certain other of these agreements are conducted in the local foreign
currency. If the applicable exchange rate undergoes a change of 10%, we do not believe that it would have a material impact on our results of
operations or cash flows.
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A

BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

We acquire, develop and commercialize biopharmaceutical products that are in late stages of development or have been approved for
marketing. In December 2000, we received marketing approval from the FDA for Angiomax, our lead product, for use as an anticoagulant in
combination with aspirin in patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. Coronary angioplasty is a procedure used
to restore normal blood flow in an obstructed artery in the heart. We began selling Angiomax in the United States in January 2001.

" We are also developing Angiomax for additional potential applications for use in the treatment of ischemic heart disease. As of May 15, 2001,
clinical investigators had administered Angiomax to approximately 13,100 patients in clinical trials in the treatment and prevention of blood
clots in a wide range of hospital applications. We believe that Angiomax will become the leading replacement for heparin in hospital care. In

the United States, heparin is the most widely-used acute care anticoagulant and is used to treat approximately five million hospitalized patients
per year. :

Angiomax directly blocks or inhibits the actions of thrombin, a key component in the formation and growth of blood clots. By blocking
thrombin directly, rather than indirectly like heparin, Angiomax inhibits the actions of thrombin both in the clot and in the blood. Angiomax's

inhibition of thrombin is reversible, which means that its thrombin-blocking effect wears off over time, allowing thrombin to again work in the
clotting process. This reversibility is associated with a reduced risk of bleeding.

In the clinical trials in angioplasty, Angiomax has:

- reduced the frequency of life-threatening coronary events including heart attack and the néed for emergency coronary procedures;
- reduced the likelihood of major bleeding and the need for blood transfusion;

- demonstrated a predictable anticoagulant response to a specific Angiomax dose, which enables simplified dosing; and

- been used in combination with GP IIb/IIla inhibitors and demonstrated no evidence of significant interactions.

Our strategy is to build a commercial biopharmaceutical operatioﬁ by acquiring, developing and commercializing product candidates. We will
actively manage the development and commercialization of these product candidates. Our principal objectives include:

- commercializing Angiomax for use in patients with unstable angina undergoing angioplasty;
- developing and commercializing Angiomax as the leading replacement for heparin for use in the hospital treatment of ischemic heart disease;

- acquiring additional products with (1) existing clinical data which provides reasonable evidence of safety and efficacy, (2) an anticipated time
to market of four years or less and (3) potential cost savings to payors or improved efficiency of patient care; and

- making the best use of our resources through our relationships with contract development, manufacturing and sales companies.
We market Angiomax in the United States using a sales force contracted from Innovex, Inc., which we manage. We intend to market our other
products in the United States by contracting with external organizations, which we would manage, or by collaborating with other

biopharmaceutical companies.
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ANGIOMAX

In December 2000, we received marketing approvalAfrom the FDA for Angiomax for use as an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin in
patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. We began selling Angiomax in the United States in January 2001. In
September 1999, Angiomax was approved in New Zealand for use in the treatment of patients undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty.

We believe Angiomax will be a valuable replacement to heparin, an anticoagulant used in almost all angioplasty procedures performed in the
United States and administered to a majority of patients treated in hospitals in the United States for acute coronary syndromes, including heart
attack. As of May 15, 2001, clinical investigators had administered Angiomax to approximately 13,100 patients in clinical trials for the
treatment and prevention of blood clots in a wide range of hospital applications. In clinical trials in angioplasty, use of Angiomax has resulted
in fewer life-threatening coronary events and fewer bleeding events, including the need for blood transfusion. The therapeutic effect of
Angiomax is more predictable than heparin, which enables simplified dosing. Angiomax's therapeutic benefit is strongest in high-risk patients
who have previously experienced a heart attack or unstable angina.

We believe that Angiomax has additional potential applications for the treatment of ischemic heart disease. As of May 15, 2001, we:

- had a randomized, open-labe] Phase 3b trial program in angioplasty underway comparing Angiomax to heparin, with and without GP IIb/IIIa
inhibitors;

- had a 17,000 patient Phase 3 trial program underway studying the use of Angiomax for the treatment of patients who have suffered a heart
attack, otherwise known as AMI,

- had a Phase 3 trial program underway studying the use of Angiomax in the treatment of patients undergoing angioplasty who experience
reduced platelet count and clotting due to an immunological reaction to heparin, known as heparin-induced thrombocytopenia and heparin-
induced thrombocytopenia and thrombosis syndrome, or HIT/HITTS;

- had a Phase 2 trial program underway studying the use of Angiomax as an anticoagulant in patients undergoing coronary artery bypass graft
surgery, or CABG, without the use of a bypass pump; and

- planned to commence a Phase 3 trial program to study the use of Angiomax in patients with unstable angina, a condition in which patients
experience the new onset of severe chest pain, increasingly frequent chest pain or chest pain that occurs while they are at rest.

Background

Clotting. Normally, blood loss at the site of an injury is limited by the formation of blood clots, or thrombosis. In general, clotting serves a life-
saving function by reducing bleeding, but sometimes unwanted clots in arteries can lead to heart attack, stroke or organ failure. A blood clot is
a collection of cross-linked strands of a protein called fibrin that forms a mesh around activated platelets and red blood cells. Blood clots are
formed through precisely regulated interactions among the blood vessel wall, plasma clotting factors, including thrombin and fibrinogen, and
platelets.

The trigger for the clotting process in an artery is typically a tearing or spontaneous rupture which exposes cholesterol and fat deposited on a
blood vessel wall to the bloodstream. This may happen without an apparent cause or may be caused as a direct result of, for example, an
angioplasty procedure. In parallel, the clotting factor, thrombin, is activated, and a thin protective layer of platelets is deposited at the rupture
site. Thrombin and platelets interact, and thrombin formation, fibrin formation and platelet clumping take place. A full-blown clot may form
rapidly as clot blocks the blood vessel and may then cut off blood supply to the heart muscle. If this occurs, the muscle stops working either in
part, which is a heart attack, or myocardial infarction, or completely, which may lead to cardiac arrest as the heart stops beating. Thls may
result in irreversible damage to the heart or death.
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During medical procedures such as coronary angioplasty, the blood clotting process must be slowed to avoid unwanted clotting in-the coronary
artery, and the potential growth or movement of a clot along blood vessels to new sites. .

The trigger for clotting in veins is usually slower than that in arteries. In general, venous clots are caused by slow blood flow, which typically
occurs when patients are immobilized, such as after surgery and during pregnancy, or when patients experience changes in the blood as a result
of diseases such as cancer. When a clot develops in large, deep veins, which return blood to the heart by way of the lungs, this condition is
referred to as deep vein thrombosis. In some cases of deep vein thrombosis, part of the clot may break off and move to the lungs with
potentially fatal results.

Anticoagulation Therapy. Anticoagulation therapy attempts to modify actions of the components in the blood system that cause clot-forming
factors leading to blood clots. The most important approach to the prevention and management of arterial and venous clots is diet and exercise.
When the risks of clot formation cannot be avoided, or when medical procedures such as angioplasty almost guarantee some degree of
increased risk of clots, anticoagulation therapy is indicated. Anticoagulation therapy involves the use of drugs to inhibit one or more
components of the clotting process, thereby reducing the risk of clots. Anticoagulation therapy is usually started immediately after a diagnosis
of blood clots or after risk factors for clotting are identified. Because anticoagulation therapy reduces clotting, it also may cause excessive
bleeding.

To date, three principal components of the clotting process, thrombin, fibrin and platelets, have been targeted for anticoagulation therapy:

- The actions of thrombin in the clotting process may be inhibited by indirect thrombin inhibitors, such as heparin, which act to turn off
coagulation factors and turn on natural anti-clotting factors such as antithrombin-III, or AT-III. The actions of thrombin in the clotting process
also may be inhibited by direct thrombin inhibitors, which act directly on thrombin.

- Fibrin may be dissolved after clotting has occurred by products called fibrinolytics.

- The aggregation of platelets in the clotting process may be inhibited by products called platelet inhibitors, which act on different pathways,
including specific enzyme pathways like the cyclo-oxygenase and the adenosine diphosphate, or ADP, pathways and surface sites like the GP
ITb/II1a receptor.

Drugs are currently used alone or in combination with other anticoagulant therapy to target one or more components of the clotting process.
These drugs have anticoagulant effects but also increase the patient's risk of bleeding. Excess bleeding is often a risk associated with these
drugs due to the high doses needed to produce anticoagulant effects. In order to reduce this risk, physicians increasingly use combinations of
drugs targeted at different components of the clotting process at lower doses, which reduce the risk of thrombosis while minimizing the risk of
bleeding. :

Indirect Thrombin Inhibitors. In the hospital environment, most patients undergoing anticoagulation therapy for the prevention and treatment of
arterial and venous thrombosis receive heparin or low molecular weight héparin. In the United States, approximately five million patients
annually receive heparin. Heparin is a standard component of acute anticoagulation therapy because of the central role of thrombin in clotting
and heparin's rapid anticoagulant effect.

Heparin's properties as an anticoagulant were discovered in 1916. It is prepared from the intestines of pigs or cows. Heparin is a complex
mixture of animal-derived sugars with variable anticoagulant potencies. The anticoagulant effects of heparin on any given patient are difficult
to predict because heparin binds non-specifically to human cells and circulating substances in the blood. For these and other reasons, heparin,
as a non-specific, indirect thrombin inhibitor, presents a variety of clinical challenges including:

- Weak effect in clots. Because it is an indirect thrombin inhibitor, heparin is ineffective on thrombin when clots have formed.
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- Risk of bleeding. Patients who receive heparin have a high incidence of bleeding. This is particularly the case with patients who are elderly,
female or underweight. Recent clinical trials have shown that bleeding risk may also be increased when heparin is used in combination with
intravenous platelet inhibitors.

- Unpredictability. The anticoagulant effect of a given dose of heparin is unpredictable and therefore requires close monitoring.
- Adverse reaction risk. Heparin can cause HIT/HITTS, a dangerous immunological reaction.

- Diminished effect in sick patients. Heparin's effect may be reduced in the presence of blood factors found in patients stressed by disease, such
as heart attack patients.

- Requires other factors for effect. Heparin can oﬁly bind to thrombin by first binding to a blood factor called antithrombin-III, which may be
absent or present in insufficient amounts in some patients.

Physicians are increasingly using low molecular weight heparins as an alternative to heparin, especially as chronic therapy. In contrast to
heparin, low molecular weight heparins tend to be more specific in their effect and may be administered once or twice daily by subcutaneous
injection on an outpatient basis. Despite these advantages, low molecular weight heparins exhibit similar clinical challenges to those of heparin,
including a weak effect in clot that has already formed and a comparable risk of bleeding. In addition, clinicians are currently unable to monitor
the anticoagulant effects of low molecular weight heparins, making their use in angioplasty problematic.

Angiomax Potential Advantages

Angiomax is a peptide of 20 amino acids that is a quick-acting, direct and specific inhibitor of thrombin and is administered by intravenous
injection. Angiomax is specific in that it only binds to thrombin and does not bind to any other blood factors or cells.

Angiomax was engineered based on the biochemical structure of hirudin, a natural 65-amino acid protein anticoagulant. However, Angiomax is
reversible while hirudin is not. This reversibility is associated with a reduced risk of bleeding.

Angiomax has numerous clinical advantages over heparin including:

- Effective in clots. Angiomax, as a direct thrombin inhibitor, is equally effective on thrombin in the clot as well as thrombin circulating in the
blood;

- Reduced bleeding risk. As a reversible thrombin inhibitor, Angiomax has consistently shown clinically meaningful reductions in bleeding as
compared to heparin; '

- Predictability. A specified dose of Angiomax results in a predictable level of anticoagulation;
- Diminished adverse reaction risk. To date, Angiomax has not caused dahgerous immunological reactions in clinical trials;

- Effective in sick patients. Angiomax is effective even-in the presence of blood factors found in patients stressed by disease, for example heart
attack patients; and

- Independent of other factors for effect. Unlike heparin, Angiomax's effect does not require the presence of antithrombin-III or any other
factors to act on thrombin.

Angiomax Potential Applications

We believe that Angiomax will become the leading replacement for heparin in acute cardiovascular care. We plan to commercialize Angiomax
first for use in patients undergoing coronary angioplasty. In addition, we are developing Angiomax for use as an alternative to heparin for the
treatment of acute coronary syndromes, with a Phase 3b trial called REPLACE underway in angioplasty, a Phase 3 trial underway in AMI, a
Phase 3 trial underway in HIT/HITTS, a Phase 2 trial underway in CABG without the use of a bypass pump and a
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Phase 3 trial planned in patients with unstable angina. Our development plan is designed to highlight the clinical benefits of Angioma'x initially
in broad patient populations treated with heparin at high risk of clots or bleeding. We are also investigating other applications of Angiomax as
an acute care product. )

Use of Angiomax in Angioplasty

Angioplasty. Angioplasty is a procedure involving the inflation of a balloon or deployment of a stent or other device inside an obstructed artery
to restore normal blood flow. The coronary angioplasty procedure itself increases the risk of coronary clotting potentially leading to myocardial
infarction, or MI, CABG, or death.

Based on hospital discharge data, in the United States, there were approximately 686,000 inpatient angioplasty procedures performed in 1997
and approximately 55,000 outpatient angioplasty procedures performed in 1996. We believe approximately one half of patients undergoing
angioplasty in an inpatient hospital setting were admitted through the emergency room and may be categorized as high risk. Many of these
high-risk patients have previously experienced a heart attack or have unstable angina.

To prevent clotting, anticoagulation therapy is routinely administered to patients undergoing angioplasty. Heparin is currently used as an
anticoagulant in virtually all patients undergoing angioplasty. In addition, platelet inhibitors such as aspirin, an ADP inhibitor or a GP IIb/IIla
inhibitor are often administered. '

A segment of patients undergoing angioplasty and receiving anticoagulation therapy are at risk of significant bleeding. For example, the risk is
greater for patients who are elderly, female or underweight.

Angiomax Clinical Experience in Angioplasty. As of May 15, 2001, we and the licensor of Angiomax, Biogen, had conducted clinical trials of
Angiomax in over 6,100 patients undergoing angioplasty. These trials have shown that Angiomax is a predictable anticoagulant, which can be
used in combination with other therapies and which results in fewer adverse clinical events when compared to heparin.

ANGIOPLASTY TRIALS OF ANGIOMAX AS OF MAY 15, 2001

LEAD INVESTIGATORS COMPLETED PATIENTS PHASE TRIAL/STUDY DESCRIPTION
E. Topol........ ... .. 1992 291 2 Angiomax dose-ranging trial
J. Bittl... ... ... il 1994 4,312 3 Pivotal angioplasty trials

comparing Angiomax with high
dose heparin in unstable angina

7 patients
M. Abernathy, P. Aylward........ 1999 30 3 Interaction study of Angiomax
with Ticlid
L. Wallentin.................... 1999 40 3 Trial comparing Angiomax with

heparin in patients switched
from low molecular weight
heparin

H. White, P. Aylward............ 2000 26 2 Trial of Angiomax dosing in
patients with normal to
moderately impaired kidney

: - function ,
~ N. Kleiman...................... © 2000 42 3b Interaction study of Angiomax

with Integrilin

o]

. Topol, N. Kleiman, A.M.

Lincoff, R. Harrington........ 1999 60 3 CACHET-A trial comparing

Angiomax with heparin in

. full-dose ReoPro patients

E. Topol, N. Kleiman, A.M.

Lincoff, R. Harrington........ 2000 210 3 CACHET-B/C trial comparing
Angiomax with ReoPro plus
heparin in broad patient group
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ANGIOPLASTY TRIALS OF ANGIOMAX AS OF MAY 15, 2001

LEAD INVESTIGATORS COMPLETED PATIENTS PHASE TRIAL/STUDY DESCRIPTION

R. Califf, K. Mahaffey.......... " ongoing 19 3 Study of Angiomax in HIT/HITTS
patients

J. Ormiston. ..c..vvii i, 2000 49 3b Angiomax single intravenous dose
trial

J. OrmisSton. .... v.uvvevuinnan ... 2000 33 3b Interaction study of Angiomax
with Aggrastat

A.M. Lincoff.......... ... ... ... Ongoing 1,057 3b REPLACE trial comparing Angiomax.

to heparin, with and without GP
. IIb/I1la inhibitors

Phase 3 Pivotal Trials in Angioplasty. Two similar, randomized double blind clinical trials compared the use of Angiomax to heparin in a total
of 4,312 patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. High doses of heparin were used in the trials. When measured
seven days after treatment in the hospital, in comparison to heparin-treated patients in the trials, Angiomax-treated patients experienced:

- 43% fewer clinical events as measured by death, MI, revascularization procedures or major bleeding;
- 22% fewer ischemic events as measured by death, revascularization or MI; and

- 62% or 65% less bleeding, as measured by a protocol-defined end point of major bleeding or the transfusion of two or more units of blood,
respectively. '

The following table summarizes the combined clinical results for all unstable angina patients in the pivotal Phase 3 angioplasty trials.

PERCENTAGE
REDUCTION
IN ADVERSE
ANGIOMAX HEPARIN CLINICAL EVENTS P-VALUE*
Number of patients.............................. < 2,161 2,151
In hospital up to 7 days
Death, MI, revascularization or major
bleeding. . ... ... . e 8.3% 14 .5% 43% <0.001
Death, 'MI or revascularization................ 6.2% 7.9% 22% 0.039
Major bleeding............. ... ... ... .. ... 3.5% 9.3% ! 62% <0.001
Transfusion................. e 2.0% 5.7% 65% <0.001
At 90 days
Death, MI or revascularization........ e e 15.7% 18.5% 15% 0.012

* The statistical significance of clinical results is determined by a widely-used statistical method that establishes the p-value of clinical results.
For example, a p-value of less than 0.01 (p<0.01) means that the chance of the clinical results occurring by accident is less than 1 in 100.

The trials included a prospectively defined and separately stratified group of 741 patients, who had experienced an MI during the two weeks
prior to angioplasty. The benefits of Angiomax as a direct thrombin inhibitor, compared to heparin as an indirect thrombin inhibitor, were more
pronounced for this group of 741 patients who had experienced an MI during the two weeks prior to angioplasty. When measured seven days
after treatment in the hospital, the Angiomax-treated patients experienced the following benefits: :

- 64% fewer clinical events as measured by death, MI, revascularization procedures or major bleeding;

- 51% fewer ischemic events as measured by death, revascularization or MI; and

- 76% or 80% less bleeding, as measured by a protocol-defined major bleeding or as measured by a transfusion of two or more units of blood.
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The following table summarizes the combined clinical results of the group of patients who had experienced a heart attack or MI during the two
weeks prior to angioplasty in the pivotal Phase 3 angioplasty trials.

PERCENTAGE
REDUCTION
IN ADVERSE
ANGIOMAX HEPARIN CLINICAL EVENTS P-VALUE

Number of patients........c.uuuiieuineinnnnnnn.... 369 372
In hospital up to 7 days
Death, MI, revascularization or major

bleeding. .. ... ..ottt 6.5% 18.3% 64% <0.001
Death, MI or revascularization................. 4.9% 9.9% 51% 0.009
Major bleeding...........oi i ... 2.4% 11.8% 80% <0.001
Transfusion. . ... ... ...ttt it i 1.6% 6.7% 76% <0.001
At 90 days
Death, MI or revascularization................. 11.7% 20.2% 42% <0.003

Recent trends in interventional cardiology have resulted in heparin doses lower than those used in the Angiomax pivotal Phase 3 trials in
angioplasty. We believe that this trend has been encouraged by the increasing combined use of platelet inhibitors and heparin in angioplasty. In
most recent major angioplasty trials with GP 1Ib/IIIa inhibitors, lower heparin doses were used than in the Angiomax pivotal Phase 3 trials.

Heparin Dosing in Pivotal Phase 3 Angioplasty Trial. Analyses of data from a wide array of recent angioplasty trials show that the bleeding
rates for the heparin patients in our trials were not higher than the bleeding rates for other trials where lower doses of heparin were used.
Ischemic event rates for patients in the Angiomax pivotal Phase 3 trlals were lower than for patients receiving lower doses of heparin without a
GP IIb/II1a inhibitor in other clinical studies.

CACHET-B/C Trials in Angioplasty. In February 2000, we completed the CACHET-B/C 'sttidy, a 210 patient randomized, multicenter study,
in angioplasty. The trial analyzed the use of Angiomax versus low-dose heparin. All heparin patients also received ReoPro. Although
Angiomax patients could receive ReoPro under certain circumstances, physicians in the trial opted notto use ReoPro in 76% of the Angiomax
patients.

The CACHET-B/C patient study population was-broader than in earlier Angiomax trials, targeting lower risk patients undergoing angioplasty
with expected stenting. Heparin and Angiomax doses were designed to achieve similar levels of anticoagulation. Aspirin with Ticlid or Plavix
was used in most patients. As in previous trials, Angiomax provided predictable levels of dose response anticoagulation.

The combined incidence of death, MI, revascularization or major bleeding reported within seven days was 3.5% in Angiomax patients and
14.3% in heparin and ReoPro patients with a p-value of 0.013.

Low platelet count, or thrombocytopema was significantly less frequent among Angiomax patients than among heparin/ReoPro patients w1th a
p-value of :

0.012. Other adverse events occurred with similar frequency in both groups. Angxomax showed no apparent pharmacological interaction with
ReoPro.

The results of the CACHET-B/C study provides more support for the use of Angiomax as a foundation anticoagulant for angioplasty. In this
study, Angiomax demonstrated predictable reversible anticoagulation and improved net clinical benefit over heparin. In addition, by decreasing
major bleeds and reducing the need for revascularization and drug costs, we believe that, on average, substantial cost savings are possible for
hospitals treating patients with Angiomax.

Interaction Studies. Specific interaction studies of Angiomax with GP IIb/IIla.inhibitors ReoPro, Integrilin and Aggrastat have not revealed any
drug-drug interactions.

REPLACE Trial in Angioplasty. In November 2000, we began a randomized, two-part Phase 3b trial of the use of Angiomax in angioplasty.
We expect that the trial will be conducted at approximately 200 sites in the United States. The first part of the trial, in which we have enrolled
1,057 patients, is designed to assess the clinical outcomes and health economics of Angiomax compared to heparin, with and without GP
ITb/IHa
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inhibitors. The second part of the trial, which may include up to 10,000 patients who have been referred for angioplasty, may include three
randomized arms:

- heparin with a GP IIb/Illa inhibitor;
- Angiomax with the provisional use of a GP IIb/IIIa inhibitor at the choice of the physician; and

- Angiomax with a GP IIb/IIla inhibitor.

Angiomax Commercialization Plans for Angioplasty. We began selling Angiomax in the United States in January 2001 using a sales force
contracted from Innovex, Inc., which we manage. In December 2000, we signed a master services agreement and a work order with Innovex
under which Innovex agreed to provide the sales force, a sales territory management system and operational support for the launch of
Angiomax.

We are focusing our Angiomax marketing efforts on interventional cardiologists and other key clinical décision-makers for Angiomax. Our
sales force has been configured to target the relatively small number of cardiac catheterization laboratories in which most of the angioplasty
procedures in the United States are performed.

We expect Angiomax to provide cost savings to medical decision-makers using Angiomax as part of a safe and effective anticoagulant therapy.
Many United States hospitals receive a fixed reimbursement amount for the angioplasties they perform. Because this amount is not based on
the actual expenses the hospital incurs, the use of Angiomax has the potential to reduce a hospital's cost of treating an angioplasty patient by
reducing bleeding and ischemic events and reducing the need for other treatment therapies. From 1995 to 1997, the incremental costs to a
hospital averaged the following: approximately $12,000 for an angioplasty patient receiving a 2-unit transfusion; approximately $4,000 for
revascularization in the form of a repeat angioplasty; and approximately $17,000 for an angioplasty patient revascularized by means of
coronary artery bypass graft surgery. Our pricing structure for Angiomax is designed to provide hospitals with cost savings based on reductions
in clinical events and reductions in drug costs.

If Angiomax is approved for use in other indications, such as AMI or unstable angina, we intend to market Angiomax for these indications in
the United States by supplementing our commercial organization, or by collaborating with other biopharmaceutical companies.

We are seeking commercial partners outside of the United Stated to market, sell and distribute Angiomax. As of May 17, 2001, we had entered
into a marketing and distribution agreement with Medison Pharma Ltd. for the registration, distribution and promotion of Angiomax in Israel.

Acute Myocardial Infarction
Acute myocardial infarction is a leading cause of death. AMI occurs when coronary arteries, which supply blood to the heart, become
completely blocked with clot. AMI patients are routinely treated with heparin, with and without fibrinolytics. Heart attack patients are
increasingly undergoing angioplasty as a primary treatment to unblock clotted arteries.

Based on hospital discharge data, in 1997, there were approximately 871,000 AMI patients in the United States who were treated in a hospital.
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Angiomax Clinical Experience in AML As of May 15, 2001, we and Biogen had conducted clinical trials comparing Angiomax and heparin in
over 17,600 AMI patients.

LEAD INVESTIGATORS COMPLETED PATIENTS PHASE TRIAL/STUDY DESCRIPTION

P. Theroux.............. 1992 45 2 Dose-ranging trial comparing Angiomax with
heparin administered prior to a
fibrinolytic

"P. Theroux.............. 1993 68 2 Dose-ranging trial comparing Angiomax with
heparin administered prior to a
) fibrinolytic
H. White................ 1996 412 2 HERO-1: Dose-ranging trial comparing

Angiomax with heparin administered
following a fibrinolytic
H. White, R. Califf,
F. Van de Werf, :
P. Aylward............ Enrollment 17,080 3 HERO-2: Mortality trial comparing Angiomax
with heparin administered prior to a
fibrinolytic in 17,000 patients

The first two trials compared the effect of two doses of Angiomax with heparin as therapy administered in advance of streptokinase, a
fibrinolytic, in heart attack patients. The trials were designed to compare the difference in rates of blood flow following therapy. The third trial,
the Hirulog Early Reperfusion/Occlusion-1 trial, or the HERO-1 trial, was a multi-center, randomized, double blind comparison involving 412
patients. In this trial, patients with AMI were administered heparin or one of two doses of Angiomax as therapy following the administration of
streptokinase and aspirin. Blood flow rates after therapy were evaluated using a standard measure of coronary artery blood flow.

The three Phase 2 trials demonstrated that use of Angiomax: .
- resulted in normal blood flow in at least 34% more patients than heparin; and
- resulted in substantially less bleeding and the need for fewer transfusions than heparin.

The following table summarizes the clinical results for AMI patients in the Phase 2 clinical trials comparing Angiomax to heparin as combined
with a fibrinolytic:

ANGIOMAX HEPARIN PERCENTAGE

PATIENTS PATIENTS IMPROVEMENT P-VALUE*

Theroux Montreal Heart Institute Study 1 (45

patients)

Full blood flow at 90 minutes................... 67% 40% 67% 0.08
Theroux Montreal Heart Institute Study 2 (68
. patients)

Full blood flow at 90 minutes................... 71% 31% 129% 0.006

Transfusion. . ... ... ... i i i e 5% 31% 84% <0.02
HERO-1 Trial (412 patients)

Full blood flow at 90 minutes................... 47% 35% 34% 0.024

Major bleeding........ ...t 17% 28% 39% <0.01

Based on the results of these Phase 2 trials, we are conducting a worldwide 17,000 patient Phase 3 clinical trial in AMI. In this HERO-2 Phase
3 trial, AMI patients receive Angiomax or heparin prior to treatment with a fibrinolytic. All patients receive aspirin and Streptase, a
fibrinolytic. This trial is designed to demonstrate statistically significant improvement in 30-day cumulative mortality among patients receiving
Angiomax, thus establishing Angiomax as the only direct thrombin inhibitor with mortality benefit compared to heparin in the management of
AML :

We are coordinating the HERO-2 trial with the Virtual Coordinating Center for Global Collaborative Cardiovascular Research Organization,
commonly referred to as VIGOUR, an academic consortium of leading cardiologists and their affiliated institutions established to coordinate
the efforts of large global clinical
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trials in cardiology. As of May 15, 2001, the trial had completed enrollment of the 17,000 patients. We expect the analysis of the data to be
completed by the end of the third quarter.

Following enrollment of approximately 2,000, 5,000, 8,000 and 12,500 patients, an independent panel, the Drug Safety Monitoring Board,
reviewed safety data from the trial to determine whether there were safety issues that would warrant modification or early termination of the
trial. The Board completed the fourth planned review in January 2001, and the trial is proceeding without modification. In contrast, two
previous trials using high doses of hirudin in patients including heart attack patients were stopped early because of excessive bleeding in the
hirudin patients. )

Acute Coronary Syndromes/Unstable Angina

Unstable angina is a condition in which patients experience the new onset of severe chest pain, increasingly frequent chest pain or chest pain
that occurs while they are resting. Unstable angina is caused most often by a rupture of plaque on an arterial wall that ultimately decreases
coronary blood flow but does not cause complete blockage of the artery. There are approximately 948,000 cases of unstable angina in the
United States reported each year. Unstable angina is often treated in hospitals with anticoagulation therapy that may include aspirin, indirect
thrombin inhibitors such as heparin or low molecular weight heparin and GP IIb/IIIa inhibitors. Many unstable angina patients undergo
angioplasty or CABG. ‘

Angiomax Clinical Experience in Unstable Angina. As of May 15, 2001, we and Biogen had completed five Phase 2 trials of Angiomax in
patients with unstable angina or who had experienced a less serious form of MI known as non Q-wave MI. These trials enrolled a total of 630
patients, of whom 553 received various doses of Angiomax. These studies have demonstrated that Angiomax is an anticoagulant which can be
administered safely in patients with unstable angina.

The largest of these Phase 2 trials was a multicenter, double blind, placebo-controlled and randomized study in 410 patients with unstable
angina or who had experienced non Q-wave MI. The trial compared the effect of three active dose levels and one placebo dose level of
Angiomax with respect to death, MI, recurrent angina and major bleeding. Angiomax demonstrated a significant correlation between dose and
anticoagulant effect. .

In comparison to 160 patients treated with placebo doses in the trial, 250 patients treated with active doses of Angiomax experienced:
- a 68% reduction in death or MI 1n hospital with a p-value equal to 0‘.009; and
- a 59% reduction in death or MI after six weeks with a p-value equal to 0.014.
We have plans to commence a Phase 3 trial program to study the use of Angiomax in patients with unstable angina.
| Other Indications
We and Biogeﬁ have conducted a number of additional clinical trials of Angiomax for other indications.
HIT/HITTS. Approximately one to three percent of patients who have received heparin for seven to 14 days experience a condition known as
HIT/HITTS. The underlying mechanism for the condition appears to be an immunological response to a complex formed by heparin and
another factor, resulting in the lowering of platelet counts, commonly referred to as thrombocytopenia, and in some cases in arterial or venous

clotting, which may result in the need for limb amputation, or death. Because further administration of heparin is not poséible, an alternative
anticoagulant is necessary.

Prior to 1997, Angiomax was administered to a total of 39 HIT/HITTS patients undergoing angioplasty requiring anticoagulétion for invasive
coronary procedures or treatment of thrombosis. For those patients undergoing angioplasty and other procedures, Angiomax provided adequate
anticoagulation, was well- tolerated and rarely resulted in bleeding complications.
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Based upon the encouraging data in 39 patients, we are currently enrolling patients in a trial designed to evaluate the use of Angiomax for
treatment of HIT/HITTS patients undergoing -angioplasty. The trial has enrolled 19 patients to date and plans to enroll 50 patients in total.

CABG. We have initiated a 100 patient Phase 2 trial of Angiomax comparing Angiomax to heparin in patients undergoing off pump CABG.
The trial was initiated in November 2000 and 32 patients had been enrolled in the trial as of May 15, 2001.

Deep Venous Thrombosis. Thirty-one patients with clots in the veins in their legs and 222 patients undergoing orthopedic surgical procedures
were treated with Angiomax in two open-label, dose-ranging Phase 2 trials in 1990. Both studies established that Angiomax was an active and
well-tolerated anticoagulant and that the anticoagulant effects correlated with the dose of Angiomax.

We are actively considering further development plans to expand the uses of Angiomax in venous thrombosis and other indications.
Regulatory Status

In December 2000, we received approval from the FDA for the use of Angiomax in combination with aspirin in patients with unstable angina
undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty. In connection with this approval, the FDA has required us to complete our ongoing trial evaluating
the use of Angiomax for the treatment of HIT/HITTS patients undergoing angioplasty. Angiomax is intended for use with aspirin and has been
studied only in patients also receiving aspirin.

In February 1998, we submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, to the European Agency for the Evaluation of Medicinal
Products, or EMEA, for use in unstable angina patients undergoing angioplasty. Following extended interaction with European regulatory
authorities, the Committee of Proprietary Medicinal Products, or CPMP, of the EMEA voted in October 1999 not to recommend Angiomax for
approval in angioplasty. The United Kingdom and Ireland dissented from this decision. We have withdrawn our application to the EMEA and
are in active dialogue with European regulators to determine our alternative courses of action. V

Angiomax was approved in New Zealand in September 1999 for use as an anticoagulant in patients undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty,
and we began selling Angiomax in New Zealand in June 2000. We have submitted an application in Canada to market Angiomax for use in
unstable angina patients undergoing angioplasty and are in active dialogue with Canadian regulators. :

CTV-05

In 1999, we acquired from GyneLogix, Inc. exclusive worldwide rights to CTV-05, a strain of bacteria under clinical investigation for a broad
range of applications in the areas of gynecological and reproductive health. We have entered into a clinical trial agreement with the National
Institutes of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, a division of the National Institutes of Health, commonly referred to as NIH, to conduct a Phase 2
trial of CTV-05, a proprietary biotherapeutic agent for the treatment of bacterial vaginosis, or BV. BV, the most common gynecological
infection in women of childbearing age, is an imbalance of naturally occurring organisms in the vagina.

Bacterial Vaginosis

BV develops when certain bacteria normally present in the vagina in low levels multiply to infectious levels. BV is associated with serious
health risks such as pelvic inflammatory disease, pre-term birth, post-surgical infection and an increased susceptibility to sexually transmitted
diseases, including AIDS. The standard treatments currently prescribed for BV are oral or topical antibiotics including metronidazole and
clindamycin. These treatments are not optimal, having significant recurrence rates. Moreover, antibiotic use depletes a beneficial bacteria
called lactobacilli. '
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CTV-05: Rationale, Product Profile and Clinical Studies

A healthy vagina is principally populated by lactobacilli. The presence of lactobacilli in the vagina, particularly those that produce hydrogen
peroxide, has been linked to decreased incidence of BV and other urinary tract and gynecological infections. However, many women lack
sufficient populations of hydrogen peroxide-producing lactobacilli to maintain vaginal health, making them more susceptible to infection.

Studies have shown that the CTV-05 strain of lactobacillus is able to restore the natural balance of the bacteria in the vagina and produce both
hydrogen peroxide and lactic acid, substances which are active against disease-causing bacteria and serve a protective role. Because of this,
CTV-05 has the potential to improve cure rates when used in conjunction with approved antibiotics, to prevent BV recurrence and thus to
reduce serious health risks. '

In the Phase 2 safety and efficacy trial, funded by NIH, CTV-05 is administered topically to BV patients. The study is primarily designed to
"show whether CTV-05 improves cure rates of BV at 30 days. The study is the first large trial to look at recurrence rates of BV at 90 days. As of
May 15, 2001, we had enrolled over 260 patients in a 400 patient trial at three sites and expect to conclude the trial in 2001.

Other Indications

Recently completed studies by GyneLogix under a Center for Disease Control and Prevention grant, have shown that CTV-05 is active against -
the organisms which cause yeast infections and gonorrhea. We plan to conduct pilot clinical studies in these indications.

IS-159

In 1998, we acquired from Immunotech S.A. exclusive worldwide rights to IS-159, a selective chemical that reacts with receptors found on
cerebral blood vessels and nerve terminals. We are seeking a collaborator to develop IS-159 and do not intend to initiate further studies of IS-
159 until we enter into a collaborative arrangement.

PRODUCT ACQUISITION STRATEGY

We plan to continue to acquire, develop and commercialize late-stage product candidates or approved products that make a clinical difference
to patients managed by focused groups of medical decision-makers. Our strategy is to acquire late-stage development product candidates with
an anticipated time to market of four years or less and existing clinical data which provides reasonable evidence of safety and efficacy. In
addition, we aim to acquire approved products that can be marketed by our commercial organization. In making our acquisition decisions we
attempt to select products that meet these criteria and achieve high investment returns by: :

- understanding the market opportunity for initially-targeted uses of the drug;
- assessing the investment and development programs that will be necessary to achieve a marketable product profile in these initial uses; and

- attempting to structure the design of our development programs to obtain critical information relating to the clinical and economic
performance of the product early in the development process, so that we can make key development decisions.

As of May 15, 2001, we have implemented this strategy with Angiomax, CTV-05 and IS-159.

We intend to acquire products and product candidates with possible uses and markets beyond those on which our initial investment program
will be focused. We plan to acquire other products that will enhance the acute hospital product franchise we are building around Angiomax. We
are also seeking other specialty anti-infective products and product candidates that will fit into the franchise we expect to build around CTV-05.

We have assembled a management team with significant experience in drug development and in drug product launches and commercialization.
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MANUFACTURING

We do not intend to build or operate manufacturing facilities but instead intend to enter into contracts for manufacturing development and/or
commercial supply.

Angiomax

All Angiomax bulk drug substance used in non-clinical and clinical work performed to date has been produced by UCB Bioproducts by means
of a chemical synthesis process. We have ordered, and for the foreseeable future will order, Angiomax bulk drug substance from UCB
Bioproducts under the validated manufacturing process. Using this process, UCB Bioproducts has successfully completed the manufacture of
bulk drug substance to meet anticipated commercial supply requirements in 2001.

Together with UCB Bioproducts, we have developed a second generation chemical synthesis process to improve the economics of the
manufacturing of Angiomax bulk drug substance. This process, which must be approved by the FDA before it can be used, is known as the
Chemilog process and involves limited changes to the early manufacturing steps of our current process in order to improve process economics.
We expect the Chemilog process to produce material that is chemically equivalent to that produced using the current process. UCB Bioproducts
has completed initial development of the process and is currently manufacturing validation batches.

We have entered into a commercial development and supply agreement with UCB Bioproducts for production of Angiomax bulk drug
substance utilizing the Chemilog process. Under terms of the agreement, UCB Bioproducts will prepare and file the necessary drug master file
for regulatory approval of the Chemilog process. If the Chemilog process is successfully developed and regulatory approval is obtained, we
expect this process will result in a reduced cost of manufacturing.

We have developed reproducible analytical methods and processes for the manufacture of Angiomax drug product by Ben Venue Laboratories.
Ben Venue Laboratories has carried out all of our Angiomax fill-finish activities and has released product for clinical trials and commercial
sale.

CTV-05

As of May 15, 2001, GyneLogix had manufactured all CTV-05 material used in clinical trials. In order to scale up production to produce
sufficient materials for later phase clinical trials, we have entered into a manufacturing arrangement with The Dow Chemical Company. We are
currently in the process of transferring the CTV-05 manufacturing technology to Dow.

STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS

In order to develop and commercialize our products we leverage our resources by utilizing contract product development, manufacturing and
sales companies.

UCB Bioproducts

In December 1999, we entered into a commercial development and supply agreement with UCB Bioproducts for the development and supply
of Angiomax bulk drug substance. Under the terms of the agreement, UCB Bioproducts is also responsible for developing the Chemilog
process in coordination with us and obtaining regulatory approval for use of the process. We have agreed to partially fund UCB Bioproducts'
development activities. This funding is due upon the completion by UCB Bioproducts of development milestones. If UCB Bioproducts
successfully completes each of these development milestones, we anticipate that total development funding paid by us will equal approximately
$9.1 million. Of this $9.1 million, $7.7 million will be paid to UCB Bioproducts for validation batches of Angiomax manufactured using the
Chemilog process, which we may use for commercial sale following regulatory approval of the Chemilog process. In addition, following
successful development and regulatory approval of the Chemilog process, we have agreed to purchase Angiomax bulk drug substance
exclusively from UCB Bioproducts at agreed upon prices for a period of seven years from the date of the first commercial sale of Angiomax
produced under the
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Chemilog process. Following the expiration of the agreement, or if we terminate the agreement prior to its expiration, UCB Bioproducts will
transfer the development technology to us. If we engage a third party to manufacture Angiomax for us using this technology, we will be
obligated to pay UCB Bioproducts a royalty based on the amount paid by us to the third-party manufacturer. -

PharmaBio/Quintiles

In August 1996, we entered into a strategic alliance with PharmaBio Development, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Quintiles Transnational
Corp. Under the terms of the strategic alliance agreement, PharmaBio and any of its affiliates who work on our projects will, at no cost to us,
review and evaluate, jointly with us, development programs we design related to potential or actual product acquisitions. The purpose of this
collaboration is to optimize the duration, cost, specifications and quality aspects of such programs. PharmaBio and its affiliates have also
agreed to perform certain other services with respect to our products, including clinical and non-clinical development services, project
management, project implementation, pharmacoeconomic services, regulatory affairs and post-marketing surveillance services and statistical,
statistical programming, data processing and data management services. We have agreed to pay PharmaBio its standard fee for these other
services, with certain exceptions for exceptional performance by PharmaBio. For more information regarding this alliance, please see
"Transactions with Executive Officers, Directors and Five Percent Stockholders.”

Innovex

In January 1997, we entered into a consulting agreement with Innovex, Inc., a subsidiary of Quintiles, which was subsequently superseded by a
consulting agreement we executed with Innovex in December 1998. Pursuant to the terms of these agreements, Innovex has provided us with
consulting services with respect to pharmaceutical marketing and sales.

In December 2000, we signed a master services agreement and a work order with Innovex to promote Angiomax. Under the agreement and
work order, Innovex will provide a sales force of up to 52 sales representatives, a sales territory management system and operational support
for the launch of Angiomax. Under the terms of the agreement and work order, we have paid Innovex a total of approximately $3.0 million for
its services through April 30, 2001. .

" COMPETITION

The development and commercialization of new drugs is competitive and we will face competition from major pharmaceutical companies,
specialty pharmaceutical companies and biotechnology companies worldwide. Our competitors may develop products or other novel
technologies that are more effective, safer or less costly than any that have been or are being developed by us, or may obtain FDA approval for
their products more rapidly than we may obtain approval for ours.- .

Due to the incidence and severity of cardiovascular diseases, the market for anticoagulant therapies is large and competition is intense and
growing. We are developing Angiomax as an anticoagulant therapy for the treatment of ischemic heart disease. There are a number of
anticoagulant therapies currently on the market, awaiting regulatory approval or in development.

In general, anticoagulant drugs may be classified in three groups: drugs that directly or indirectly target and inhibit thrombin or its formation,
drugs that target and inhibit platelets activation and aggregation and drugs that break down fibrin. Indirect thrombin inhibitors include heparin
and low molecular weight heparins such as Lovenox, Fragmin and pentasaccharide. Direct thrombin inhibitors include Angiomax, Argatroban,
Melagatran and hirudins such as Refludan. Platelet inhibitors include aspirin, Ticlid Plavix. GP IIb/Illa inhibitors include ReoPro, Integrilin
and Aggrastat. Fibrinolytics include Streptase, Activase, Retevase and TNKase.

Because each group of anticoagulants acts on different clotting factors, we believe that there will be continued clinical work to determine the
best combination of drugs for clinical use. We plan to position
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Angiomax as an alternative to heparin as baseline anticoagulation therapy for use in patients with ischemic heart disease. We expect Angiomax
to be used with aspirin alone or in conjunction with other fibrinolytic drugs or platelet inhibitors. We will compete with indirect and direct
thrombin inhibitors on the basis of efficacy and safety, ease of administration and economic value. Heparin's widespread use and low cost to
hospitals will provide a selling challenge.

We do not plan to position Angiomax as a direct competitor to platelet inhibitors such as ReoPro from Centocor, Inc. and Eli Lilly and
Company, Aggrastat from Merck, Inc. or Integrilin from Cor Therapeutics, Inc. and Schering-Plough Corporation. Similarly, we do not plan to
position Angiomax as a competitor to fibrinolytic drugs such as Streptase from Aventis S.A., Retevase from Centocor, Inc., and Activase and

. TNKase from Genentech Inc. Platelet inhibitors and fibrinolytic drugs may, however, compete with Angiomax for the use of hospital financial
resources. Many U.S. hospitals receive a fixed reimbursement amount per procedure for the angioplasties and other treatment therapies they
perform.

Because this amount is not based on the actual expenses the hospital incurs, U.S. hospitals may be forced to use either Angiomax or a platelet
inhibitor or fibrinolytic drugs but not both.

The acquisition or licensing of pharmaceutical products is a competitive area, and a number of more established companies, which have
acknowledged strategies to license or acquire products, may have competitive advantages as may other emerging companies taking similar or
different approaches to product acquisition. In addition, a number of established research-based pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies
may have acquired products in late stages of development to augment their internal product lines. These established companies may have a
competitive advantage over us due to their size, cash flows and institutional experience.

Many of our competitors will have substantially greater financial, technical and human resources than we have. Additional mergers and
acquisitions in the pharmaceutical industry may result in even more resources being concentrated in our competitors. Competition may increase
further as a result of advances made in the commercial applicability of technologies and greater availability of capital for investment in these
fields. Our success will be based in part on our ability to build and actively manage a portfolio of drugs that addresses unmet medical needs and
create value in patient therapy.

PATENTS, PROPRIETARY RIGHTS AND LICENSES

Our success will depend in part on our ability to protect the products we acquire or license by obtaining and maintaining patenlt protection both
in the United States and in other countries. We also rely upon trade secrets, know-how, continuing technological innovations and licensing
opportunities to develop and maintain our competitive position. We plan to prosecute and defend any patents or patent applications we acqulre
or license, as well as any proprietary technology.

We have exclusively licensed from Biogen patents and applications for patents covering Angiomax and Angiomax analogs and other novel
anticoagulants as compositions of matter, and processes for using Angiomax and Angiomax analogs and other novel anticoagulants. We have
exclusively licensed from GyneLogix a patent and patent applications covering formulations and uses of the biotherapeutic agent CTV-05 for
the treatment of urogenital and reproductive health. We have also exclusively licensed from Immunotech a patent and patent applications
covering the pharmaceutical IS-159 and its use for the treatment of acute migraine headache. In each case, we are responsible for prosecuting
and maintaining such patents and patent applications. In all, as of May 15, 2001, we exclusively licensed 10 issued United States patents and a
broadly filed portfolio of corresponding foreign patents and patent applications. We have not yet filed any independent patent applications. The
U.S. patents licensed by us expire at various dates ranging from March 2010 to April 2017.

The patent positions of pharmaceutical and biotechnology firms like us are generally uncertain and involve complex legal, scientific and factual
questions. In addition, the coverage claimed in a patent application can be significantly reduced before the patent is issued. Consequently, we
do not know whether any of the applications we acquire or license will result in the issuance of patents or, if any patents are issued,
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whether they will provide significant proprietary protection or will be challenged, circumvented or invalidated. Because patent applications in
the United States are maintained in secrecy until patents issue, and since publication of discoveries in the scientific or patent literature often
lags behind actual discoveries, we cannot be certain of the priority of inventions covered by pending patent applications. Moreover, we may
have to participate in interfererice proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office to determine priority of invention, or
in opposition proceedings in a foreign patent office, either of which could result in substantial cost to us, even if the eventual outcome is
favorable to us. There can be no assurance that the patents, if issued, would be held valid by a court of competent jurisdiction. An adverse
outcome could subject us to significant liabilities to third parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from third parties or require us to cease
using such technology.

The development of anticoagulants is intensely competitive. A number of pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology companies, universities
and research institutions have filed patent applications or received patents in this field. Some of these applications are competitive with
applications we have acquired or licensed, or conflict in certain respects with claims made under such applications. Such conflict could result in
a significant reduction of the coverage of the patents we have acquired or licensed, if issued, which would have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if patents are issued to other companies that contain competitive or
conflicting claims and such claims are ultimately determined to be valid, no assurance can be given that we would be able to obtain licenses to
these patents at a reasonable cost, or develop or obtain alternative technology.

We also rely on trade secret protection for our confidential and proprietary information. No assurance can be given that others will not
independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary-information and techniques or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets or disclose
such technology, or that we can meaningfully protect our trade secrets.

It is our policy to require our employees, consultants, outside scientific collaborators, sponsored researchers and other advisors to execute
confidentiality agreements upon the commencement of employment or consulting relationships with us. These agreements provide that ail
confidential information developed or made known to the individual during the course of the individual's relationship with us is to be kept
confidential and not disclosed to third parties except in specific circumstances. In the case of employees, the agreements provide that all
inventions conceived by the individual shall be our exclusive property. There can be no assurance, however, that these agreements will provide
meaningful protection or adequate remedies for the our trade secrets in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of such information.

LICENSE AGREEMENTS
Biogen, Inc.

In March 1997, we entered into an agreement with Biogen for the license of the anticoagulant pharmaceutical bivalirudin, which we have
developed as Angiomax. Under the terms of the agreement, we acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the technology, patents, trademarks,

" inventories and know-how related to Angiomax. In exchange for the license, we paid $2.0 million on the closing date and are obligated to pay
up to an additional $8.0 million upon reaching certain Angiomax sales milestones, including the first commercial sales of Angiomax for the
treatment of AMI in the United States and Europe. In addition, we are obligated to pay royalties on future sales of Angiomax and on any
sublicense royalties earned until the later of (1) 12 years after the date of the first commercial sale of the product in a country or (2) the date in
which the product or its manufacture, use or sale is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in such country. The
agreement also stipulates that we use commercially reasonable efforts to meet certain milestones related to the development and
commercialization of Angiomax, including expending at least $20.0 million for certain development and commercialization activities, which
we met in 1998. The licenses and rights under the agreement remain in force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party may
terminate the agreement for material breach, and we may terminate the agreement for any reason upon 90 days prior written notice.
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GyneLogix, Inc.

In August 1999, we entered into an agreement with GyneLogix for the license of the biotherapeutic agent CTV-05, a strain of human
lactobacillus currently under clinical investigation for applications in the areas of urogenital and reproductive health. Under the terms of the
agreement, we acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the patents and know-how related to CTV-05. In exchange for the license, we have paid
GyneLogix $400,000 and are obligated to pay up to an additional $100,000 upon reaching certain development and regulatory milestones and
to fund agreed-upon operational costs of GyneLogix related to the development of CTV-05 on a monthly basis subject to a limitation of
$50,000 per month. In addition, we are obligated to pay royalties on future sales of CTV-05 and on any sublicense royalties earned until the
date on which the product is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in a country. The agreement also stipulates that we
must use commercially reasonable efforts in pursuing the development, commercialization and marketing of CTV-05 to maintain the license.
The licenses and rights under the agreement remain in force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party may terminate the
agreement for material breach, and we may terminate the agreement for any reason upon 60 days prior written notice.

Immunotech S.A.

In July 1998, we entered into an agreement with Immunotech for the license of the pharmaceutical IS-159 for the treatment of acute migraine
headache. Under the terms of the agreement, we acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the patents and know-how related to IS-159. In
exchange for the license, we paid $1.0 million on the closing date and are obligated to pay up to an additional $4.5 million upon reaching
certain development and regulatory milestones. In addition, we are obligated to pay royalties on future sales of IS-159 and on any sublicense
royalties earned until the date on which the product is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in a country. The
agreement also stipulates that we must use commercially reasonable efforts in pursuing the development, commercialization and marketing of
IS-159 and meet certain development and regulatory milestones to maintain the license. The licenses and rights under the agreement remain in
force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party may terminate the agreement for material breach, and we may terminate the
agreement for any reason upon 60 days prior written notice.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Government authorities in the United States and other countries extensively regulate, among other things, the research, development, testing,
manufacture, labeling, promotion, advertising, distribution, and marketing of our products. In the United States, the FDA regulates drugs under
the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, and, in the case of biologics, also under the Public Health Service Act, and implementing
regulations. Failure to comply with the applicable U.S. requirements may subject us to administrative or judicial sanctions, such as the FDA

. refusal to approve pending applications, warning letters, product recalls, product seizures, total or partial suspension of production or
distribution, injunctions, and/or criminal prosecution.

The steps required before a drug may be marketed in the United States include:
- pre-clinical laboratory tests, animal studies and formulation studies;

- submission to the FDA of an investigational new drug exemption, or IND, for human clinical testing, which must become effective before
human clinical trials may begin; '

- adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the drug for each indicaﬁon;
- submission to the FDA of an NDA or biologics license application, or BLA,;

- satisfactory completion of an FDA inspection of the manufacturing facility or facilities at which the drug is produced to assess compliance
with cGMP; and

- FDA review and approval of the NDA or BLA.
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Pre-clinical tests include laboratory evaluations of product chemistry, toxicity, and formulation, as well as animal studies. The results of the
pre-clinical tests, together with manufacturing information and analytical data, are submitted to the FDA as part of an IND, which must become
effective before human clinical trials may begin. An IND will automatically become effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless before
that time the FDA raises concerns or questions about issues such as the conduct of the trials as outlined in the IND. In such a case, the IND
sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding FDA concerns or questions before clinical trials can proceed. Submission of an IND may
not result in the FDA allowing clinical trials to commence.

Clinical trials involve the administration of the investigational drug to human subjects under the supervision of qualified investigators. Clinical
trials are conducted under protocols detailing the objectives of the study, the parameters to be used in monitoring safety, and the effectlveness
criteria to be evaluated. Each protocol must be submitted to the FDA as part of the investigational new drug exemption.

Clinical-trials typically are conducted in three sequential Phases, but the phases may overlap or be combined. Each trial must be reviewed and
approved by an independent Institutional Review Board before it can begin. Phase 1 usually involves the initial introduction of the
investigational drug into people to evaluate its safety, dosage tolerance, phamacodynamics, and, if possible, to gain an early indication of its
effectiveness. Phase 2 usually involves trials in a limited patient population to:

- evaluate dosage tolerance and appropriate dosage;
- identify possible adverse effects and safety risks; and
- evaluate preliminarily the efficacy of the drug for specific indications.

Phase 3 trials usually further evaluate clinical efficacy and test further for safety by using the drug in its final form in an expanded patient
population. We cannot guarantee that Phase 1, Phase 2 or Phase 3 testing will be completed successfully within any specified period of time, if
at all. Furthermore, we or the FDA may suspend clinical trials at any time on various grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients
are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk. ‘

Assuming successful completion of the required clinical testing, the results of the preclinical studies and of the clinical studies, together with
other detailed information, including information on the manufacture and composition of the drug, are submitted to the FDA in the form of an
NDA or BLA requesting approval to market the product for one or more indications. Before approving an application, the FDA usually will
inspect the facility or the facilities at which the drug is manufactured, and will not approve the product unless cGMP compliance is satisfactory.
If the FDA determines the application and the manufacturing facilities are acceptable, the FDA will issue an approval letter. If the FDA
determines the application or manufacturing facilities are not acceptable, the FDA will outline the deficiencies in the submission and often will
request additional testing or information. Notwithstanding the submission of any requested additional information, the FDA ultimately may
decide that the application does not satisfy the regulatory criteria for approval. The testing and approval process requires substantial time,
effort, and financial resources, and we cannot be sure that any approval will be granted on a timely basis, if at all. After approval, certain
changes to the approved product, such as adding new indications, manufacturing changes, or additional labeling claims are subject to further
FDA review and approval. '

In December 2000, we received marketing approval from the FDA for Angiomax for use as an anticoagulant in combination with aspirin in
patients with unstable angina undergoing coronary balloon angioplasty.

After regulatory approval of a product is obtained, we are required to comply with a number of post-approval requirements. For example, as a
condition of approval of an application, the FDA may require postmarketing testing and surveillance to monitor the drug's safety or efficacy. In
the case of Angiomax, the FDA has required us to complete an ongoing 50 patient trial in which we are treating patients with HIT/ HITTS who
need coronary balloon angioplasty.
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In addition, holders of an approved NDA or BLA are required to report certain adverse reactions and production problems, if any, to the FDA,
and to comply with certain requirements concerning advertising and promotional labeling for their products. Also, quality control and
manufacturing procedures must continue to conform to cGMP after approval, and the FDA periodically inspects manufacturing facilities to
assess compliance with cGMP. Accordingly, manufacturers must continue to expend time, money, and effort in the area of production and
quality control to maintain compliance with current good manufacturing practices and other aspects of regulatory compliance.

We use and will continue to use third-party manufacturers to produce our products in clinical and commercial quantities, and we cannot be sure
that future FDA inspections will not identify compliance issues at our facilities or at the facilities of our contract manufacturers that may
disrupt production or distribution, or require substantial resources. to correct. In addition, discovery of problems with a product may result in
restrictions on a product, manufacturer, or holder of an approved NDA or BLA, including withdrawal of the product from the market. Also,
new government requirements may be established that could delay or prevent regulatory approval of our products under development.”

FACILITIES

As of May 15, 2001, we leased approximately 9,000 square feet of office space in Cambridge, Massachusetts and approximately 6,660 square
feet of office space in Parsippany, New Jersey. We believe our current facilities will be sufficient to meet our needs for the foreseeable future,
but that additional space will be available on commercially reasonable terms to meet space requirements if they arise. We also have offices in
Oxford, United Kingdom and Pamell, Auckland, New Zealand.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we have been and expect to continue to be subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. As of
May 15, 2001, we were not a party to any material legal proceeding. :

EMPLOYEES

We believe that our success will depend greatly on our ability to identify, attract and retain capable employees. We have assembled a
" management team with significant experience in drug development and commercialization.

As of May 15, 2001, we employ 75 persons, of whom 12 hold M.D. and/or Ph.D. degrees and 15 hold other advanced degrees. Our employees
are not represented by any collective bargaining unit, and we believe our relations with our employees are good.
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MANAGEMENT
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, KEY EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Our executive officers, key employees and directors, and their respective ages and positions as of May 15, 2001, are set forth below:

NAME AGE POSITION

Clive A. Meanwell, M.D., Ph.D.*................. 44 Chief Executive Officer, President and
Director

Peyton J. Marshall, Ph.D.*......... ...t 46 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Glenn P. Sblendorio, M.B.A.*. . ... ... iieennenn. 45 Senior Vice President

David M. StacKk*. ... ... ... ..t 50 Senior Vice President-

John M. Nystrom, Ph.D.*.......... e e 55 Vice President and Chief Technical Officer

Gary Dickinson. ... ... ... ...ttt 49 Vice President

David C. Mitchell....... ... ... . ... iiiinnn.. 47 Vice President

Frederick K. Paster, M.Sc., M.B.A. ............. 36 Vice President

Thomas P. Quinn*...... ... ... ... . ..., 42 Vice President

John D. Richards, D.Phil.*............. .. ... 44 Vice President

Fred M. Ryan, M.B.A. ... ... ... .ttt 49 Vice President

John W. Vvilliger, Ph.D.*...... e e 46 Vice President

Leonard Bell, M.D. ............ ... 0iiiniininennn.. 43 Director

Dennis B. Gillings, Ph.D. ............viuiinnan. 57 Director

Stewart J. Hen, M.B.A., M.S. .......... ... 34 Director

Anders D. Hove, M.D., M.Sc., M.B.A. (1).......... 35 Director

M. Fazle Husain, M.B.A. (1) ... .. .0 e eaanan. 37 Director

T. Scott Johnson, M.D. (1) ....... . uuiiiiiennennn s3 Director

Armin M. Kessler, Dh.c.(2)....... ... ... ... 63 Director

Nicholas J. Lowcock, M.B.A.(2)....... .. ... ...... 36 Director

James E. Thomas, M.ScC.(2).... ..., 40 Director

* Exeéutive Officer

(1) Member of Audit Committee

(2) Member of the Compensation Committee

Set forth below is certain information regarding the business e;(perience during the past five years for each of the aboye-named persons.

Clive A. Meanwell, M.D., Ph.D. has been our Chief Executive Officer and President and a director since the inception of our company in July
1996. From 1995 to 1996, Dr. Meanwell was a Partner and Managing Director at MPM Capital L.P., a venture capital firm. From 1986 to
'1995, Dr. Meanwell Held various positions at Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc., a pharmaceutical company, including Senior Vice President, from
1992 to 1995, Vice President from 1991 to 1992 and Director of Product Development from 1986 to 1991. Dr. Meanwell was also a member of
Hoffmann-La Roche's pharmaceutical division operating board, its research and development board and its portfolio management committee.
During his tenure as Director of Product Development, Dr. Meanwell had responsibility at Hoffmann-La Roche for the development and
launch of Neupogen. During his tenure as Vice President, Worldwide Drug Regulatory Affairs, he had management responsibility for the
regulatory approval of eight new products and nine significant line extensions of products. Dr. Meanwell also led an initiative at Hoffmann-La
Roche to reengineer the drug development process with the goal of cutting the time and cost of drug development. Dr. Meanwell received his
M.D. and Ph.D. from the University of Birmingham, United Kingdom.

Peyton J. Marshall, Ph.D. has been a Senior Vice Presxdent since January 2000 and our Chief Financial Officer since ]ommg us in October
1997. From 1995 to October 1997, Dr. Marshall was based in London as a
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Managing Director and head of European Corporate Financing and Risk Management Origination at Union Bank of Switzerland, an investment
banking firm. From 1986 to 1995, Dr. Marshall held various investment banking positions at Goldman Sachs and Company, an investment
banking firm, including head of European product development from 1987 to 1993 and Executive Director, Derivatives Origination from 1993
to 1995. From 1981 to 1986, Dr. Marshall held several product development positions at The First Boston Corporation, an investment banking
firm, and was an Assistant Professor of Economics at Vanderbilt University. Dr. Marshall received his Ph.D. in economics from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technology.

Glenn P. Sblendorio, M.B.A. has been a Senior Vice President since July 2000, with primary responsibility for business development. From
1998 to July 2000, Mr. Sblendorio was the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of MPM Capital Advisors, LLC, an investment
bank specializing in healthcare related transactions. From 1997 to 1998, Mr. Sblendorio served as Managing Director at Millennium Venture
Management, LLC, a strategic consulting firm. From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Sblendorio was the Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
and Treasurer at PlayNet Technologies, a publicly traded internet company that develops entertainment systems. From 1993 to 1996, Mr.
Sblendorio was the Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Sony Interactive Entertainment Inc. From 1981 to 1993, Mr.
Sblendorio held several positions at Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc., including Vice President of Finance & Administration for Roche Molecular
Systems and Controller Europe for the Amgen/Roche venture. Mr. Sblendorio received his B.A. in accounting from Pace University and his
M.B.A. from Fairleigh Dickinson University. Mr. Sblendorio is also a CPA.

David M. Stack has been a Senior Vice President since April 2000. Under Mr. Stack's employment agreement with us, Mr. Stack has agreed to
devote at least 24 hours per week to our business. Since January 2000, Mr. Stack has also served as President and General Partner of Stack
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a commercialization, marketing and strategy consulting firm serving pharmaceutical companies, and as a Senior Advisor
to the Chief Executive Officer of Innovex Inc., a contract pharmaceutical organization. Mr. Stack served as President and General Manager of
Innovex Inc. from May 1995 to December 1999. From April 1993 to May 1995, Mr. Stack served as Vice President, Business Development
and Marketing at Immunomedics, Inc., a biotechnology company specializing in monoclonal antibodies in diagnostics and therapeutics. From
September 1981 to March 1993, Mr. Stack was employed by Roche Laboratories, a division of Hoffmann-La Roche, where he was the
Rocephin Product Director from June 1989 to December 1992 and Director, Business Developmeht and Planning, Infectious Disease,
Oncology and Virology from May 1992 to March 1993. Mr. Stack currently serves as director of Bio Imaging Laboratories, Inc. Mr. Stack
received his B.S. in biology from Siena College and his B.S. in pharmacy from Albany College of Pharmacy.

John M. Nystrom, Ph.D. has been a Vice President since October 1998 and our Chief Technical Officer since December 1999. From July 1979
to October 1998, Dr. Nystrom was employed by the Arthur D. Little, an international technology and management consulting firm. During his
19 years with the firm he held numerous positions consulting to the fine chemical, biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries. In 1994 he
was elected a Vice President of the firm, and his last position was that of Vice President and Director. Dr. Nystrom currently serves as a
director of Cangene Corp. Dr. Nystrom received his B.S. and Ph.D. in chemical engineering from the University of Rhode Island.

Gary Dickinson has been a Vice President since May 2001 with a focus on human resources activities. From April 2000 to May 2001, Mr.
Dickinson was the Vice President of Human Resources and Communications at Elementis Specialties, a specialty chemicals manufacturing
firm. From 1985 to March 2000, Mr. Dickinson held several senior human resources positions at Bristol-Myers Squibb Company, including
Director of Human Resources for the International Medicines Group, Asia, Middle East and Africa and Director of Human Resources for
Bristol-Myers Squibb Consumer Group for Europe, Middle East and Africa. Mr. Dickinson holds a B.A. from the University of Sheffield,
England.

David C. Mitchell has been a Vice President since December 2000 with a focus on information technology and information systems. His
responsibilities include planning and implementing worldwide information systems. From February 1999 to December 2000, Mr. Mitchell was
a Vice President of
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Information Technology for Innovex Americas. From July 1997 to February 1999, Mr. Mitchell was Director of Information Technology at
NBC. Prior.to joining NBC, Mr. Mitchell served as the Director of Programming and Technology at Walt Disney Pictures and Television for
twelve years. Mr. Mitchell received his Bachelor of Music from Arizona State University.

Frederick K. Paster, M.Sc., M.B.A. has been a Vice President since September 1999, with a focus on worldwide product partnering, product
development strategy and market/pricing analysis. Mr. Paster is also involved in new product acquisitions and corporate partnerships. From
1994 until he joined us in September 1998, Mr. Paster was a Manager with The Boston Consulting Group, a management consulting firm.
From 1990 to 1992, Mr. Paster was located in Germany and Belgium as European Programs Manager for ESI, a computer software and
services firm. Mr. Paster received his B.S. and M.Sc. degrees in engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology and received his
M.B.A. from the Harvard Business School.

Thomas P. Quinn has been a Vice President since April 2000, with a focus on the launch of Angiomax, business development and product in-
licensing. Mr. Quinn has served as a Partner of Stack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. since January 2000 and served as the Vice President of Marketing
of Stack Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from January 2000 through May 2000. From November 1997 to January 2000, Mr. Quinn was Senior Vice
President, Business Development at Innovex. From January 1996 to July 1997, Mr. Quinn was employed by the Strategic Planning/New
Business Development Department of Bristol-Myers Squibb Inc., a pharmaceutical company, where his responsibilities included domestic and
global portfolio management and franchise development. From April 1992 to December 1995, Mr. Quinn was involved in the commercial start-
up of the U.S. Therapeutics Division of Boehringer Mannheim Corporation, a pharmaceutical company. Mr. Quinn received his B.S. degree
from Duquesne University.

John D. Richards, D.Phil. joined us in October 1997 and has been a Vice President since 1999, with a focus on product manufacturing and
quality. From 1993 until he joined us in October 1997, Dr. Richards was Director of Process Development and Manufacturing at Immulogic
Pharmaceutical Corporation, a pharmaceutical company. From 1989 to 1993, Dr. Richards was a Technical Manager at Zeneca PLC, a
pharmaceutical company, where he developed and implemented processes for the manufacture of peptides as pharmaceutical active
intermediates. In 1986, Dr. Richards helped establish Cambridge Research Biochemicals, a manufacturer of peptide-based products for
pharmaceutical and academic customers. Dr. Richards received his M.A. and D.Phil. in organic chemistry from the University of Oxford,
United Kingdom, and has carried out post-doctoral research work at the Medical Research Councils Laboratory of Molecular Biology in
Cambridge, United Kingdom.

Fred M. Ryan, M.B.A. has been a Vice President since April 2000, with a focus on corporate strategic development, new product acquisitions
.and Angiomax commercial development. Under Mr. Ryan's employment agreement with us, Mr. Ryan has agreed to devote at least 24 hours
per week to our business. Since April 2000, Mr. Ryan has.also served as a Partner and the Vice President of Business Development of Stack
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. From July 1991 to April 2000, he held senior management positions with Novartis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in the United
States in both the Consumer Pharmaceuticals and Prescription Pharmaceuticals businesses in the areas of Finance, Strategic Planning, Business
Development and Marketing, serving from 1998 to April 2000 as Executive Director Mature Products responsible for managing sales and
marketing activities for a portfolio of products having annual sales in excess of $500 million. From 1989 to 1991, he served as Assistant
Controller for Alusuisse-Lonza in the United States. From 1985 to 1988, he served as Senior Financial Manager for Ciba Consumer
Pharmaceuticals (Ciba). He received his B.S. and B.A. degrees from Bryant College and his M.B.A. from Fairleigh Dickinson University.

John W. Villiger, Ph.D. has been a Vice President since March 1997, with a focus on cardiovascular product development. From December
1986 until he joined us in March 1997, Dr. Villiger held various positions in product development at Hoffmann-La Roche, including Head of
Global Project Management from 1995 to 1996 and International Project Director from 1991 to 1995. As Head of Global Project Management,
Dr. Villiger was responsible for overseeing the development of Hoffmann-LaRoche's pharmaceutical portfolio, with management responsibility
for over 50 development programs. As International Project
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Director, Dr. Villiger was responsible for the global development of Tolcapone also known as tasmar. Dr. Villiger recelved his Ph.D. in
neuropharmacology from the University of Otago.

Leonard Bell, M.D. has been a director since May 2000. Since January 1992, Dr. Bell has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer of Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical company. From 1991 to 1992, Dr. Bell was an Assistant Professor
of Medicine and Pathology and co-Director of the Program in Vascular Biology at the Yale University School of Medicine. From 1990 to 1992,
Dr. Bell was an attending physician at the Yale-New Haven Hospital and an Assistant Professor in the Department of Internal Medicine at the
Yale University School of Medicine. Dr. Bell was the recipient of the Physician Scientist Award from the National Institutes of Health and
Grant-in-Aid from the American Heart Association as well as various honors and awards from academic and professional organizations. Dr.
Bell is the recipient of various honors and awards from academic and professional organizations and his work has resulted in more than 45 -
scientific publications, invited presentations and patent applications. Dr. Bell is an invited Member of the State of Connecticut Governor's
Council on Economic Competitiveness and Technology and a director of Connecticut United For Research Excellence, Inc. He also served as a
director of the Biotechnology Research and Development Corporation from 1993 to 1997. Dr. Bell received his A.B. from Brown University
and M.D. from the Yale University School of Medicine. Dr. Bell is currently an Adjunct Assistant Professor of Medicine and Pathology at the
Yale University School of Medicine. Dr. Bell also serves as a director of Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Dennis B. Gillings, Ph.D:has been a director since September 1996. Dr. Gillings has served as Chairman of Quintiles Transnational Corp.,
since its founding by him in 1982. From 1982 to March 2000, Dr. Gillings also served as Chief Executive Officer of Quintiles. Quintiles
provides integrated product development, commercial development and other services to the pharmaceutical, biotechnology, medical device
and healthcare industries. From 1972 to 1988, Dr. Gillings was a Professor of Biostatistics at the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill.
Dr. Gillings serves as a director of WebMD Corporation and Triangle Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Dr. Gillings received his diploma in mathematical
statistics from Cambridge University and his Ph.D. in mathematics from the University of Exeter, United Kingdom.

Stewart J. Hen, M.B.A., M..S. has been a director since February 2001. Since May 2000, Mr. Hen has been a Vice President of Warburg Pincus
LLC. Mr. Hen focuses on investments in the emerging life sciences area, including biotechnology, specialty pharmaceuticals, drug delivery and
diagnostics. From 1996 to May 2000, Mr. Hen was a consultant at McKinsey & Company, where he advised pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies on a range of strategic management issues. Mr. Hen served at Merck & Company from 1991 to 1994 in both research and
development and manufacturing positions. Mr. Hen received an M.B.A. from The Wharton School, an M.S. in biochemical engineering from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and a B.S. in chemical engineering from the University of Delaware.

Anders D. Hove, M.D., M.Sc., M.B.A. has been a director since December 1998. Dr. Hove has been a member of the Bellevue Group since
1996, which focuses on investing in public and private biotechnology companies in the United States and in Europe. From 1991 to 1996, Dr.
Hove held various positions at Ciba-Geigy Pharmaceuticals Division in clinical development, international marketing and business
development. Dr. Hove currently serves as a director of Virologic, Inc., a biotechnology company. Dr. Hove received his M.B.A. from
INSEAD and his M.D. from the University of Copenhagen.

M. Fazle Husain, M.B.A. has been a director since September 1998. Mr. Husain has been affiliated with Morgan Stanley Venture Partners
since 1991 and is currently a General Partner of Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P., a private partnership affiliated with Morgan
Stanley. Mr. Husain focuses primarily on investments in the health care industry, including health care services, medical technology and health
care information technology. He currently serves on the board of directors of Allscripts, Inc., Healthstream, Inc. and Cardiac Pathways
Corporation. Mr. Husain received his Sc.B. degree in chemical engineering from Brown University and his M.B.A. from the Harvard Graduate
School of Business Administration.

T. Scott Johnson, M.D. has been a director since September 1996. In July 1999, Dr. Johnson founded JSB Partners, L.P., an investment bank
focusing on mergers and acquisitions, private financings and corporate alliances within the health care sector. From July 1991 to June 1999, Dr.
Johnson served as a founder and
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managing director of MPM Capital, L.P. Dr. Johnson held academic positions at the Harvard Medical School from 1978 to 1996 and was
actively involved in both basic science and clinical research at the Beth Israel Hospital and the Brigham and Women's Hospital. Dr. Johnson
received both his B.A. and M.D. from the University of Alabama.

Armin M. Kessler, Dh.c. has been a director since October 1998. Dr. Kessler joined us after a 35-year career in the pharmaceutical industry,
which included senior management positions at Sandoz Pharma Ltd., Basel, United States and Japan (now Novartis Pharma A.G.) and, most
recently, at Hoffmann-La Roche, Basel where he was Chief Operating Officer and Head of the Pharmaceutical Division until 1995. Dr. Kessler
has served as a director of Hoffmann-La Roche, Syntex Corporation and Genentech, Inc., and Dr. Kessler currently serves as a director of
Neutherapeutics, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company. Dr. Kessler received his degrees in physics and chemistry from the University of Pretoria,
his degree in chemical engineering from the University of Cape Town, his law degree from Seton Hall and his honorary doctorate in business
administration from the University of Pretoria.

Nicholas J. Lowcock, M.B.A. has been a director since December 2000. He previously served as a director of the Company from September
1996 until December 1998. Mr. Lowcock has been with Warburg Pincus LLC, a venture capital firm, since 1994. Prior to joining Warburg,
Pincus he was with the Boston Consulting Group and previously worked in the pharmaceutical industry in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lowcock
serves as a director of Eurand Pharmaceutical Holdings, B.V., Leciva Pharmaceutical Holdings B.V., Craegmoor Healthcare Ltd., Pharmaldea
B.V. and Aspect Educational Holdings Ltd. Mr. Lowcock is also a director of Project Hope U.K., a charity devoted to improving healthcare in
developing nations. Mr. Lowcock received an M.B.A. from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania and a B.A. in Experimental
Psychology from Oxford University.

James E. Thomas, M.Sc. has been a director since September 1996. Since March 2001, Mr. Thomas has served as Managing Director of
Thomas, McNerney & Partners, LLC, a healthcare private equity investment fund. From 1989 to May 2000, Mr. Thomas served as Managing
Director of E.M. Warburg, Pincus & Co., LLC, a venture capital firm. From 1984 to 1989, Mr. Thomas was a Vice President at Goldman Sachs
International, an investment banking firm, in London. Mr. Thomas currently serves as a director of Transkaryotic Therapies, Inc. Mr. Thomas
received his B.Sc. in finance and economics from the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania and his M.Sc. in economics from the
London School of Economics.

BOARD COMPOSITION

We currently have ten directors, although one of our current directors, Dr. Hove, is not standing for re-election as a director at the annual
meeting of stockholders to be held on May 31, 2001. Pursuant to the terms of a stockholders' voting agreement that we entered with certain of
our stockholders in connection with the sale of shares of preferred stock prior to our initial public offering, Messrs. Bell, Gillings, Hen, Hove,
Husain, Johnson, Lowcock and Thomas were elected to our board of directors. This agreement terminated by its terms upon the completion of
our initial public offering. However, so long as any of the investors who were party to that agreement, excluding Biotech Growth, S.A., own
20% percent of our outstanding common stock, they will be entitled to nominate two individuals to serve as directors, and so long as they own
10% of our outstanding common stock, they will be able to nominate one individual to serve as a director. Warburg, Pincus is entitled to
nominate two individuals to serve as directors, and Messrs. Lowcock and Hen serve on our board of directors as representatives of Warburg,
Pincus.
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Our board of directors is divided into three classes, each of whose members serve for a staggered three-year term. The division of the three
classes, the directors and their respective election dates are as follows:

- the class 1 directors are Drs. Gillings, Hove and Johnson, and Mr. Hen, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be
held on May 31, 2001;

- the class 2 directors are Dr. Meanwell and Messrs. Lowcock and Husain, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to
be held in 2002; and

- the class 3 directors are Drs. Kessler and Bell and Mr. Thomas, and their term will expire at the annual meeting of stockholders to be held in
2003.

At each annual meeting of stockholders, the successors to directors whose terms are to expire will be elected to serve from the time of election
and qualification until the third annual meeting following their election. The authorized number of directors may be changed only by resolution
of the board of directors. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among the three
classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of the directors. This classification of the board of dlrectors may have
the effect of delaying or preventing changes in control or management of our company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee. Our audit committee reviews our internal accounting procedures and consults with, and reviews the services provided by,
our independent public accountants. As of May 15, 2001, the members of our audit committee were Drs. Hove and Johnson and Mr. Husain.

Compensation Committee. Our compensation committee reviews and recommends to the board the compensation and benefits of all of our .
officers and reviews general policies relating to the compensation and benefits of our employees. The compensation committee also
administers the issuance of stock options and other awards under our stock plans. As of May 15, 2001, the members of the compensation
committee were Dr. Kessler and Messrs. Lowcock and Thomas. :

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Generally, our non-employee directors receive $2,500 from us for each meeting of the board of directors which they attend in person and $500
for each meeting in which they participate by telephone. The chairmen of our audit and compensation committees receive $1,000 from us for
each committee meeting he or she attends in person and $500 for each committee meeting in which he or she participates by telephone.
Directors are reimbursed for expenses in connection with their attendance at board meetings.

In addition, non-employee directors may receive stock options and other equity awards under our 1998 stock incentive plan and our 2000
outside director stock option plan. In 1998, we granted Dr. Kessler an option under our 1998 stock incentive plan to purchase 14,600 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $1.23 per share. In May 2000, we granted each of Dr. Bell and Mr. Thomas an option under our 1998
stock incentive plan to purchase 14,600 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.79 per share. In December 2000, we granted Mr.
Lowcock an option under our 2000 outside director stock option plan to purchase 20,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $26.00
per share. In February 2001, we granted Mr. Hen an option under our 2000 outside director stock option plan to purchase 20,000 shares of
common stock at an exercise price of $14.875 per share. These options vest in 48 equal monthly installments commencing one month after the
date of grant.

2000 Outside Director Stock Option Plan

Our 2000 outside director stock option plan was adof;ted by our board of directors on May 15, 2000. Under the plan, our non-employee
directors will be eligible to receive non-statutory options to purchase shares of our common stock. A total of 250,000 shares of our common
stock may be issued upon the exercise of
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options granted under the 2000 outside director stock option plan. As of May 15, 2001, options to purchase 40,000 shares of our common stock
were outstanding under the 2000 outside director stock option plan.

Under the terms of the director stock option plan, each non-employee director will be granted an option to purchase 20,000 shares of our
common stock on the date of his or her initial election to the board of directors. In addition, each non-employee director will receive an option
to purchase 7,500 shares of our common stock on the date of each annual meeting of our stockholders commencing with the 2001 annual
meeting of stockholders, other than a director who was initially elected to the board of directors at any such annual meeting. All options
-granted under the plan vest in 48 equal monthly installments commencing one month after the date of grant. The exercise price per share of all
options will equal the fair market value per share of our common stock on the option grant date. Each grant under the director stock option plan
will have a maximum term of ten years, subject to earlier termination following the optionee's cessation of service.

CARDIOLOGY ADVISORY BOARD

We have established a cardiology advisory board to guide and counsel us on all aspects of interventional cardiology practice. The entire
cardiology advisory board meets twice a year, and we contact individual members as needed. Members of this board provide input on product
research and development strategy, education and publication plans. We do not employ any of the members of the cardiology advisory board,
and members may have other consulting or advisory contracts. Accordingly, members devote only a small portion of their time to us. In
addition to the cardiology advisory board, we have consulting relationships with a number of scientific and medical experts who advise us on a
project-specific basis. The members of the cardiology advisory board are:

NAME AFFILIATION

Eric J. Topol, M.D.,

The Cleveland Clinic
Foundation

University of Michigan
Medical Center

Chairman and Professor,
Department of Cardiology
Professor, Internal Medicine

Chair...

Eric R. Bates, M.D...........

John A. Bittl, M.D...........
Robert M. Califf, M.D........

Frederick Feit, M.D..........
Bernard J. Gersh, M.B.,

Ch.B., D. Phil.
Neal S. Kleiman, M.D.........

A. Michael Lincoff, M.D......
Jeffrey J. Popma, M.D........
Jeffrey I. Weitz, M.D........

Harvey White, D.Sc...........

Ocala Heart Institute
Duke University Clinical
Research Institute

New York University Medical
Center/Tisch Hospital

Mayo Clinic
The Methodist Hospital

The Cleveland Clinic
Foundation

Cardiology Research -
Foundation

McMaster University, Canada

Green Lane Hospital, New
Zealand
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Interventional Cardiologist
Associate Vice Chancellor,
Clinical Research, Professor
of Medicine, CEO

Director, Cardiac
Catheterization Laboratory

Professor of Medicine
Assistant Director, Cardiac
Catheterization Laboratories
Director, Experimental
Interventional Laboratory
Executive Director

Professor of Medicine and
Director, Experimental
Thrombosis and
Atherosclerosis Group
Director of Cardiovascular
Research and Coronary Care



EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table presents summary information for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000, regarding the compensation of each of

our most highly compensated executive officers.

Summary Compensation Table

NAME AND POSITION YEAR SALARY
Clive A. Meanwell, M.D., Ph.D....... ...t 2000 $250,000
President and Chief Executive Officer 1999 $200, 000
Peyton J. Marshall, Ph.D............. . ... ... ... 2000 $200,000
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer 1999 $150, 000
John W. Villiger, Ph.D........ ..., 2000 $195,000
Vice President 1999 $195, 000
John M. Nystrom, Ph.D......... ..t iiiniennnnann 2000 $165,000
Vice President and Chief Technical Officer 1999 $165,000
John D. Richards, D. Phil. ............ .. ... .. ... 2000 $143,654
Vice President 1999 $130,000
Option Grants in 2000

.

$70,000

$60, 000

$50, 000

$42,100

LONG-TERM
COMPENSATION

SECURITIES
UNDERLY ING
OPTIONS

424,781

271,446

188,591

121,101

51,591

The following table summarizes information regarding options granted to each of the individuals listed in the summary compensation table as

of December 31, 2000.

Amounts in the following table represent hypothetical gains that could be achieved for the respective options if exercised at the end of the
option term. The 0%, 5% and 10% assumed annual rates of compounded stock price appreciation are mandated by the rules of the Securities
and Exchange Commission and do not represent an estimate or projection of our future common stock prices. These amounts represent certain
assumed rates of appreciation in the value of our common stock from the fair market value on the date of grant. Actual gains, if any, on stock
option exercises are dependent on the future performance of the common stock and overall stock market conditions. The amounts reflected in

the following table may not necessarily be achieved.
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INDIVIDUAL GRANTS (1)

PERCENT OF POTENTIAL REALIZABLE VALUE AT ASSUMED
NUMBER OF OPTIONS ANNUAL RATES OF STOCK PRICE
SECURITIES GRANTED TO  EXERCISE MARKET APPRECIATION FOR OPTION TERM
OPTIONS EMPLOYEES PRICE PER PRICE PER EXPIRATION  --cmcmmiii it c s cccc e m e e
NAME GRANTED IN 2000 SHARE SHARE DATE 0% S% 10%
Clive A. Meanwell, M.D.,
21108 » TR 70,445(2) 3% $ 1.23 $ 7.00(3) 1/11/10 $ 406,265 $ 716,382 $1,192,163
2,336(4) 0.1% $1.23 $11.20(3) 3/1/10 $ 23,283 $ 39,737 $ 64,981
292,000(5) 9.5% $ 4.79 $12.60(3) 5/15/10 $2,279,200 $4,593,029 $8,142,897
30,000(5) 0% $26.00 $26.00 12/12/10 -- $ 490,538 $1,243,119
30,000(5) 0% $24.25 $24.25 12/15/10 -- $ 457,521 $1,159,448
Peyton J. Marshall,
=2 4100 » PO 34,310(2) 1.1% $1.23 $ 7.00(3) 1/11/10 $ 197,870 $ 348,912 $ 580,639
2,336(4) 0.1% $1.23 $11.20(3) 3/1/10 $ 23,283 $ 39,737 $ 64,981
189,800(5) 6.2% $4.79 $12.60(3) 5/15/10 $1,481,480 $2,985,469 $5,292, 883
22,500(5) 0.7% $26.00 $26.00 12/12/10 -- $ 367,903 $ 932,339
22,500(5) 0.7% $24.25 $24.25 12/15/10 - $ 343,141 $ 869,586
John W. Vvilliger, Ph.D..... 31,755(2) 1.0% $1.23 $ 7.00(3) 1/11/10 $ 183,135 $ 322,929 $ 537,400
2,336(4) 0.1% $ 1.23 $11.20(3) 3/1/10 $ 23,283 $ 39,737 $ 64,981
109,500(5) 3.6% $4.79 $14.00(3) 6/6/10 $1,008,000 $1,972,095 $3,451,207
22,500(5) 0.7% $26.00 $26.00 12/12/10 -- $ 367,903 $ 932,339
22,500(5) 0.7% $24.25 $24.25 12/15/10 -- $ 343,141 $ 869,586
John M. Nystrom, Ph.D...... 40,515(2) 1.3% $1.23 $ 7.00(3) 1/11/10 $ 233,655 § 412,013 $ 685,648
2,336(4) 0.1% $ 1.23 $11.20(3) 3/1/10 $ 23,283 $ 39,737 $ 64,981
18,250(5) 0.6% $ 3.08 $12.60(3) 3/23/10 $ 173,700 $ 318,314 $ 540,181
30,000(5) 1.0% $26.00 $26.00 12/12/10 -- $ 490,538 $1,243,119
30,000(5) 1.0% $24.25 $24.25 12/15/10 -- $ 457,521 $1,159,448
John D. Richards, D. .
Phil...........ooiiinn.n. 14,783(2) 0.5% $ 1.23 $ 7.00(3) 1/11/10 $ 85,250 $ 150,324 $ 250,161
7,008(4) 0.2% $1.23 $11.20(3) 3/1/10 $ 69,850 $ -119,211 $ 194,942
14,600(5) 0.5% $ 3.08 $12.60(3) 3/23/10 $ 138,960 $ 254,651 $ 432,145
7,600(5) 0.2% $26.00 $26.00 12/12/10 - $ 124,270 $ 314,924
7,600(S) 0.2% $24.25 $24.25 12/15/10 -- $ 115,905 $ 293,727

(1) Our 1998 stock incentive plan provides that stock options which are otherwise unvested may be exercised for restricted stock which is
subject to vesting and a repurchase option.

(2) Eighty percent of the shares underlying the option will vest in 48 equal monthly mstallments ending January 11, 2004. Twenty percent of
the shares underlying the option vested upon FDA approval of Angiomax.

(3) For all options granted prior to our initial public offering in August 2000, the market price per share was determined based on the estimated
initial public offering price of our common stock as used to determine compensation expense as required by the SEC.

(4) Two-thirds of the shares underlying the option vested upon FDA approval of Angiomax. One-third of the shares underlymg the option will
" vest six months following FDA approval of Anglomax

(5) The option will vest in 48 equal monthly installments commencing one month following the date of grant.
Option Values at December 31, 2000

The following table presents the number and value of securities underlying unexercised options that are held by each of the individuals listed in
the summary compensation table as of December 31, 2000. No shares were acquired upon the exercise of stock options by these individuals
during the year ended December 31, 2000.

Amounts shown under the column "Value of Unexercised In-the-Money Options at December 31, 2000" are based on the closing sale price on
December 29, 2000 of $20.50 per share, without taking into account any taxes that may be payable in connection with the transaction,
multiplied by the number of shares underlying the option, less the exercise price payable for these shares.
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NUMBER OF

SECURITIES UNDERLYING VALUE OF UNEXERCISED
UNEXERCISED OPTIONS IN-THE-MONEY OPTIONS
SHARES AT DECEMBER 31, 2000 AT DECEMBER 31, 2000
ACQUIRED S} S e N
NAME ON EXERCISE REALIZED EXERCISABLE UNEXERCISABLE EXERCISABLE UNEXERCISABLE (1)
Clive A. Meanwell, M.D.,

Ph.D. . . e e e -- -~ 96,145 369,516 $1,709,272 $5,078,649
Peyton J. Marshall, Ph.D....... -- ~= 51,878 238,548 $ 900,957 $3,151,696
John W. villiger, Ph.D......... 61,648 $793,068 13,687 140,813 $ 214,961 $1,504,789
John M. Nystrom, Ph.D.......... 29,200 $347,670 32,826 135,725 $ 633,136 $1,450,830
John D. Richards, D. Phil...... -- -- 15,812 41,253 $ 299,590 $ 480,028

(1) Our 1998 stock incentive plan provides that stock options which are otherwise unvested may be exercised for restricted stock which is
subject to vesting and a repurchase option.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

Dr. Meanwell serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement dated September 5, 1996.
This agreement renews automatically on a yearly basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, Dr. Meanwell's annual compensation is determined by the board of directors. If Dr. Meanwell terminates his employment for good
reason, as defined in the agreement, or if we elect to voluntarily terminate his employment, Dr. Meanwell will be entitled to three months
salary and the same health, disability and other benefits as were provided during his employment for a period of three months after the date of
his termination. Dr. Meanwell has agreed not to compete with us during the term of his employment and for a period of one year after his
termination. :

Dr. Marshall serves as our Chief Financial Officer pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement dated October 20, 1997. This agreement
renews automatically on a yearly basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Dr.
Marshall's annual compensation is determined by the board of directors. If Dr. Marshall terminates his employment for good reason, as defined
in the agreement, or if we elect to voluntarily terminate his employment, Dr. Marshall will be entitled to three months salary and the same
health, disability and other benefits as were provided during his employment for a period of three months after the date of his termination. Dr.
Marshall has agreed not to compete with us during the term of his employment and for a period of one year after his termination.

Dr. Villiger serves as one of our vice presidents pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement dated March 10, 1997. This agreement
renews automatically on a yearly basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Dr.
Villiger's annual compensation is determined by the board of directors. If Dr. Villiger terminates his employment for good reason, as defined in
the agreement, or if we elect to voluntarily terminate his employment, Dr. Villiger will be entitled to three months salary and the same health,
disability and other benefits as were provided during his employment for a period of three months after the date of his termination. Dr. Villiger
has agreed not to compete with us during the term of his employment and for a period of one year after his termination.

~ Dr. Nystrom serves as our Chief Technical Officer pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement dated September 29, 1998. This
agreement renews automatically on a yearly basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, Dr. Nystrom's annual compensation is determined by the board of directors. If Dr. Nystrom terminates his employment for good
reason, as defined in the agreement, Dr. Nystrom will be entitled to up to six months salary and the same health, disability and other benefits as
were provided during his employment for a period of six months after the date of his termination. If we elect to voluntarily terminate his
employment, Dr. Nystrom will be entitled to up to three months salary and the same health, disability and other benefits as were provided
during his employment for a period of three months after the date of his termination. Dr. Nystrom has agreed not to compete with us during the
term of his employment and for a period of one year after his termination.
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Dr. Richards serves as one of our vice presidents pursuant to the terms of an employment agreement dated October 16, 1997. This agreement
renews automatically on a yearly basis unless either party provides written notice of non-renewal. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Dr.
Richards' annual compensation is determined by the board of directors. If Dr. Richards terminates his employment for good reason, as defined
in the agreement, or if we elect to voluntarily terminate his employment, Dr. Richards will be entitled to three months salary and the same
health, disability and other benefits as were provided during his employment for a period of three months after the date of his termination. Dr.
Richards has agreed not to compete with us during the term of his employment and for a period of one year after his termination.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
1998 Stock Incentive Plan

We édopted our 1998 stock incentive plan in April 1998 and have reserved 4,368,259 shares of our common stock for issuance under the 1998
plan. As of May 15, 2001, options to purchase 3,457,581 shares of our common stock were outstz_mding and 318,128 shares of common stock
have been issued upon the exercise of stock options. E

Our 1998 plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock and other stock-based awards. Our
officers, employees, directors, consultants and advisors, and those of our subsidiaries, are eligible to receive awards under the 1998 plan,
however, incentive stock options may only be granted to our employees.

"Our board of directors administers the 1998 plan, although it may delegate its authority to one or more of its committees and, in limited
circumstances, to one or more of our executive officers. Our board of directors has authorized the compensation committee to administer the
plan, including the granting of options to our executive officers. In accordance with the provisions of the 1998 plan, our compensation
committee selects the recipients of awards and determines the: '

- number of shares of common stock covered by options and the dates upon which such options become exercisable;
- exercise price of options;
- duration of options; and

- number of shares of common stock subject to any restricted stock or other stock-based awards and the terms and conditions of such awards,
including the conditions for repurchase, issue price and repurchase price.

In the event of a merger or other acquisition event, our board of directors must provide for all outstanding awards under the 1998 plan to be
assumed or substituted for by the acquiror. If the acquiror does not assume or substitute for outstanding awards, our board of directors may
provide that all unexercised options will become exercisable in full prior to the completion of the event and that these options will terminate
upon completion of the event if not previously exercised. If our stockholders will receive cash in the acquisition event, any options that would
become exercisable will be converted into cash. If any of these events constitutes a change in control, the ‘assumed or substituted options will
be immediately exercisable in full if the holder of the options is terminated by the acquiror within one year of the change in control.

No award may be granted under the 1998 plan after April 13, 2008 but the vesting and effectiveness of awards granted before April 13, 2008
may extend beyond those dates. Our board of directors may at any time amend, suspend or terminate the 1998 plan except that no award
granted after an amendment of the plan and designated as subject to Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code by our board of directors
shall become exercisable, realizable or vested, to the extent such amendment was required to grant such award, unless and until such
amendment is approved by our stockholders.

54



2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Our 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan was adopted by our board of directors on May 15, 2000. The purchase plan became effective upon
the completion of our initial public offering. The purchase plan authorizes the issuance of up to a total of 255,500 shares of our common stock
to participating employees.

All of our employees, including our directors who are employees and all employees of any participating subsidiaries, whose customary
employment is for more than five months in any calendar year, are eligible to participate in the purchase plan. Employees who would,
immediately after an option grant, own 5% or more of the total combined voting power or value of our stock or the stock of any of our
subsidiaries are not eligible to participate in the purchase plan. As of May 15, 2001, 24 of our employees participate in the purchase plan.

Under the purchase plan, we make offerings to our employees to purchase stock beginning on dates established by our board of directors. Each
offering commencement date begins a six-month period during which payroll deductions are made and held for the purchase of our common
stock at the end of the purchase plan period. The first offering period under the purchase plan commenced on September 1, 2000 and ended on
February 28, 2001, at which time we issued 6,662 shares to 21 participating employees. The second offering period began on March 1, 2001
and will end on August 31, 2001.

On the first day of a designated payroll deduction period, or offering period, we will grant to each eligible employee who has elected to
participate in the purchase plan an option to purchase shares of our common stock as follows: the employee may authorize between 1% and
10% of his or her base pay to be deducted by us during the offering period. On the last day of the offering period, the employee is deemed to
have exercised the option, at the option exercise price, to the extent of accumulated payroll deductions. Under the terms of the purchase plan,
the option exercise price is an amount equal to 85% of the closing price, as defined in the purchase plan, per share of our common stock on
either the first day or the last day of the offering period, whichever is lower. In no event may an employee purchase in any one offering period
a number of shares which exceeds the number of shares determined by dividing (a) the product of $2,083 and the number or fraction of months
in the offering period by (b) the closing price of a share of our common stock on the commencement date of the offering period. Our board of
directors may, in its discretion, choose an offering period of 12 months or less for each offering and may choose a different offering period for
each offering.

An employee who is not a participant on the last day of the offering period is not entitled to exercise any option, and the employee's
accumulated payroll deductions will be refunded. An employee's rights under the purchase plan terminate upon voluntary withdrawal from the
purchase plan at any time, or when the employee ceases employment for any reason, except that upon termination of employment because of
death, the employee's beneficiary has certain rights to elect to exercise the option to purchase the shares that the accumulated payroll
deductions in the employee's account would purchase at the date of death.

Because participation in the purchase plan is voluntary, we cannot now determine the number of shares of our common stock to be purchased
by any particular current executive officer, by all current executive officers as a group or by non-executive employees as a group.

401(k) Plan

Our employee savings and retirement plan is qualified under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code. Our employees may elect to reduce
their current compensation by up to the statutorily prescribed annual limit and have the amount of such reduction contributed to the 401(k)
plan. We may make matching or additional contributions to the 401(k) plan in amounts to be determined annually by our board of directors.
We have not made any matching contributions or additional contributions to date.

CHANGE IN CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS

he terms of restricted stock agreements between us and certain of our employees, as we]l as the option agreements evidencing the grant of
options under the 1998 plan, provide that in the event that we consummate
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an acquisition, as defined in the agreements, and the employee or optionholder, within a period of one year after the acquisition:
(1) is terminated without cause;
(2) is terminated as the result of death, severe physical or mental disability; or

(3) terminates his or her employment for good reason in accordance with the terms of the agreements, the shares covered by such agreements
shall vest in full. '

TRANSACTIONS WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND
FIVE PERCENT STOCKHOLDERS

Since our incorporation in July 1996, we have engaged in the following transactions with our directors, officers and holders of more than five
percent of our voting securities and affiliates of our directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders:

ISSUANCE OF SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

In September 1996, we issued 4,675 units, each unit consisting of one share of our series A preferred stock and 365 shares of our common
stock, at price per unit of $1,000 for a total purchase price of $4.7 million. Of the 4,675 units sold, 4,009 units were sold to the following
directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates:

SERIES A
NAME PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK PURCHASE PRICE
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P..... : 2,000 730,000 $2,000,000
PharmaBio Development InC................. 1,425 520,125 1,425,000
MPM Capital L.P....... ...t iiiniininvnennnn 250 91,250 250,000
Clive A. Meanwell. . .......... .. ciiinnnn 167 60,955 167,000
T. Scott Johnson..................uonn.. 167 60,955 167,000

In June and December 1997, we issued an aggregate of 34,456 units, each unit consisted of one share of our series A preferred stock and
208.571 shares of common stock, at price per unit of $1,000 for a total purchase price of $34.6 million. Of the 34,456 units sold, 32,670 units
were sold to the following directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates:

SERIES A
NAME PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK PURCHASE PRICE
Biotech Growth S.A. ... ... ... .. ... ... 15,000 3,128,571 $15,000, 000
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P..... 14,000 2,920,000 14,000,000
PharmaBio Development Inc............. N 2,670 556,880 2,670,000
Clive A. Meanwell........... ... ... ........ 550 114,714 . 550,000
Peyton J. Marshall................... ..., 350 73,000 350,000
John W. Villiger.................ccoenunn. 100 20,856 100,000

In April 1997, we issued three promissory notes in the principal amounts of $1.2 million and $610,000 to Warburg, Pincus and Biotech Target,
an affiliate of Biotech Growth, respectively. The outstanding principal amount of these notes was converted into units in the June 1997
financing.

EXCHANGE

In August 1998, the holders of the units issued in 1996 and 1997 exchanged these units, as well as shares of our series A preferred stock issued
as stock dividends in December 1997 and August 1998, into shares of our series I and II convertible preferred stock. Stockholders who
purchased units in 1996 received shares of our series I convertible preferred stock and those who purchased units in 1997 received shares of
series II )
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convertible preferred stock. The following directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates received shares in the
exchange: '

SERIES 1 SERIES II
NAME PREFERRED STOCK PREFERRED STOCK
Biotech Growth S.A. ... .. .. ... it -- 4,621,143
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. ......... 1,071,000 4,283,143
PharmaBio Development INC. ...........ccocuvuennn 764,500 818,286
Clive A. Meanwell. .. .. ... ... it iiieerennnnn 87,500 165,143
MPM Capital L.P. . ... .. . 135,000 --
Peyton J. Marshall....... ... ... ... .............. -- 104,000
T. Scott JONNSON. . ot ittt ittt e it eee i aneneans 90,000 --
John W. Villiger........ ... iiiiininmnannannnnn -- 29,714

All shares of series I and series II convertible preferred stock, including accrued dividends on such stock from August 1, 2000 through August
11, 2000, the date of the closing of our initial public offering, automatically converted into an aggregate of 10,932,334 shares of common stock
upon the closing of our initial public offering.

ISSUANCE OF SERIES III CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

In August 1998, we issued an aggregate of 8,399,593 shares of series III preferred stock at a price per share of $4.32 for a total purchase price
of $36.3 million. Of the 8,399,593 shares, 6,643,519 shares were sold to the following directors, executive officers and five percent
stockholders and their affiliates: '

SERIES I1I

NAME CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED PURCHASE PRICE
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. ...... 2,546,296 $10,999,999
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and

its affiliated funds....................... ’ 1,851,852 8,000,001
Alta Partners. .. .. .. ittt e e e 1,736,112 7,500,004
Biotech Growth S.A. .. ... .. ... i 462,963 2,000,000
Clive A. Meanwell. ... ... ... ... it 23,148 99,999
Peyton J. Marshall........................... 23,148 99,999

All shares of our series III convertible preferred stock, including accrued dividends on such stock from August 1, 2000 through August 11,
2000, the date of the closing of our initial public offering, automatically converted into an aggregate of 7,038,398 shares of our common stock
upon the closing of our initial public offering.

1999 DIVIDEND

In July 1999, we issued a stock dividend on all outstanding shares of series I convertible preferred stock, series II convertible preferred stock
and series III convertible preferred stock. In connection with the dividend, we issued 172,005 shares of series I convertible preferred stock,
725,214 shares of series II convertible preferred stock and 571,510 shares of series III convertible preferred stock. The dividend covered the
period from August 8, 1998 to July 31, 1999 with respect to series I and II convertible preferred stock and August 12, 1998 to July 31, 1999
with respect to the series III convertible preferred stock.

NOTE FINANCINGS

In October 1999, we issued convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $6.0 million. The notes bore interest at a rate of
8% per year and were redeemable on January 15, 2001. In connection with the issuance of the notes, we issued common stock purchase
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1,013,877 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $5.92 per share. The warrants must
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be exercised by October 19, 2004. The following directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates purchased notes
and warrants:

WARRANTS

TO PURCHASE

NAME NOTES COMMON STOCK
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. ........... $2,750,000 464,699
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and its .

affiliated funds........ ... ... ... .. . .. .. . . 643,959 108,877
AlEaA PaArtlr S . ¢ i it vt et et e ettt e e e e e 604,048 102,072
PharmaBio Development Inc. ....................... 551,103 93,126
Biotech Growth S.A. ... i it it en 500,000 84,490
Clive A. Meanwell. .. . .. ...ttt 150,000 25,347
Peyton J. Marshall............ ... ... ... .. ... ..... 60,175 10,168
T. Scott JOhNSON. ... ...ttt iiiieaenn 31,357 5,295
John M. NYSEXOmM. ...ttt ittt et ene e 20,000 3,379
John W. Villiger.............. .. iiniiinennn. 10,000 1,689

In March 2000, we issued convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $13.3 million. The notes bore interest at a rate of
8% per year and were redeemable on January 15, 2001. In connection with the issuance of the notes, we issued common stock purchase
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 2,255,687 shares of common stock with an exercise price of $5.92 per share. The warrants must be
exercised by March 2, 2005. The following directors, executive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates purchased notes and
warrants:

WARRANTS
TO PURCHASE
NAME NOTES COMMON STOCK
————e e e s
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. ........... $4,800,000 811,111
Biotech Growth S.A. ..... L 3,500,000 591,435
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and its
affiliated funds......... ... ... ... . . . ... 1,132,279 191,333

PharmaBio Development INC. .............coouuu...n 1,120,000 189,259
Alta PaArENeY S . ittt it e e e 1,100,000 185,879
Armin M. KesSler.......... ... iiiiiininnnannnn.. 200,000 33,796
Clive A. Meanwell... ... ... .. ... ... .uinninnnnn. 200,000 33,796
T. Scott JOhNSON...... ...ttt 50,000 8,449
Peyton J. Marshall............... ... ... ... ... ... 50,000 8,449
John M. NYSEXOM. ..ttt it ittt e e et e e 10,000 1,689

John W. Villiger............ .. ... iiiuiuiiieiinnnnan, 10,000 1,689

On May 17, 2000, the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the notes issued in October 1999 and March 2000, and accrued interest
thereon, were converted into an aggregate of 4,535,366 shares of our
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series IV convertible preferred stock. The following directors, eg(fecutive officers and five percent stockholders and their affiliates received
4,100,748 shares of our series IV preferred stock in the conversién:

SERIES IV

NAME : NOTES PREFERRED STOCK
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. ........... $7,639,901 1,768,495
Biotech Growth S.A. ... ... . .t 4,060,110 939,840
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and its

affiliated funds...... ... ..ttt 1,797,789 416,153
Alta Partners............. e e e 1,724,556 399,201
PharmaBio Development InC...................... 1,691,752 391,609
Clive A. Meanwell. .. .. ... ...t ininnnnnn 353,874 81,915
Armin M. KesSsSler. ... .. ..t inittnseenaannn . 203,332 . 47,067
Peyton J. Marshall............. ... .. i, 111,225 25,746
T. SCOtt JORNSON. .« vt i vt ittt ittt i aiaeenn 82,283 19,047
JORN M. NYSEXOM. ot vt ee e et e it e cane it ee e ee e 30,239 6,999
John W. Villiger......... ... ciinreennnnnnnnnn 20,203 4,676

ISSUANCE OF SERIES IV CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

In May 2000, we issued an aggregate of 1,411,000 shares of our series IV convertible preferred stock at a price.per share of $4.32 for a total
purchase price of $6.1 million. Of the 1,411,000 shares, 1,275,000 shares were sold to the following directors, executive officers and five

percent stockholders and their affiliates:

SERIES IV

PREFERRED
NAME STOCK PURCHASE PRICE
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P. .............. 555,000 $2,397,600
Biotech Growth S.A. ... .. .. i e 345,000 1,490,400
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and its .

affiliated funds. ... ... ... ... i e 130,000 561,600

Alta PartnerS. . . ittt it i e e e e e 130,000 ° ‘561,600 -
PharmaBio Development InC. ............. e e 115,000 496,800

All shares of our series IV convertible preferred stock, including the shares issued upon the conversion of the notes, including accrued
dividends on such stock from August 1, 2000 through August 11, 2000, the date of the closing of our initial public offering, automatically
converted into an aggregate of 4,411,003 shares of common stock upon the consummation of our initial public offering.

2000 DIVIDEND

In July 2000, we issued a stock dividend on all outstanding shares of series I convertible preferred stock, series II convertible preferred stock,
series III convertible preferred stock and series IV convertible preferred stock. In connection with the dividend we issued 187,458 shares of
series I convertible preferred stock, 790,358 shares of series II convertible preferred stock, 629,530 shares series III convertible preferred stock
and 84,394 shares of series IV convertible preferred stock. The dividend covered the period from August 1, 1999 to July 31, 2000 with respect
to the series I, II and III convertible preferred stock and May 17, 2000 to July 31, 2000 with respect to the series IV convertible preferred stock.
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MAY 2001 PRIVATE PLACEMENT

In May 2001, we sold the 4,000,000 shares of our common stock covered by this prospectus at a price per share of $11.00 for a total purchase
price of $44.0 million. Of the 4,000,000 shares, 1,720,000 shares were sold to the following directors, executive officers and five percent
stockholders and their affiliates: '

NAME COMMON STOCK PURCHASE PRICE
Warburg, Pincus Venture Partners, L.P............ 1,050,000 $11,550, 000
Alta PaArtnersS. ...t ittt it ittt et e e e e 450,000 4,950,000
PharmaBio Development INC..........c.ouoviinneennn.n 200, 000 2,200,000
Clive A. Meanwell....... ... ... .. 10,000 . 110, 000
T. Scott Johnson............... R I [ 5,000 55, 000
Glenn P. Sblendorio.......... ..ot 5,000 55,000
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS
PharmaBio/Quintiles

In August 1996, we entered into a strategic alliance with PharmaBio Development, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Quintiles Transnational
Corp. Under the terms of the strategic alliance agreement, PharmaBio and any of its affiliates who work on our projects will, at no cost to us,
review and evaluate, jointly with us, development programs we design related to potential or actual product acquisitions. The purpose of this
collaboration is to optimize the duration, cost, specifications and quality aspects of such programs. PharmaBio and its affiliates have also
agreed to perform other services with respect to our products, including clinical and non-clinical development services, project management,
project implementation, pharmacoeconomic services, regulatory affairs and post-marketing surveillance services and statistical, statistical
programming, data processing and data management services pursuant to work orders agreed to by us and PharmaBio from time to time.
Through April 30, 2001, we had entered into approximately 40 work orders with PharmaBio and had paid PharmaBio a total of $11.9 million.
We have outstanding obligations to PharmaBio of an additional $630,000 under outstanding work orders.

In addition, under the strategic alliance agreement, if PharmaBio and its affiliates exceed performance milestones agreed upon prior to the
initiation of services under any work order, we will pay certain bonuses (not to exceed 10% of the net revenues PharmaBio and its affiliates
received for such services) which, at the option of PharmaBio, may be paid in shares of our common stock. To date, performance milestones
have been requested and agreed upon for one work order out of the work orders completed or outstanding, and no such agreed upon milestones
remain outstanding.

Innovex

In January 1997, we entered into a consulting agreement with Innovex, Inc., a subsidiary of Quintiles, which was subsequently superseded by a
consulting agreement we executed with Innovex in December 1998. Pursuant to the terms of these agreements, Innovex has provided us with
consulting services with respect to pharmaceutical marketing and sales. Since December 1997, we have also entered into various clinical
services agreements with Innovex pursuant to which Innovex has provided project management, clinical monitoring, site management, medical
monitoring, regulatory affairs, data management and quality assurance services with respect to clinical trials of Angiomax. None of the clinical
services agreements is currently outstanding. Through April 30, 2001, we had paid Innovex $1.8 million under all of these agreements.

In July 2000, we signed a letter of intent with Innovex to enter into a sales agreement under which Innovex would provide sales and marketing
services in connection with Angiomax. Although the letter of intent contemplated the negotiation and execution of a binding sales agreement
and could be terminated at any time by either party if no binding sales agreement was reached, we agreed in the letter of intent that Innovex
would begin performing its services immediately. These services included recruiting and training up to 52 sales representatives and engaging in
other agreed-upon activities.
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In December 2000, we signed a master services agreement and a work order with Innovex under which Innovex agreed to provide contract
sales, marketing and commercialization services relating to Angiomax. Under the master services agreement, Innovex may provide additional
services unrelated to Angiomax pursuant to work orders entered into from time-to-time. Under the master services agreement and the
Angiomax work order, Innovex will provide the Angiomax sales force, a sales territory management system and operational support for the
launch of Angiomax. We will provide the marketing plan and marketing materials for the sales force and other sales and marketing support and
direction for the sales force. For Innovex's services, we have agreed to pay a daily fee for each day worked by the members of the sales force.
We will reimburse Innovex for expenses incurred in providing the services and for the incentive compensation paid to the sales force by
Innovex. We have the right to terminate the work order and the master services agreement at any time upon 90 days written notice. We may
hire members of the sales force, although we may incur additional fees to Innovex. Through April 30, 2001, we had paid Innovex $3.0 million
for its services under the letter of intent and master services agreement and work order.

Stack Pharmaceuticals

In April 2000, we entered into an agreement with Stack Pharmaceuticals, Inc., which is an entity controlled by David Stack, one of our senior
vice presidents, which we amended in August 2000. Pursuant to the terms of this agreement, as amended, Stack Pharmaceuticals will perform
infrastructure services for us, which includes providing office facilities, equipment and supplies for our employees based in New Jersey, and
such consulting, advisory and related services for us as we may agree from time to time. For the infrastructure services, we have agreed to pay
Stack Pharmaceuticals a services fee of $20,100 per month, The fees for any additional services to be provided to us will be agreed upon with
Stack Pharmaceuticals prior to the delivery of such services. The term of this agreement continues until April 1, 2001, but either party may
terminate it earlier upon 90 days prior written notice. From January 2000 through March 2000, Stack Pharmaceuticals provided us with
consulting services under a consulting agreement which expired on March 31, 2000. Through April 30, 2001, we had paid Stack
Pharmaceuticals a total of $502,000 under these agreements.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS
The following table presents information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of May' 16, 2001 by:
- each of the individuals listed in the "Summary Compensation Table" above;

- each of our directors;

- each person, or group of affiliated persons, who is known by us to beneficially own five percent or more of our common stock; and
- all current directors and executive officers as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC, and includes voting or investment power with respect to shares.
Shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants and/or stock options that are exercisable within 60 days after May 16, 2001 are
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage ownership of the person holding the warrants and/or options but are not deemed outstanding
for computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Unless otherwise indicated below, to our knowledge, all persons named in the
table have sole voting and investment power with respect to their shares of common stock, except to the extent authority is shared by spouses
under applicable law. The inclusion of any shares in this table does not constitute an admission of beneficial ownership for the person named
below. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes, the address of each of the individuals named below is: ¢/o The Medicines Company, One
Cambridge Center, Cambridge, Massachusetts 02142.

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

SHARES
UNDERLYING
OPTIONS AND/OR
SHARES WARRANTS
BENEFICIALLY EXERCISABLE PERCENTAGE
OWNED AT WITHIN 60 DAYS BENEFICIALLY
MAY 16, PRIOR TO JULY 15, OWNED
2001 2001 AFTER OFFERING
5% STOCKHOLDERS:
Warburg, Pincus Ventures, L.P.(1)................... 9,379,446 1,275,810 26.9%
Biotech Growth S.A.(2) .. ... i 5,204,837 675, 925 . 16.8%
Alta Partnexrs(3) . ... ..ottt 2,293,474 287,951 6.1%
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P. and its
affiliated funds(4) ... ... i e 1,952,777 300,210 6.5%
PharmaBio Development, Inc.(5)...................... 1,896,245 282,385 5.7%
DIRECTORS AND NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS: :
Clive A. Meanwell. .. ... ... ... .. i 548,693 © 221,580 2.2%
Peyton J. Marshall(6)........... ..o, 271,420 112, 285 1.1%
John W. Villiger(7). ...... .., 209,465 39,596 *
John M. Nystrom(B8) ........ .. iinniiiniiiinnnnenn. 36,925 65,611 *
John D. Richards............... e e 37,100 24,712 *
Leonard Bell(9) . .... ..ttt -- 4,258 o
Dennis B. Gillings(10) ........... ..., -- -- --
Stewart J. Hen(ll) ... ...t it it -- 2,083 *
Anders D. HOVe(l2) ..ottt it ittt ittt it eeiianae s -- -- --
M. Fazle Husain{13)... ..., -- -- --
T. Scott Johnson{14) .. .. ..ttt ittt et e e s eeenens 96,079 13,744 *
Armin M. Kessler(15) .. .. ..ttt ittt 37,914 43,806 *
Nicholas J. LowcoCk(16) ... .. ...ttt innennn. 9,379,446 1,278,726 26.9%
James E. Thomas (17) ... ..ottt ittt tiiin i 10, 000 4,258 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (17 :
o T=3 o =T o) 2 V=1 10,633,042 1,970,139 31.7%

* Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1 percent.

(1) Consists of shares with respect to which Warburg, Pincus Ventures, L.P., Warburg, Pmcus & Co. and Warburg Pincus LLC share
ownership and voting and dispositive power. Warburg, Pincus Ventures is
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managed by Warburg Pincus LLC. Lionel I. Pincus is the managing partner of Warburg, Pincus & Co. and the managing member of Warburg
Pincus LLC and may be deemed to control both entities. The members of Warburg Pincus LLC are substantially the same as the partners of
Warburg, Pincus & Co. The address of the Warburg, Pincus entities is 466 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10017 This information
'is based on a Schedule 13G filed by the Warburg, Pincus entities with the Commission on February 14, 2001.

(2) Consists of shares owned directly by Biotech Growth S.A. with respect to which BB Biotech AG and Biotech Growth S.A. share voting and
dispositive power. Biotech Growth S.A. is a wholly owned subsidiary of BB Biotech AG. The address of Biotech Growth S.A. is Calle 53,
Urbanizacion Obarrio, Torre Swiss Bank, Piso 16, Panama City, Zona 1, Republic of Panama. This information is based on a Schedule 13G
filed by BB Biotech AG on behalf of Biotech Growth S.A. with the Commission on February 14, 2001.

(3) Includes 1,425,594 shares and warrants to purchase 178,987 shares held by Alta BioPharma Partners, L.P., 814,149 shares and warrants to
purchase 102,218 shares held by The Medicines Company Chase Partners (Alta Bio), LLC and 53,731 shares and warrants to purchase 6,746
shares held by Alta Embarcadero BioPharma Partners, LLC. Alta Partners provides investment advisory services to several venture capital
funds, including Alta BioPharma Partners L.P., The Medicines Company Chase Partners (Alta Bio), LLC and Alta Embarcadero BioPharma
Partners, LLC. The respective general partner and managing members of Alta BioPharma Partners, L.P., The Medicines Company Chase
Partners (Alta Bio), LLC and Alta Embarcadero BioPharma Partners, LC exercise sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares
owned by such funds. The principals of Alta Partners are members of Alta BioPharma Management, LLC (which is the general partner of Alta
BioPharma Partners, L.P.), and Alta/Chase BioPharma Management, LLC (which is the managing member of The Medicines Company Chase
Partners (Alta Bio), LLC) and Alta Embarcadero BioPharma Partners, LLC. As general partners and managing members of such entities, they
may be deemed to share voting and investment powers for the shares held by the funds. The principals of Alta Partners disclaim beneficial
ownership of all such shares held by the foregoing funds, except to the extent of their proportionate pecuniary interests therein. The address of
Alta Partners is One Embarcadero Center, Suite 4050, San Francisco, California 94111.

<

(4) Includes 1,713,322 shares and warrants to purchase 263,399 shares owned directly by Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P., 164,501
shares and warrants to purchase 25,288 shares owned directly by Morgan Stanley Venture Investors III, L.P. and 74,954 shares and warrants to
purchase 11,523 shares owned directly by The Morgan Stanley Venture Partners Entrepreneur Fund, L.P. Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III,
L.L.C. is the general partner of Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.P., Morgan Stanley Venture Investors III, L.P. and The Morgan Stanley
Venture Partners Entrepreneur Fund, L.P. (collectively, the "Funds"), and, as such, has the power to vote or direct the vote and to dispose or
direct the disposition of all of the shares held by the Funds. Morgan Stanley Venture Capital III, Inc. is the institutional managing member of
Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.L.C., and, as such, shares, together with the remaining managing members, the power to direct the
actions of Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.L.C. Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co., as the sole stockholder of Morgan Stanley Venture
Capital II1, Inc., controls the actions of Morgan Stanley Venture Capital 111, Inc. Therefore, Morgan Stanley Venture Capital III, L.L.C.,

. Morgan Stanley Venture Capital I, Inc. and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co. each may be deemed to have beneficial ownership of the
shares held collectively by the Funds. The address of the Funds is 1221 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10020. This
information is based on a Schedule 13G filed by Morgan Stanley Dean Witter & Co., Morgan Stanley Venture Capital III, Inc., Morgan Stanley
Venture Partners III, L.L.C. and the Funds with the Commission on January 26, 2001.

(5) Includes 1,896,245 shares held by PharmaBio Development Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Quintiles Transnational Corp., and warrants
to purchase 282,385 shares held by Quintiles Transnational Corp. The address of PharmaBio Development Inc. is ¢/o Quintiles Transnational
Corp., 4709 Creekstone Drive, Suite 200, Durham, North Carolina 27703. This information is based on a Schedule 13G filed by
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Quintiles Transnational Corp. and PharmaBio Development Inc. with the Commission on February 14, 2001.

(6) Includes 58,400 shares held in custody for the benefit of Dr. Marshall's minor children.

(7) Includes 209,465 shares and warrants to purchase 3,378 shares held in trust for the benefit of the Villiger Family.

(8) Includes 10,820 shares held by Dr. Nystrom's children. Dr. Nystrom disclaims beneficial ownership of thesé shares.

(9) The address of Dr. Bell is c/o Alexion Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 25 Sciencev Park, Suite 360, Box 15, New Haven, Connecticut 06511.

(10) Does not include 1,896,245 shares held by PharmaBio Development Inc. or warrants to purchase 282,385 shares held by Quintiles
Transnational Corp., of which Dr. Gillings is the Chairman. Dr. Gillings disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares. The address of Dr.
Gillings is ¢/o Quintiles Transactional Corp., 4709 Creekstone Drive, Suite 200, Durham, North Carolina 27703.

(11) The address of Mr. Hen is ¢/o Warburg, Pincus, 466 Lexington Avenue, New York, New York 10017.

(12) Does not include 5,204,837 shares or warrants to purchase 675,925 shares held by Biotech Growth S.A. Dr. Hove is affiliated with
Bellevue Asset Management, which serves as the non-discretionary investment manager of Biotech Growth S.A. Dr. Hove disclaims beneficial
ownership of these shares. The address of Dr. Hove is c/o Bellevue Asset Management, One Cambridge Center, Cambridge, Massachusetts
02142.

(13) Does not include 1,952,777 shares or warrants to purchase 300,210 shares held by the Funds. Mr. Husain is a vice president of Morgan
Stanley Venture Partners I1I, Inc., which is the institutional managing member of Morgan Stanley Venture Partners III, L.L.C., whichis a
general partner of each of the Funds. Mr. Husain disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares. The address of Mr. Husain is c/o Morgan
Stanley Venture Partners III, Inc., 1221 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York 10020. .

(14) The address of Dr. Johnson is ¢/o JSB Partners, 6A Damonmill Square, Concord, Massachusetts 01742.

(15) Includes 3,000 shares held by Dr. Kessler's wife.

(16) Includes 9,379,446 shares and warrants to purchase 1,275,810 shares held by Warburg, Pincus Ventures, L.P. Mr. Lowcock is a Managing
Director of Warburg Pincus LLC. All shares indicated as owned by Mr. Lowcock are included because of his affiliation with the Warburg,

Pincus entities. The address of Mr. Lowcock is ¢/o Warburg, Pincus, Almack House, 28 King Street, St. James, London SW1Y 6QW. Mr.
Lowcock disclaims beneficial ownership of all shares owned by the Warburg, Pincus entities.

(1A7) The address of Mr. Thomas is Woods End Road, New Canaan, Connecticut 06840.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

Our authorized capital stock consists of 75,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, and 5,000,000 shares of undesignated
preferred stock, $1.00 par value per share.

The following summary of our capital stock, and some of the provisions of our certificate of incorporation and other agreements to which we
and our stockholders are parties, is not intended to be complete and is qualified by reference to our certificate of incorporation and any other
agreements included as exhibits to or incorporated by reference into the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. See "Where
You Can Find More Information."

COMMON STOCK

As of May 15, 2001, the day immediately prior to the private placement of the 4,000,000 shares of common stock covered by this prospectus,
there were 30,404,826 shares of our common stock outstanding held by 127 stockholders of record.

The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders and do not
have any cumulative voting rights. Accordingly, holders of a majority of the shares of common stock entitled to vote in any election of
directors may elect all of the directors standing for election. Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive proportionally any dividends
declared by our board of directors, subject to any preferential dividend rights of outstanding preferred stock.

In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, holders of our common stock are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after
payment of all debts and other liabilities, subject to the prior rights of any outstanding preferred stock. Holders of our common stock have no
preemptive, subscription, redemption or conversion rights. All outstanding shares of our common stock are validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable. The shares to be issued by us in this offering will be, when issued and paid for, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. The
rights, preferences and privileges of holders of our common stock are subject to, and may be adversely affected by, the rights of holders of
shares of any series of preferred stock that we may designate and issue in the future.

PREFERRED STOCK

Under the terms of our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors is authorized to issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series
without stockholder approval. The board has discretion to determine the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions, including voting rights,
dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges and liquidation preferences of each series of preferred stock. There are currently no
shares of preferred stock outstanding.

The purpose of authorizing our board of directors to issue preferred stock and determine its rights and preferences is to eliminate delays
associated with a stockholder vote on specific issuances. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing desirable flexibility in connection
with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or could discourage a third-
party from acquiring, a majority of our outstanding voting stock.

WARRANTS

As of May 15, 2001, we had outstanding common stock purchase warrants entitling their holders to purchase an aggregate of 3,269,564 shares
of common stock at an exercise price of $5.92 per share. In October 1999, we issued warrants exercisable at any time prior to October 19, 2004
for 1,013,877 shares of our common stock in connection with the sale of 8% convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of
$6.0 million. In March 2000, we issued warrants exercisable at any time prior to March 2, 2005 for 2,255,687 shares of our common stock in
connection with the sale of 8% convertible promissory notes in the aggregate principal amount of $13.3 million.
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ANTI-TAKEOVER PROVISIONS OF DELAWARE LAW AND CHARTER AND BY-LAW PROVISIONS

Delaware Law
+

We are subject to the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporate Law. In general, the statute prohibits a publicly held
Delaware corporation from engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years following the date
that the stockholder became an interested stockholder unless: ‘

- prior to the date, the board of directors of the corporation approved either the business combination or the transaction that resulted in the
stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

" - upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at
least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding those shares owned by persons
who are directors and also officers, and employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially
whether shares held under the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or .

- on or subsequent to the date, the business combination is approved by the board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of
stockholders, and not by written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock that is not owned by the
interested stockholder.

Section 203 defines "business combination" to include:
- any merger or consolidation involving the corporation and the interested stockholder;
- any sale, transfer, pledge or other disposition involving the interested stockholder of 10% or more of the assets of the corporation;

- in general, any transaction that results in the issuance or transfer by the corporation of any stock of the corporation to the interested
stockholder; or

- the receipt by the interested stockholder of the benefit of any loans, advances, guarantees, pledges or other financial benefits provided by or
through the corporation: '

In general, Section 203 defines an interested stockholder as an entity or person beneficially owning 15% or more of the outstanding voting
stock of the corporation and any entity or person affiliated with or controlling or controlled by the entity or person.

Charter and By-law Provisions

Our charter and our amended and restated by-laws provide for the division of our board of directors into three classes as nearly equal in size as
possible with staggered three-year terms. See "Management -- Board Composition." Under our charter and by-laws, any vacancy on the board
of directors, including a vacancy resulting from an enlargement of the board of directors, may only be filled by vote of a majority of the
directors then in office. The classification of the board of directors and the limitation on and filling of vacancies could make it more difficult
for a third party to acquire, or discourage a third party from acquiring, control of our company.

Our charter and by-laws also provide that any action required or permitted to be taken by our stockholders at an annual or special meeting of
stockholders may only be taken if it is properly brought before such meeting and may not be taken by written action in lieu of a meeting. OQur
by-laws further provide that special meetings of the stockholders may only be called by the chairman of our board of directors, our president or
a majority of our board. In order for any matter to be considered "properly brought" before a meeting, a stockholder must comply with certain
requirements regarding advance notice and provide us with certain information. These provisions could have the effect of delaying until the
next stockholders meeting stockholder actions which are favored by the holders of a majority of our outstanding voting securities.
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The General Corporation Law of Delaware provides generally that the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares entitled to vote on any matter
is required to amend a corporation's certificate of incorporation or by-laws, unless a corporation's certificate of incorporation or by-laws, as the
case may be, requires a greater percentage. Our charter and our by-laws require the affirmative vote of holders of at least 50% of the votes
which all the stockholders would be entitled to cast in any annual election of directors or class of directors to amend or repeal any of the
provisions described in the prior two paragraphs.

Our certificate of incorporation contains certain provisions permitted under the General Corporation Law of Delaware relating to the liability of
directors. These provisions eliminate a director's liability for monetary damages for a breach of fiduciary duty, except in certain circumstances
involving wrongful acts, such as the breach of a director's duty of loyalty or acts or omissions which involve intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of law. Further, our certificate of incorporation contains provisions to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest
extent permitted by the General Corporation Law of Delaware. We believe that these provisions will assist us in attracting and retaining
qualified individuals to serve as directors.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

Mellon Investor Services, LLC serves as the transfer agent and registrar for our common stock.
NASDAQ NATIONAL MARKET LISTING

Our shares of common stock are listed on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "MDCOQ".
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Following the closing of the private placement of the 4,000,000 shares of common stock covered by this prospectus on May 16, 2001, we had
outstanding an aggregate of 34,406,826 shares of common stock and currently exercisable warrants to purchase 3,269,564 shares of common
stock. Of those shares, the 6,900,000 shares sold in our initial public offering and all of the 4,000,000 shares sold in this offering will be freely
tradable without restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, unless these shares are purchased by affiliates. Generally, the
balance of the ouistanding shares of common stock are "restricted securities." Restricted securities may be sold in the public market only if
registered or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under the Securities Act.

As of May 15, 2001, there were outstanding options to purchase 3,497,581 shares of common stock.

REGISTRATION RIGHTS

Pursuant to a registration rights agreement dated August 12, 1998, as amended, the holders of approximately 18,572,874 shares of common
stock and warrants exercisable for 3,269,564 shares of common stock are entitled to require us to register their shares under the Securities Act.
Under this agreement, if we propose to register any of our securities under the Securities Act, either for our account or for the account of other
security holders exercising registration rights, the holders are entitled to notice of the registration and to include their shares of common stock
in the registration. Additionally, such holders may, on up to three occasions, require us to register their shares of common stock under the
Securities Act, and we are required to use our best efforts to effect any such registration. We are responsible for paying the expense of any such
registration. Further, such holders may require us to file nine additional reglstratlon statements on Form S-3 at our expense. These registration
rights are subject to conditions and limitations, including

(i) the right of the underwriters of an offering to limit the number of shares included in such registration (ii) the right of the underwriters to
lock-up the share's of such holders for a period of 120 days after the effective date of any registration statement filed by us and (iii) our right
‘not to effect a requested registration within 180 days following an offering of our securities pursuant to a Form S-3. The parties to the
registration rights agreement waived their rights to notice of, and to include their shares of common stock in, this registration.

Pursuant to stock purchase agreements dated as of May 11, 2001, we granted registration rights with respect to 4,000,000 shares of our
common stock sold in a private placement. This prospectus is a part of the registration statement filed with the SEC to register the resale of
these shares. We are obligated to keep the registration statement effective until the earlier of (i) May 16, 2003,

(ii) the date on which the selling stockholders may sell all of the shares covered by this prospectus without restriction by the volume limitations
of Rule 144(e) of the Securities Act, or (iii) such time as all of the shares covered by this prospectus have been sold pursuant to and in
accordance with the registration statement. -
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

_The shares covered by this prospectus may be offered and sold from time to time by the selling stockholders. The term "selling stockholders"
includes donees, pledgees, transferees or other successors-in-interest selling shares received after the date of this prospectus from a selling
stockholder as a gift, pledge, partnership distribution or other non-sale related transfer. The selling stockholders will act independently of us in
making decisions with respect to the timing, manner and size of each sale. Such sales may be made on one or more exchanges or in the over-
the-counter market or otherwise, at prices and under terms then prevailing or at prices related to the then current market price or in negotlated
transactions. The selling stockholders may sell their shares by one or more of, or a combination of, the following methods:

- purchases by a broker-dealer as principal and resale by such broker-dealer for its own account pursuant to this prospectus;
- ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker solicits purchasers;

- block trades in which the broker-dealer so engaged will attempt to sell the shares as agent but may posmon and resell a portion of the block as
principal to facilitate the transaction;

- an over-the-counter distribution in accordance with the rules of the Nasdaq National Market;

- in privately negotiated transactions; and

- in options transactions.

In addition, any shares that qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 may be sold under Rule 144 rather than pursuant to this prospectus.

To the extent required, this prospectus may be amended or supplemented from time to time to describe a specific plan of distribution. In
connection with distributions of the shares or otherwise, the selling stockholders may enter into hedging transactions with broker-dealers or
other financial institutions. In connection with such transactions, broker-dealers or other financial institutions may engage in short sales of the
common stock in the course of hedging the positions they assume with selling stockholders. The selling stockholders may also sell the common
stock short and redeliver the shares to close out such short positions. The selling stockholders may also enter into option or other transactions
with broker-dealers or other financial institutions which require the delivery to such broker-dealer or other financial institution of shares offered
by this prospectus, which shares such broker-dealer or other financial institution may resell pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented or
amended to reflect such transaction). The selling stockholders may also pledge shares to a broker-dealer or other financial institution, and, upon
a default, such broker-dealer or other financial institution, may effect sales of the pledged shares pursuant to this prospectus (as supplemented
or amended to reflect such transaction).

In effecting sales, broker-dealers or agents engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for other broker-dealers to participate. Broker-
dealers or agents may receive commissions, discounts or concessions from the selling stockholders in amounts to be negotiated immediately
prior to the sale.

In offering the shares covered by this prospectus, the selling stockholders and any broker-dealers who execute sales for the selling stockholders
may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with such sales. Any profits realized by the selling
stockholders and the compensation of any broker-dealer may be deemed to be underwriting discounts and commissions.

In order to comply with the securities laws of certain states, if applicable, the shares must be sold in such jurisdictions only through registered
or licensed brokers or dealers. In addition, in certain states the shares may not be sold unless they have been registered or qualified for sale in
the applicable state or an exemption from the registration or qualification requirement is available and is complied with.

We have advised the selling stqckho]ders that the anti-manipulation rules of Regulation M under the Exchange Act may apply to sales of shares
in the market and to the activities of the selling stockholders and their affiliates. In addition, we will make copies of this prospectus available to
the selling stockholders for the
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purpose of satisfying the prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act. The selling stockholders may indemnify any broker-dealer that
participates in transactions involving the sale of the shares against certain liabilities, including liabilities arising under the Securities Act.

At the time a particular offer of shares is made, if required, a prospectus supplement will be distributed that will set forth the number of shares
being offered and the terms of the offering, including the name of any underwriter, dealer or agent, the purchase price paid by any underwriter,
any discount, commission and other item constituting compensation, any discount, commission or concession allowed or reallowed or paid to
any dealer, and the proposed selling price to the public.

We have agreed to indemnify the selling stockholders against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities under the Securities Act.

We have agreed with the selling stockholders to keep the Registration Statement of which this prospectus constitutes a part effective until the
earlier of (i) May 16, 2003, (ii) the date on which the selling stockholders may sell all the shares covered by this prospectus without restriction
by the volume limitations of Rule 144(e) of the Securities Act, or (iii) such time as all of the shares covered by this prospectus have been sold
pursuant to and in accordance with the registration statement.

LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters with respect to the validity of the shares of common stock offered hereby has been passed upon us by Hale and Dorr LLP,
Boston, Massachusetts. Partners of Hale and Dorr LLP beneficially own an aggregate of 19,292 shares of our common stock and warrants
exercisable for 1,554 additional shares of common stock. :

EXPERTS

Ermst & Young LLP, independent auditors, have audited our consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and for each
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, as set forth in their report. We have included our financial statements in the
prospectus and elsewhere in the registration statement in reliance on Ernst & Young LLP's report, given on their authority as experts in
accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION -

We file reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC. You rhay read and copy any document we file at the SEC's public
reference room at Judiciary Plaza Building, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Room 1024, Washington, D.C. 20549. You should call 1-800-SEC-0330 for
more information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to you on the SEC's Internet site at http:/www.sec.gov.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC. The registration statement contains more information than this
prospectus regarding us and our common stock, including certain exhibits and schedules. You can obtain a copy of the registration statement
from the SEC at the address listed above or from the SEC's Internet site. .
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
. The Medicines Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The Medicines Company (a company in the development stage) as of
December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, redeemable preferred stock and stockholders'
equity/(deficit), and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ending December 31, 2000, and for the period July 31, 1996 (date of
-inception) to December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of The Medicines Company at December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, and for the period July 31, 1996 (date of inception) to December 31, 2000, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 13, 2001, except
for the eighth paragraph

of Note 2, as to which

the date is February 20, 2001
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

1999 2000
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents........... ... i S 6,643,266 $ 36,802,356
Marketable SeCUrities. .. ...ttt ittt it et inineie s 539,274 42,522,729
Accrued interest receivable.... ... ... i e 55,225 1,392,928
7,237,765 80,718,013
IDIVEIEOTY « v v v e v ettt et e e e e e et e ettt e e -- 1,963,491
Prepaid expenses and other current assets................. 154,967 465,650
Total current assSelsS. .. ..ot ittt it i iieaeeeneann 7,392,732 83,147,154
Fixed assels, NeL . ...t ittt ettt e ettt ettt eenan e 430,061 965,832
(08 ¢ = = V=1 =T = oI 168,605 250,144
Total 8SSeES. . .t ottt ittt it e e e e e e $ 7,991,398 $ 84,363,130
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. ... ... .. e e $ 7,815,028 $ 5,987,213
ACCIUBA EXPENSES . . ottt ettt it e tee it e i e e 3,680,293 9,136,934
Total current liabilities........ e e e e 11,495,321 15,124,147

Convertible NOLeS. . ... .. it e e 5,776,319 --
Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock, $1 par value;
31,550,000 and 5,000,000 shares authorized at December 31,
1999 and 2000, respectively; shares issued and
outstanding: 22,962,350 and none at December 31, 1999 and
2000, respectively; at redemption value (Liquidation value
of $86,167,821 and $0 at December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively) . ... e e 85,277,413 --
Stockholders' equity/(deficit): .
Common stock, $.001 par value, 36,000,000 and 75,000,000
shares authorized at December 31, 1999 and 2000,
respectively; shares issued and outstanding: 833,400
and 30,320,455 at December 31, 1999 and 2000,

TeSPeCLIVeLY. . o e e 834 30,320
Additional paid-in capital...... ... ... e 339,144 279,126,337
Deferred stock compensation............c...uuiiinieinunennnn c-- (13,355,694)
Deficit accumulated during the development stage.......... (94,925,028) (196,560,034)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)............. 27,395 (1,946)

Total stockholders' equity (deficit).............. (94,557,655) 69,238,983

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity
(deficit)......... N $ 7,991,398 $ 84,363,130

See accompanying notes.



THE MEDICINES COMPANY

(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating expenses:
Research and development.....
Selling, general and

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

$ 24,004,606

administrative............ 6,248,265
Total operating
expenses........... 30,252,871

(30,252,871)

Loss from operations...........

Other income (expense):
Interest income..............
Interest expense.............

(28,950,798)

Net 10SS.. ...,

Dividends and accretion to
redemption value of
redeemable preferred stock...

Net loss attributable to common
stockholders..,..............

Basic and diluted net loss
attributable to common
stockholders per common

1,302,073

.(3,958,903) .

share......... ... ... . ... ... $ (6.03)
Unaudited pro forma basic and

diluted net loss attributable

to common stockholders per

common share................. $ --
Shares used in computing net

loss attributable to common

stockholders per common ’

share:

Basic and diluted............ 5,454,653

Unaudited pro forma basic and
diluted...................

See accompanying notes.

$ 30,344,892

5,008,387

(35,353,279)

837,839
(197, 455)

(34,712,895)

(5,893,016)

$ (80.08)
$ (1.94)
507,065
17,799,876

$ 39,572,297

15,033,585

(54,605,882)

2,704,126
(19,390,414)

(71,292,170)

(30,342,988)

$ (8.43)
$ (2.10)
12,059,275
24,719,075

PERIOD
JULY 31, 1996
(DATE OF
INCEPTION) TO
DECEMBER 31, 2000

$ 110,793,397

29,411,917

(140,205,314)

5,593,904
(19,617,104}

(154,228,514)

(42,331,520)



THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE
PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
FOR THE PERIOD JULY 31, 1996 (DATE OF INCEPTION) TO DECEMBER 31, 2000

Issuance of common stock...................

Issuance of redeemable preferred stock.....
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption
VaLlUE. . . e e e e
Net JOBS. .. ...ttt it i

Balance at December 31, 1996..............
Employee stock purchases...................
Issuance of common stock...... e
Issuance of redeemable preferred stock.....
Dividends on preferred stock...............

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption

value....... ... e i
Net 10SS. ... .t
Currency translation adjustment............
Unrealized gain on marketable securities...
Comprehensive loss.........................

Balance at December 31, 1997..............
Employee stock purchases...................
Repurchase of common stock.................

Exchange of redeemable preferred stock for

redeemable convertible preferred stock....

Issuance of redeemable convertible preferred

BLOCK. . i e e
Dividends on preferred stock...............

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption
value. ... ... e

Net 1OSS. ... .ottt
Currency translation adjustment............
Unrealized loss on marketable securities...
Comprehensive 10SS............coiuuen.n..

Balance at December 31, 1998............

Issuance of common stock...................
Issuance of redeemable preferred stock.....

Accretion of preferred stock to redemption

value. ... . e e e
Net 1OSS. ...ttt ittt it et eieean e

Balance at December 31, 1996..............
Employee stock purchases...................
Issuance of common stock...................
Issuance of redeemable preferred stock.....

Dividends on preferred stock..............
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption
Value . . e

Currency translation adjustment...........

Unrealized gain on marketable securities...

Comprehensive 1OSS.........ovuuiuninennnnn

Balance at December 31, 1997.............
Employee stock purchases..................
Repurchase of common stock................
Exchange of redeemable preferred stock for

redeemable convertible preferred stock. ..

Issuance of redeemable convertible preferred

BLOCK . . i e e,
Dividends on preferred stock..............
Accretion of preferred stock to redemption

ValUE . . e e
Net 108S. ... ...ttt
Currency translation adjustment...........
Unrealized loss on marketable securities..

Comprehensive 1oSs.............c.ouuvu....

Balance at December 31, 1998............

See accompanying notes.
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REDEEMABLE REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED STOCK PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK
SHARES AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT
..... $ -- 2,042,175 $ 2,042
..... 4,675 $ 4,675,000
..... 118,348
..... 4,675 4,793,348 -- -- 2,042,175 2,042
..... 627,070 627
..... 7,186,537 7,187
..... 34,456 33,498,408
..... 1,175 1,056,652
..... 957,592
..... 40,306 40,306,000 -- -- 9,855,782 9,856
..... 34,887 35
..... (107,979) (108)
..... (41,992) (41,992,000) 13,071,714 41,992,000 (8,892,912) (8,893)
..... 8,421,907 35,126,419
..... 1,686 1,686,0000 '
...... 2,266,051
..... .- -- 21,493,621 79,384,470 889,778 890
DEFICIT
) ACCUMULATED TOTAL
ADDITIONAL DEFERRED DURING THE COMPREHENSIVE  STOCKHOLDERS'
PAID-IN STOCK DEVELOPMENT INCOME EQUITY
CAPITAL COMPENSATION STAGE (LOSS) (DEFICIT)
..... $ 755 $ $ -~ $ 2,797
..... $ (118,348) (118,348)
..... (1,466,877) (1,466,877}
..... 755 (1,585,225) -- (1,582,428)
..... 232 . 859
..... 2,658 9,845
...... (1,060,673) (1,060,673)
...... (957,592) (957,592)
..... (17,805,926) (17,805, 926)
...... 1,806 1,806
..... 7,274 7,274
,,,,,, (17,796,846)
...... 3,645 (21,409,416) 9,080 (21,386,835)
...... 1,312 1,347
...... (40) (148)
...... 8,893 --
...... (1,692,852) (1,692,852)
...... (2,266,051) (2,266,051)
...... (28,950,798) (28,950,798)
...... 31,562 31,562
...... (1,984) (1,984)
...... (28,921,220)
..... 13,810 (54,319,117) 38,658 (54,265,759)



THE MEDICINES COMPANY ,
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

CONSOLIDATED S_’I‘ATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE
PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) -- (CONTINUED)

REDEEMABLE " REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED STOCK PREFERRED STOCK COMMON STOCK ADDITIONAL
-------------------- PAID-IN

SHARES AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL

Repurchase of common stock...... ’ (56,378) (56} (21)
Dividends on preferred stock.... 1,468,729 5,351,178
Accretion of preferred stock to .

redemption value............... 541,765

Issuance of warrants associated

with convertible notes......... . 325,355
Net 1lOSS......coviiiiiennnnnn.
Currency translation

adjustment . . ...... ... ...,
Unrealized loss on marketable
securities.....................
Comprehensive loss..............

Balance at December 31, 1999... -- -- 22,962,350 85,277,413 833,400 834 339,144
Repurchase of common stock...... (22,205) (22)
Employee Stock purchases........ 227,525 226 286,068
Issuance of redeemable

convertible preferred stock.... 5,946,366 25,688,284
Accretion and dividend on

preferred stock................ : 1,751,241 4,898,537
Beneficial conversion of

redeemable convertible

preferred stock................ ’ 25,444,299
Issuance of warrants associated

with convertible notes......... ’ 18,789,805
Issuance of common stock through

initial public offering........ : 6,900,000 6,900 101,343,162
Conversion of preferred stock to

common stock............. ... .. (30,659,957) (115,864,234) 22,381,735 22,382 115,841,732
Deferred compensation expense

associated with stock

options............. .. ... ... 17,279,612
Adjustments to deferred .

compensation for

terminations................... : . (197,485)
Amortization of deferred

COmMPEeNSALION. . oo vv it s

Net loss........ e )

Currency translation

adjustment.....................

Unrealized loss on marketable

securities.......... .. ...

Comprehensive loss..............

Balance at December 31;

2000 .« it i e -- $ -- -~ % -- 30,320,455 $30,320 '$279,126,337
DEFICIT
ACCUMULATED TOTAL .
DEFERRED DURING THE COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS'*
STOCK, DEVELOPMENT INCOME EQUITY
COMPENSATION STAGE (LOSS) (DEFICIT)

Repurchase of common stock...... (77)
Dividends on preferred stock.... (5,351,251) (5,351,251)
Accretion of preferred stock to

redemption value............... (541, 765) (541,765)
Issuance of warrants associated . :

with convertible notes......... 325,355
Net 1OSS... ... iiiiiinnnn (34,712,895) (34,712,895)
Currency translation

adjustment........... ... ... (3,847) . (3,847)
Unrealized loss on marketable

securities..................... . (7,416) (7,416)
Comprehensive loss.............. (34,724,158)
Balance at December 31, 1999... -~ (94,925,028) 27,395 (94,557, 655)
Repurchase of common stock...... ’ (22)
Employee Stock purchases........ 286,294

Issuance of redeemable

convertible preferred stock.... : ’ -~
Accretion and dividend on

preferred stock................ (4,898,537) (4,898,537)
Beneficial conversion of

redeemable convertible

preferred stock................ (25,444,299) --
Issuance of warrants associated

with convertible notes......... i8,789,805
Issuance of common stock through

initial public offering........ : 101,350,062
Conversion of preferred stock to

common StOCK. ... ..ttt 115,864,114
Deferred compensation expens

associated with stock

oOptions. .. ... it (17,279,612) --
Adjustments to deferred

compensation for

terminations................... 197,485 --
Amortization of deferred

compensation................... 3,726,433 3,726,433



Net 1088.........0c0ciininunnnnnn (71,292,170)
Currency translation

adjustment..................... 5,141
Unrealized loss on marketable

securities...........iii.. {34,482}
Comprehensive 108S..............

Balance at December 31,
2000

See accompanying notes.’
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(34,482)



THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

PERIOD JULY 31, 1996
(DATE OF INCEPTION) TO
DECEMBER 31, 2000

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net 108S8. ... it
Adjustments to reconcile net loss

to net cash used in operating
activities:

$(71,292,170)

$(154,228,514)

Depreciation and amortization.... 98,413 207,663 277,307 618,677
Amortization of discount on
convertible notes.............. -- 101,674 19,013, 486 19,115,160
Amortization of deferred stock
compensation................... -- -- 3,726,433 3,726,433
Loss on sales of fixed assets........ -- -- 14,631 14,631
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable....... - (705,515) 690,290 (1,337,703) (1,392,928)
INVENEOTY . ottt ettt it et iie e ea . - (1,963,491) (1,963,491)
Prepaid expenses and other current
ASSEES . .t it e e (156,812) 39,141 (312,027) (466, 548)
Other assetsS. ... ..o innnneenn. (152, 165) (3,349) (82,391) (250,629)
Accounts payable................... (31,864) 5,528,544 (1,823,602) '5,990,320
Accrued eXpensSes............u..nn {(1,928,001) 1,258,366 5,708,535 9,386,636

Net cash used in operating
activities...... ... ... ... . L.

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable

securities...... ...t (29,861,162) -- (51,098,901) (111, 144,188)
Maturities and sales of marketable
securities......... ... .. 28,722,483 18,796,493 9,083,090 68,586,977
Purchase of fixed assets........... (357,103) (258, 788) (834,160) (1,604,226)
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities............... (1,495,782) 18,537,705 (42,849,971) (44,161,437)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of
convertible notes and warrants... -- 6,000,000 13,348,779 19,348,779
Proceeds from issuance of preferred
stock, net’. ... .. e 35,126,419 -- 6,095,338 79,395,165
Proceeds from issuance of common .
stock, net........ ... i, 1,347 -- 101,636,356 101,651,204
Repurchases of common stock........ (148) (77) (22) (247)
Dividends paid in cash............. (6,852) (73) (118) (11, 064)
Net cash provided by financing
activities......... ... .. .. i, 35,120,766 5,999,850 121,080,333 200,383,837
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash...... ... . i i 29,928 (1,245) (280) 30,209
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents........... ..., 1,828,170 (2,354, 256) 30,159,090 36,802,356
Cash and cash eqguivalents at
beginning of period................ 7,169,352 8,997,522 6,643,266 --

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
period...... ... ... .. i

"Non-cash transactions:
Dividends on preferred stock.......

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow
information:
Interest paid......................

See accompanying notes.
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Medicines Company (the Company) was incorporated in Delaware on July 31, 1996. The Company is a pharmaceutical company engaged
in the acquisition, development and commercialization of late-stage development drugs. The Company is a development-stage enterprise, as
defined in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 7, and has, since inception, been developing business plans, acquiring product
rights, conducting initial commercialization activities, obtaining financing, performing research and development, conducting regulatory
activities and recruiting and training personnel. In December 2000, The U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved Angiomax(R)
(bivalirudin), the Company's lead product, for use as an anticoagulant in patients with unstable angina undergoing percutaneous transluminal
coronary angioplasty (PTCA).

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. .

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in the pharmaceutical industry including, but not limited to, uncertainties related to
regulatory approvals, dependence on key products, and protection of proprietary rights. .

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that poténtially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk include cash, cash equivalents and marketable
securities. The Company believes it minimizes its exposure to potential concentrations of credit risk by placing investments in high-quality
financial instruments. At December 31, 2000, approximately $23,300,000 of the cash and cash equivalents balance was invested in the Merrill
Lynch Premier Institutional Fund, a no-load money market fund.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents consist of investments in money market funds, corporate bonds and taxable auction securities. These investments are carried at
cost, which approximates fair value.

Marketable securities consist of securities with original maturities of greater than three months. The Company classifies its marketable
securities as available-for-sale. Securities under this classification are recorded at fair market value and unrealized gains and losses are recorded
as a separate component of stockholders' equity. The estimated fair value of the marketable securities is determined based on quoted market
prices or rates for similar instruments. At December 31, 1999 and 2000, marketable securities

F-8



THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

consisted of investments in corporate bonds with maturities of less than one year and are summarized as follows:

UNREALIZED
COST GAIN (LOSS) FAIR VALUE
December 31, 1999.. ... ... ¢t nnnnnann $ 541,400 $ (2,126) $ 539,274
December 31, 2000..... ...t nnnnnneens $42,559,337 $(36,608) $42,522,729

There were no sales of available-for-sale securities during the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000, although there were maturities of such
securities as disclosed in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows.

The Medicines Company currently holds a $3.0 million principal investment in Southern California Edison 5 7/8% bonds due January 15,
2001, which is accounted for in accordance with Statement of Financial Standards No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities." We classify these securities as available-for-sale and carry them at fair market value based on the quoted market price. We
have exposure to market risk related to the fluctuation of the Southern California Edison bonds' price, which fluctuation has increased
significantly as a result of events which occurred after December 31, 2000, including the non-payment of principal and interest on the bonds at
maturity on January 15, 2001. At March 28, 2001, the value of the Company's investment in these Southern California Edison bonds had
declined to approximately $2.5 million. ‘

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs were approximately $1,491,000, $484,000 and $807,000 for the years
ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

Inventory

The Company records inventory upon the transfer of title from its vendor. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market with cost
determined using a weighted average of actual costs. All costs associated with the manufacture of Angiomax bulk drug product and finished
product to which title transferred to the Company prior to FDA approval of Angiomax was expensed as research and development: On
December 15, 2000, the Company received FDA approval for Angiomax and any Angiomax bulk drug product to which the Company took
title after that date is recorded as inventory.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method based on estimated useful lives or, in the case of
leasehold improvements, over the lesser of the useful lives or the lease terms.

Stock-Based Compensation

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation" ("SFAS 123") encourages, but does not
require, companies to record compensation cost for stock-based employee compensation plans at fair value. The Company has elected to
account for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" ("APB 25"). "
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)
Translatian of Foreign Currencies

The functional currencies of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are the local currencies; British pound sterling, Swiss franc and New Zealand
dollar. The Company translates its foreign operations using a current exchange rate. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 52, assets and liabilities are exchanged using the current exchange rate as of the balance sheet date. Expenses and items of
income are exchanged using a weighted average exchange rate over the period ended on the balance sheet date. Adjustments resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company's foreign subsidiaries into U.S. dollars are excluded from the determination of net loss
and are accumulated in a separate component of stockholders' deficit. Foreign exchange transaction gains and losses are included in the results
of operations and are not material to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and income tax bases of assets and liabilities,
as well as net operating loss carryforwards, and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences
reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to reflect the uncertainty associated with ultimate realization.

Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

The Company reports comprehensive income/loss and its components in accordance with theprovisions of SFAS No. 130, "Reporting
Comprehensive Income." Comprehensive income/loss includes all changes in equity for cumulative translations adjustments resulting from the
consolidation of foreign subsidiaries' financial statements and unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities.

-Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 101, "Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements” (SAB 101), which provides guidance related to revenue recognition based on interpretations and practices followed by the SEC.
SAB 101, as amended, is effective beginning the fourth quarter of calendar fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1999 and requires
companies to report any changes in revenue recognition as a cumulative change in accounting principle at the time of implementation.
Adoption of SAB 101 did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position or results of operations, since the Company has no
revenues to date.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities." The effective date of this statement was deferred to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000 by SFAS No. 137, "Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities -- Deferral of the Effective Date of SFAS No. 133." The adoption of this new standard is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period reduced,
where applicable, for outstanding, yet unvested, shares. Diluted net loss per share includes the effect of stock options, warrants and redeemable
convertible preferred stock and convertible notes outstanding during the period, if dilutive. Since the Company has a net loss for all periods
presented, the effect of all potentially dilutive securities is antidilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted net loss per share are the same.
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)
Unaudited Pro Forma Net Loss Per Share

Unaudited pro forma net loss per share is computed using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, including the pro forma
effects of automatic conversion of all outstanding redeemable convertible preferred stock and accrued dividends and convertible notes and
accrued interest through each balance sheet date into shares of the Company's common stock effective upon the closing of the Company's

initial public offering, as if such conversion had occurred at the date of original issuance.

* Segments

The Company is a development stage company focused on the acquisition, development and commercialization of late-stage development
drugs. The Company has license rights to three potential products, Angiomax, CTV-05 and IS-159. The Company manages its business and
operations as one segment. There are no revenues to date for any potential products and the Company's assets are not identifiable to its three
potential products.

3. MANAGEMENT'S PLANS AND FINANCING

The Company is a development stage company and has incurred substantial losses since inception. To date, the Company has funded its
operations through the issuance of debt and equity. The Company expects to continue to expend substantial amounts for continued product
research, development and initial commercialization activities for the foreseeable future and management's plans with respect to funding this
development are to secure additional equity, if possible, and to secure collaborative partnering arrangements that will provide available cash
funding for operations.

Should additional equity financing or collaborative partnering arrangements be unavailable to the Company, management will restrict certain of
the Company's planned activities and operations, as necessary, to sustain operations and conserve cash resources.

4. FIXED ASSETS

 Fixed assets consist of the following:

. DECEMBER 31,
ESTIMATED 3z ~-=--cc--emmeeemcemaann

LIFE (YEARS) 1999 - 2000
Furniture, fixtures and equipment.............. 3 $ 323,685 $ 547,748
Computer hardware and software............ R, 3 213,376 728,333
Leasehold improvements................ ... 5 216,064 243,060
753,125 1,519,141
~Less: Accumulated depreciation................. (323,064) (553,309)
$ 430,061 $ 965,832

Depreciation expense was approximately $98,000, $208,000 and $277,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000,
respectively. .
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A-COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)
5. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following at December 31:

1999 2000
DevelopmMent SeLVICES . . .. ittt nnnnennnannenasonson $3,283,767 $5,998,117
Other. .. i e i i e e ieee e 396,526 3,138,817
$3,680,293 $9,136,934

6. CONVERTIBLE NOTES _ .-

In October 1999, the Company issued $6,000,000 of 8% Convertible Notes ("the Notes") and 1,013,877 Common Stock Purchase Warrants
("the Warrants") to existing investors, raising proceeds of $6,000,000. The Notes were redeemable on January 15, 2001 and pay interest semi-
annually at a rate of 8% per annum. The Notes were convertible into shares of stock of the Company upon a subsequent sale of stock of the
Company provided that such sale resulted in aggregate gross proceeds of at least $6,000,000. The Notes were convertible into a number of
shares of stock determined by dividing the outstanding principal and interest on the date of the subsequent sale by the price per share of such
sale. Each Warrant provides the holder with the right to purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company at a price of $5.92 per share at
any time prior to October 19, 2004. The exercise price and the number of shares underlying the Warrants could be adjusted in certain
circumstances related to future issuances of capital stock. The Company recorded $325,355 as the fair value of the Warrants using the Black-
Scholes method and the estimated fair value of the Company's Common Stock on the date of the issuance of warrants, and $5,674,645 as the
value of the Notes-on the issuance date. The discount on the Notes was amortized to interest expense over the expected term of the Notes,
which the Company anticipated to be to June 2000. Since the Notes were issued in October 1999, the carrying amount approximates their fair
value at December 31, 1999. Upon completion of the Company's sale of Series IV Preferred Stock in May 2000, the principal and accrued
interest on the Notes was converted into 1,393,909 shares of Series IV Preferred Stock.

In March 2000, the Company issued $13,348,779 of 8% Convertible Notes (""the Notes") and 2,255,687 Common Stock Purchase Warrants
("the Warrants") to current stockholders, raising proceeds of $13,348,779. The Notes were redeemable on January 15, 2001 and accrue interest
‘semi-annually at a rate of 8% per annum. The Notes were convertible into shares of stock of the Company upon a subsequent private sale of
stock of the Company provided that such sale results in aggregate gross proceeds of at least $6,000,000. The Notes were convertible into a
number of shares of stock determined by dividing the outstanding principal and interest on the date of the subsequent sale by the price per share
of such sale. Each Warrant provides the holder with the right to purchase one share of Common Stock of the Company at a price of $5.92 per
share at any time prior to March 2005. The exercise price and the number of shares underlying the Warrants could be adjusted in certain
circumstances related to future issuances of stock. The Company recorded approximately $18,800,000 as the value of the Warrants using the
Black-Scholes method and the estimated fair value of the Company's common stock on the date of the issuance of the warrants. The discount
on the Notes was amortized over the expected term of the Notes, which the Company anticipated to be to June 2000. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, amortization of the discount was approximately $18,800,000 and is included with the interest expense in the
accompanying financial statements. Upon completion of the Company's sale of Series IV Preferred Stock in May 2000, the principal and
accrued interest on the Notes was converted into 3,141,457 shares of Series IV Preferred Stock.
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THE MEDICINES COMPANY
(A COMPANY IN THE DEVELOPMENT STAGE)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -- (CONTINUED)
7. REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On June 29, 2000, the Company's Board of Directors approved a reverse split of .73 shares for every one share of common stock then
outstanding. The reverse stock split became effective on August 4, 2000. The accompanying financial statements and footnotes, including all
share and per share amounts, reflect the reverse stock split.

Series 1, Series II, Series I1I and Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

During 1999 and 2000, the Company had designated four series of redeemable convertible preferred stock. A summary of the Series I, Series
II, Series III and Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock is as follows.

DECEMBER 31,

Series I, $1 par value, 3,550,000 shares authorized at

December 31, 1999 and none at December 31, 2000, 2,678,005

shares and none issued and outstanding as of December 31,

1999 and 2000, respectively ($5,512,225 liquidation value

at December 31, 1999 and $0 at December 31, 2000)......... $ 5,512,225 $ --
Series I1I, $1 par value, 15,850,000 shares authorized at

December 31, 1999 and none at December 31, 2000,

11,290,928 shares and none issued and outstanding as of

December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively ($40,670,864

liquidation value at December 31, 1999 and $0 at December

31, 2000) ¢ it e e e e e e e e e e e e 40,670,864 --
Series III, $1 par value, 12,150,000 shares authorized at

December 31, 1999 and none at December 31, 2000, 8,993,417

shares and none issued and outstanding as of December 31,

1999 and 2000, respectively ($39,984,732 liquidation value
" at December 31, 1999 and $0 at December 31, 2000)......... 39,094,324 --
Series IV, $1 par value, 12,150,000 shares authorized during

December 31, 2000 and none at December 31, 1999, none

issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2000............ -- --

In August 1998, the Company executed an agreement (the "Exchange Agreement") under which 8,892,912 shares of common stock and 41,992
shares of Series A Redeemable. Preferred Stock were exchanged for 2,506,000 shares of Series I Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and
10,565,714 shares of Series II Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock. Holders of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock were entitled to
receive preferential cumulative annual dividends payable in additional shares of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock at the rate of 7% per
annum of the stated value. Prior to the Exchange Agreement, dividends earned from January 1, 1998 through the date of the Exchange
Agreement were paid to the holders of Series A Redeemable Preferred Stock. During 1997, certain preferred shareholders waived their right to
a portion of earned dividends and the Company paid agreed-upon amounts through December 31, 1997. To the extent that all or any part of the
Stock would have resulted in the issuance of a fractional share of the Series A Preferred stock, the amount of such fraction, multiplied by the
stated value, was paid in cash.

On May 17, 2000, the Company issued 1,411,000 shares of Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock for net proceeds of $6,095,520.
In addition, on May 17, 2000, the convertible notes and accrued interest were converted into 4,535,366 shares of Series [V Redeemable
convertible Preferred Stock. The Series IV preferred stock carries terms and conditions similar to the Series I, I1, III preferred stock. The Series
IV preferred stock was convertible into common stock at a 1-for-0.73 conversion rate and automatically converted upon the closing of the sale
of shares of common stock in an underwritten public offerlng The Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock issued on May 17, 2000
contained a beneficial conversion feature
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

based on the estimated fair market value of common stock into which it is convertible. In accordance with EITF 98-5, the total amount of such
beneficial conversion is approximately $25,450,000. The beneficial conversion is analogous to a dividend and was recognized during 2000
when issued. Simultaneously with the closing of the Company's initial public offering, 30,659,957 shares of Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock then outstanding (including accrued dividends for the period August 1, 2000 to August 11, 2000) were converted into 22,381,735 shares
of common stock.

A summary of the rights, preferences and privileges of the Series I, Series I, Series III and Series IV Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock
("Series Preferred Stock") is as follows: :

Dividends. The holders of each series 6f Series Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, prior to any distribution to the holders of Common
Stock, preferential cumulative dividerids payable in additional shares of such series of Series Preferred Stock at a rate of 7% per share per
annum of the liquidation value of such series of Series Preferred Stock. Such dividends were paid annually commencing on July 31, 1999.

Liquidation. In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company (either voluntary or involuntary), the holders of Series
Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its stockholders, a per share amount equal
to $2.00 per share in the case of the Series I Preferred Stock, $3.50 per share in the case of the Series II Preferred Stock and $4.32 in the case of
the Series III and Series IV Preferred Stock, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends (the liquidation value). These distributions will be made
prior to any distributions to other stockholders. Any amounts remaining after making such distributions will be distributed to the holders of
Common Stock and Series Preferred Stock on parity with each other. If the remaining assets of the Company available for distribution to its
stockholders are insufficient to pay all of the holders of Series Preferred Stock, distributions will be made first to the Series IV Preferred
Stockholders, then to Series III Preferred Stockholders and then to the Series I and II Preferred Stockholders on a pro-rata basis.

Conversion. Holders of shares of Series Preferred Stock have the right to convert their shares at any time into shares of Common Stock. The
conversion rate for each series of Series Preferred Stock is 0.73-for-1. The conversion rate for each series of Series Preferred Stock is subject

(i) to proportional adjustments for splits, reverse splits, recapitalizations, etc., and (ii) to formula-weighted average adjustments in the event that
the Company issues additional shares of Common Stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock at a purchase price less
than the applicable conversion price then in effect, other than the issuance of shares to directors, officers, employees and consultants pursuant
to stock plans approved by the Board of Directors and certain other exceptions. Each share of Series Preferred Stock will be automatically
converted into shares of Common Stock upon the closing of the sale of shares of Common Stock at a price of at least $8.90 per share (subject to
appropriate adjustment for stock dividends, stock splits, combinations and other similar recapitalizations affecting such shares).in an
underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, resulting in at least $15,000,000 of
gross proceeds to the Company.

Redemption. The Company will redeem the outstanding shares of Series Preferred Stock in three equal annual installments commencing July
31, 2002 at a price equal to the liquidation value of such shares.

Voting. Generally, holders of shares of Series Preferred Stock vote on all matters, including the election of directors, with the holders of shares
of Common Stock on an as-converted basis, except where a class vote is required by law.
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Accretion. Series Preferred Stock is accreted to its redemption value to recognize issuance costs over the period from issuance to redemption
using the interest method and to reflect accrued but unpaid dividends. :

Common Stock

Common Stockholders are entitled to one vote per share and dividends when declared by the Board of Directors, subject to the preferential
rights of preferred stockholders. :

Upon the completion of its Initial Public Offering ("IPO") on August 11, 2000, the Company sold 6,000,000 shares of its common stock at a
price of $16.00 per share. In addition, on September 8, 2000, the underwriters of the IPO exercised their over-allotment option and purchased
an additional 900,000 shares of common stock at a price of $16.00 per share. The company received proceeds of approximately $101.4 million,
net of underwriting discounts and commissions, and expenses. Simultaneously with the closing of the IPO, 30,659,957 shares of Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding (including accrued dividends for the period August 1, 2000 to August 11, 2000) were converted
into 22,381,735 shares of common stock.

During 1996, 1997 and 1998, certain employees of the Company purchased 335,800, 627,070 and 32,850 shares of common stock,
respectively, for $0.001 per share. These shares are subject to restriction and vesting agreements that limit transferability and allow the
Company to repurchase unvested shares at the original purchase price. The shares vest ratably over a four-year period that generally begins on
each employee's hire date. During 1998, 1999 and 2000, the Company repurchased 107,979, 56,378 and 22,205 shares, respectively, of
unvested common stock for $0.001 per share. There were 62,722 shares of common stock unvested at December-31, 2000.

Stock Plans

In April 1998, the Company adopted the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan"), which provides for the grant of stock options, restricted stock
and other stock-based awards to employees, directors and consultants. The plan allows for the issuance of up to 1,083,259 shares of common
stock through April 2008. The Board of Directors determines the term of each option, the option price, the number of shares for which each
option is granted and the rate at which each option is exercisable. During 1999, the Board of Directors amended all outstanding grants to allow
holders the opportunity to exercise options prior to vesting. Exercised options that are unvested are subject to repurchase by the Company at the
original exercise price. Options granted under the plan generally vest in increments over four years.

In January 2000, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Plan to increase the number of shares available under the Plan to
1,448,259. In May 2000, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Plan to increase the number of shares available under the Plan

to 4,368,259. In addition, the Board of Directors also approved the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan which provides for the issuance of up

to 255,500 shares of common stock to participating employees and the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan which provides for the issuance of up '
to 250,000 shares of common stock to the Company's directors. Both the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and the 2000 Directors Stock
Option Plan have received stockholder approval.

Prior to the Company's initial public offering, the Board of Directors of the company determined the fair value of the Company's common stock
in its good faith judgment at-each option grant date for grants under the Plan considering a number of factors including the financial and
operating performance of the company, recent transactions in the Company's common and preferred stock, if any, the values of similarly
situated companies and the lack of marketability of the companyfs common stock. Following the Company's initial public offering, the fair
value is determined based on the traded value of the Company's ‘¢ommon stock.
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During the period January 1, 2000 to September 31, 2000, the Company issued 2,273,624 options at exercise prices below the estimated fair
value of the Company's common stock as of the date of grant of such options based on the price of the Company's common stock in connection
with the Company's initial public offering. The total deferred compensation associated with these options is approximately $17.3 million.
Included in the results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2000 is compensation expense of approximately $3.7 million associated
with such options.

The Company has elected to follow APB 25 in accounting for its stock options granted to employees because the alternative fair value
accounting provided for under SFAS 123, requires the use of option valuation models that were not developed for use in valuing employee
stock options. Because the exercise price of the Company's stock options generally equals the market price of the underlying stock on the date
of grant, no compensation is recognized under APB 25. Had compensation costs for the Plan been determined based on the fair value at the
grant dates as calculated in accordance with SFAS 123, the Company's net loss for the year ended December 31, 1999 and 2000 would have
been increased to the pro forma amounts indicated below.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1999 2000

Net loss attributable to common stockholders -- As

B =3 o Lo ok o = c $32,909,701 $40,605,911 $101,635,158
Net loss attributable to common stoc¢kholders -- Pro

forma. .. e e e e e $32,965,764 '$40,771,828 $106,150,604
Net loss per share attributable to common .

stockholders -- As reported..........ccuuuuuennnn. s (6.03) $ (80.08) $ (8.43)
Net loss per share attributable to common

stockholders -- Pro forma........................ s (6.04) $ (80.41) $ (8.80)

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1999 2000
Expected dividend yield.............. ... ....... 0% 0% 0%
Expected stock price volatility................. 70% 70% 70%
Risk-free interest rate.................... .. ... 4.70% 5.45% 6.32%
Expected option term........ ..ttt 3.38 years 3.30 years 3.35 years
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A summary of stock option activity under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan are as follows:

NUMBER OF WEIGHTED AVERAGE

SHARES EXERCISE PRICE

Outstanding, December 31, 1997........ ... ciieionn -~ s --
L5 ar=1 4§ o1 = I 734,745 1.11
Exercised............... P (2,037) 0.64
Canceled. . ... ... e (27,437) 0.88
Outstanding, December 31, 1998......... .. ... .. iiiiinnn 705,271 1.12
Granted. .. ... ... . e e e F 239,075 ' 1.23
Canceled. . ... . e e e (175,380) 1.05
Outstanding, December 31, 1999.......... ... iiiiininnnn 768,966 1.16
Granted. ... ... i e e e e e e e 3,080,424 9.80
EXerCLisSed. i ittt i e e e e e e (227,523) 1.26
Canceled. . ... e e (406,713) 1.22
Outstanding, December 31, 2000.......... 0t ieiuniunnnnn 3,215,154 $9.43
Available for future grant at December 31, 2000.......... 1,173,545

The weighted average per share fair value of options granted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 was $0.55, $0.62 and $10.34, respectively. The
weighted average fair value and exercise price of options granted during 2000 which were granted with exercise prices below the fair market
value were $9.35 and $4.68, respectively. The weighted average fair value and exercise price of options granted during 2000 which were
granted with exercise prices equal to the fair market value were $13.19 and $24.96, respectively.

The following table summarizes information about stock options from the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2000 Directors Stock Option Plan
outstanding at December 31, 2000: .

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING
————————————————————————————————————— OPTIONS VESTED

WEIGHTED = smmmmmmmmoemlemmmmoo
AVERAGE WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
NUMBER REMAINING AVERAGE NUMBER AVERAGE
RANGE OF QUTSTANDING CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE OUTSTANDING EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICES AT 12/31/00 LIFE (YEARS) PRICE AT 12/31/00 PRICE
$ 0.69 -- $ 3.08 911,673 8.72 $ 1.63 363,052 $1.46
$ 4.79 -- § 4.79 850,450 9.39 $ 4.79 115,582 $4.79
$ 5.92 -- $12.00 631,231 9.52 $ 6.69 3,815 $5.92
$19.88 -- $24.00 183,750 9.85 $22.76 -- -
$24.13 -- $30.63 638,050 9.93 $25.60 -- --
3,215,154 9.36 $ 9.43 482,449 $2.29

Common Stock Reserved for Future Issuance

At December 31, 2000, there were 7,913,763 shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
for conversion of the Common Stock Warrants and for grants made under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and the 2000 Director Stock Option
Plan.
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8. NET LOSS AND UNAUDITED PRO FORMA NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted, and unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share for the
respective periods. The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share gives effect to the conversion of the redeemable convertible
preferred stock and the convertible notes and accrued interest as if converted at the date of original issuance.

’ YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998 1999 2000

Basic and Diluted .
B 7= oA o Y= - SO $(28,950,798) $(34,712,895) $ (71,292,170)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable

convertible preferred stock................... (3,958,903) (5,893,016) (30,342,988)
Net loss attributable to common stockholders.... $(32,909,701) $(40,605,911) $(101,635,158)
Weighted average common shares outstanding...... 6,075,948 850,238 12,225,537
Less: unvested restricted common shares

outstanding.................. ..., e e e (621,295) (343,173) (166,262)
Weighted average common shares used to compute

net loss per share......... ... ... ... 5,454,653 507,065 12,059,275
Basic and diluted net loss per share............ $ (6.03) $ (80.08) $ (8.43)
Unaudited Pro forma basic and diluted

Net 1OSS. .. ... i $(34,712,895) $ (71,292,170)

Interest expense on convertible notes....... SN 197,455 19,390,414
Net loss used to compute pro forma net loss per

[0 4 ¥ o =N $(34,515,440) $ (51,901,756)

Weighted average common shares used to compute

net loss per share............c.iiiiiniunnnn... ) i 507,065 12,059,275
Weighted average number of common shares

assuming the conversion of all redeemable

convertible preferred stock and convertible

notes and accrued interest at the date of

original dissuance............. .. il 17,292,811 12,659,800
Weighted average common shares used to compute

pro forma net loss per share.................. 17,799,876 24,719,075

Unaudited pro forma basic and diluted net loss
PEY ShAre. .. ittt it ittt ettt e $ (1.94) $ (2.10)

Options to purchase 768,966 and 3,215,154 shares of common stock have not been included in the compﬁtation of diluted net loss per share for
the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively, as their effects would have been antidilutive. Warrants to purchase 1,013,877 and
3,269,564 shares of common stock were excluded from the computation of diluted net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 1999 and
2000, respectively, as their effect would be antidilutive.
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9. INCOME TAXES

The significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets are as follows:

DECEMBER 31,

1999 2000

Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards...................... $ 30,864,000 $ 48,494,000
Research and development credit....................... 2,074,000 3,576,000
Intangible assets. .. ........... ... . i 1,139,000 1,233,000
L0 o ¢ 7= O 36,000 86,000
34,113,000 53,389,000
Valuation allowancCe. ... ... ... ..ttt naeeeneneann (34,113,000) (53,389,000)

Net deferred tax a@ssetsS. .. ... ittt iennnnanean $ -- $ --

The Company has increased its valuation allowance by $19,276,000 in 2000 to provide a full valuation allowance for deferred tax assets since
the realization of these future benefits is not considered more likely than not. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable is
subject to change based on estimates of future taxable income during the carryforward period. If the Company achieves profitability, these
deferred tax assets would be available to offset future income taxes. The future utilization of net operating losses and credits may be subject to
limitation based upon changes in ownership under the rules of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company will assess the need for the valuation
allowance at each balance sheet date based on all available evidence.

At December 31,'2000, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce taxable income, and federal research and
development tax credit carryforwards available to reduce future tax labilities, which expire as follows:

FEDERAL RESEARCH

FEDERAL NET AND DEVELOPMENT
. OPERATING LOSS TAX CREDIT

YEAR OF EXPIRATION CARRYFORWARDS CARRYFORWARDS
72 0 $ 930,000 . $ 22,000
200 2. e e e e 15,260,000 527,000
72 27,876,000 425,000
0 33,802,000 1,002,000
2020 . . e e e 44,282,000 1,300,000

$122,150,000 $3,276,000

For state purposes, net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $116,042,000 expire in the years 2001 through 2004. State research and
development tax credit carryforwards are approximately $300,000.

10. LICENSE AGREEMENTS
Angiomax

In March 1997, the Company entered into an agreement with Biogen, Inc. for the license of the anticoagulant pharmaceutical, bivalirudin (now
- known as Angiomax). Under the terms of the agreement, the Company acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the technology, patents,
trademarks, inventories and know- how related to Angiomax. In exchange for the license, the Company paid $2 million on the closing date and
is
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obligated to pay up to an additional $8 million upon reaching certain Angiomax sales milestones, including the first commercial sale of
Angiomax for the treatment of AMI in the United States and Europe. In addition, the Company shall pay royalties on future sales of Angiomax
and on any sublicense royalties earned until the later of (1) 12 years after the date of the first commercial sale of the product in a country or (2)
the date in which the product or its manufacture, use or sale is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent right in such country.
The agreement also stipulates that the Company use commercially reasonable efforts to meet certain milestones related to the development and
commercialization of Angiomax, including expending at least $20 million for certain development and commercialization activities, which we
met in 1998. The license and rights under the agreement remain in force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party may terminate
for material breach, and the Company may terminate the agreement for any reason upon 90 days prior written notice. During December 2000,
the Company received approval from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for the sale of Angiomax for certain indications.

CTV-05

In August 1999, the Company entered into an agreement with Gynelogix, Inc. for the license of the biotherapeutic agent CTV-05, a strain of
human lactobacillus currently under clinical investigation for applications in the areas of urogenital and reproductive health. Under the terms of
the agreement, the Company acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the patents and know-how related to CTV-05. In exchange for the license,
the Company has paid $400,000 and is obligated to pay an additional $100,000 upon reaching certain development and regulatory milestones
and to fund agreed-upon operational costs of Gynelogix related to the development of CTV-05 on a monthly basis subject to a limitation of
$50,000 per month. In addition, the Company is obligated to pay royalties on future sales of CTV-05 and on any sublicense royalties earned
until the date on which the product is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in a country. The agreement also
stipulates that the Company must use commercially reasonable efforts in pursuing the development, commercialization and marketing of CTV-
05 to maintain the license. The license and rights under the agreement remain in force until our obligation to pay royalties ceases. Either party
may terminate the agreement for material breach, and may terminate the agreement for any reason upon 60 days prior written notice.

IS-159

In July 1998, the Company entered into an agreement with Immunotech S.A. for the license of the pharmaceutical IS-159 for the treatment of
acute migraine headache. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company acquired exclusive worldwide rights to the patents and know-how
related to IS-159. In exchange for the license, the Company paid $1 million on the closing date and is obligated to pay up to an additional $4.5
million upon reaching certain development and regulatory milestones. In addition, the Company shall pay royalties on future sales of IS-159
and on any sublicense royalties earned until the date on which the product is no longer covered by a valid claim of the licensed patent rights in
a country. The agreement also st